
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN
MEETING AT THE GILA COUNTY COURTHOUSE, BOARD OF  SUPERVISORS’ HEARING ROOM, 1400
EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE
MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY
MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT
THE GILA COUNTY COMPLEX, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, 610 E. HIGHWAY
260, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 4, 2020 - 10:00 A.M.
             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE -

INVOCATION
 

 

2. PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A.   Recognition of Gila County employees who have been
employed for 5, 10, 15, 20, 25 and 30 years as of
2019. (Erica Raymond)

 

B.   Information/Discussion regarding the Community
Development Department's Building Safety and Planning &
Zoning Divisions.  (Scott Buzan)

 

3. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Sheriff's
Office electronic submission of the annual Arizona 9-1-1
Grant Program Application to the Arizona Department of
Administration, Office of Grants and Federal Resources in
the amount of $325,418 to support FY2021 Gila 9-1-1
Network Operations. (Debra Williams)

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to accept or reject a
Citizens' Petition to begin the process to establish E.
Granny Jones Lane from SR 288 to the north boundary of
parcel 305-26-007H, also shown as Parcel 3A on Record of
Survey 4053, Gila County Records, as a primitive road.
(Steve Sanders)

 



 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to review the bid submitted
for Request for Proposals No. 102119-Consultation Services:
Health Prevention and Surveillance Services; award to Guild
Health Consulting in the amount of $100,000; and
authorize the Chairman's signature on the award contract. 
(Michael O'Driscoll)

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the
advertisement of Request for Qualifications No.
010220-Indigent Defense Attorney Services as outlined in
the solicitation. (Jonathan Bearup)

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt revised Policy
BOS-HRS-625-Personnel Commission changing the election
of the Chairperson from an annual basis to a four-year
term. (Shelley McPherson)

 

F.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Gila County
Attorney's application to use monies from the Gila County
Anti-Racketeering Fund pursuant to A.R.S. § 13-2314.03 to
pay the outstanding tax lien against Gila County parcel
number 305-40-031 to prevent foreclosure of the property
and then to reimburse the fund for the tax lien payment
from the proceeds of the sale of the property. (Jeff Dalton)

 

G.   Information/Discussion/Action to determine the County's
position on the issue regarding the Forest Service 203 Road.
(Woody Cline)

 

H.   Information/Discussion/Action to appoint Mr. Bill Marshall
to the Board of Directors of The Industrial Development
Authority of the County of Gila, Arizona (IDA) for a term of
office that will expire on December 31, 2025.  (Woody Cline)

 

I.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional



I.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional
Services Contract No. 020120 with Bose Public Affairs
Group, which will terminate Contract No. 071014-2 to
continue providing lobbying and consulting services at the
federal government level to Gila County in the amount of
$84,000 per year (at a rate of $7,000 per month) plus up to
$4,000 in travel related expenses, effective February 1,
2020, through June 30, 2021. (Mary Springer)

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the
Consent Agenda will be removed from the Consent
Agenda and discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any member of the
Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

A.   Adoption of an Order designating polling places and the
appointment of poll workers and election board workers for
the purpose of conducting the March 17, 2020 Presidential
Preference Election.

 

B.   Acknowledgment of the election of Janice Chesser and the
reappointment of Linda Oddonetto to the Community Action
Program Advisory Board for the term beginning January 1,
2020, through December 31, 2023.

 

C.   Approval of the January 21, 2020 and January 28, 2020,
Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.

 

D.   Acknowledgement of the December 2019 monthly activity
report submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

 

E.   Acknowledgment of the December 2019 monthly activity
report submitted by the Recorder's Office. 

 

F.   Acknowledgment of the December 2019 monthly activity
report submitted by the Globe Regional Justice of the
Peace's Office.



 

G.   Acknowledgment of the December 2019 monthly activity
report submitted by the Payson Regional Justice of the
Peace's Office.

 

H.   Acknowledgment of the December 2019 monthly activity
report submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.

 

I.   Acknowledgement of the December 2019 monthly activity
report submitted by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.

 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:   A call to the public is held for
public benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of
Supervisors on any issue within the jurisdiction of the
Board of Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the agenda.
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute
§38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open call to the
public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors may
respond to criticism made by those who have addressed the
Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and
decision at a future date.

 

 

6. At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S.
§38-431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and
the County Manager may present a brief summary of
current events.  No action may be taken on information
presented.

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3).

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING.



   
ARF-5843     Presentation     2. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/04/2020  
Submitted For: Shelley McPherson, HR and Risk Management Director 
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Sr.
Department: Human Resources 

Information
Request/Subject
2019 Gila County Employee Service Awards Presentation.

Background Information
n/a

Evaluation
n/a

Conclusion
n/a

Recommendation
n/a

Suggested Motion
Recognition of Gila County employees who have been employed for 5, 10,
15, 20, 25 and 30 years as of 2019. (Erica Raymond)

Attachments
2019 Gila County Service Awards



2019	Gila	County	Service	Awards	
5 years  10 years  20 Years 

Barajas, Marion R  Facilities & Land Mgmnt  Berumen, Teri K   Assessor  deRoulhac, Darde G   Public Works 
Baty, Todd   County Attorney  Campos, Antonella   Public Fiduciary  Homan, Thomas H   Public Works 
Blevins, Debra D   Emergency Services  Chagolla, Robert   Sheriff  Salas, Michele L   Child Support  
Brown, Lowell J   Sheriff  Cunningham, Alex  Facilities & Land Mgmnt  Worthey, Violeta A   Sheriff 
Cross, James D   Sheriff  Etter, Patrice   Clerk of Superior Court  Zaragoza, Anita L   Probation 
DeSpain, Juliane R   Probation  Gann, Mark S   Public Works     

Dirks, Brian C   Sheriff  Garcia, Victoria L   Sheriff  25 Years 
Gonzales, Mathew   Probation  Gildersleeve, Debra L   Probation  Alvino, Pamela M   Treasurer 
Guadiana, Veronica    Superior Court Div 2  Haynie, Wade K   Sheriff  Bowman, Leona   Community Services 
Johnson, Robert J   Public Works  Hensley, Thoreina   Sheriff  Griego, Teresa M   Superior Court 
LaBonte, Cole R   Sheriff  Laforge, Earl D   Public Works  Kenyon, Celia L   Superior Court 
Loya, Shealene   Community Development  Miller, Megan A   Clerk of Superior Court  Pennell, Yodona M   Library Districts 
Lutye, Heather   County Attorney  Overholt, Debra L   County Attorney     

McPherson, Shelley    Human Resources  Pratt, Kari E   Child Support   30 Years 
Moore, Diana L   Assessor  Scales, Ramona V   Health  Navarro, Mary Y   Globe Justice Court 
Moore, Jerry M  Facilities & Land Mgmnt  Teague, Marcus J JR   Sheriff  Olivarez, Gilbert T   Sheriff 
Nader, Emily   Superior Court    Savage, Daniel C   Public Works 
Padgett, Penni L   Sheriff  15 years   
Palmer, Jessica L   Health  Aliprandini, Susan M   School Superintendent 
Payne, Dwight J   Sheriff  Bingham, Sadie J   Recorder 
Richardson, Jessica   County Attorney  Casillas, Stephanie M   Sheriff 
Romero, Barbara A   Probation  Fane, Joann S   Sheriff 
Scott, Kyle C   Public Works  Feezor, Kristine L   Sheriff 
Simpson, Justin   Public Works  Harmon, Nichole M   County Attorney 
Smith, Cassidy R   Sheriff  Hornung, David   Sheriff 
Smith, Kimberly K   Probation  Kenney, Erich J   Sheriff 
Todd, Travis W   Sheriff  Osborn, Jared C   Sheriff 
  Pontel, Larry B   Probation 

Soden, Jeremy   Probation 
Solberg, Justin M   Sheriff 
Vuksanovich, Michele   Public Works 



   
ARF-5874     Presentation     2. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/04/2020  
Submitted For: Scott Buzan, Community Development Director 
Submitted By: Scott Buzan, Community Development Director
Department: Community Development

Information
Request/Subject
Community Development Department Presentation for Building Safety
and Planning & Zoning Divisions -  2019 Highlights and 2020 Goals.

Background Information
N/A

Evaluation
N/A

Conclusion
N/A

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion regarding the Community Development
Department's Building Safety and Planning & Zoning Divisions.  (Scott
Buzan)

Attachments
Com Dev Presentation



STRIVING TO PROVIDE THE HIGHEST MEASURE OF CUSTOMER SERVICE

GILA COUNTY
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

February 4, 2020 Board of Supervisors Meeting



TEAM COM DEV
Globe Office Payson Office



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT -
WHO WE ARE AND WHAT WE DO

BUILDING SAFETY – PLANNING & ZONING - CODE ENFORCEMENT - WASTEWATER
Operating under the “One Stop Shop” concept

BUILDING SAFETY DIVISION
Regulates the construction, demolition and occupancy of all buildings 
within the unincorporated areas of Gila County.

Our primary mission is to insure safety while providing a better quality of 
life for the residents of Gila County.

 Building Code Enforcement
 Building Code Education
 Building Permits
 Building Plan Review

 Building Inspections
 Site Plan Reviews
 Problem Solving

Work closely with Planning & Zoning, Code Enforcement, Wastewater, Floodplain, Grading and Drainage



PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION

To conserve and promote the public health, safety and general welfare by guiding and 
accomplishing a coordinated, adjusted and harmonious County development and future growth.

 Comprehensive Master Plan
 Planning
 Enforcement, interpretation and 

revising of the Zoning Ordinance
 Educating the public about County 

zoning regulations
 Pre-application meetings
 Rezoning of land
 Variances
 Administrative Variances

 Use Permits
 Conditional Use Permits
 Temporary Use Permits
 Development Plans
 Preliminary and Final 

Subdivision Plats
 Subdivision Ordinance
 Minor Land Divisions
 Lot Line Adjustments
 Record of Surveys

Work with, submit applications and make recommendations to the Board of Adjustment and 
Planning & Zoning Commission. 

Work closely with Building Safety, Code Enforcement, and Wastewater.



2019 HIGHLIGHTS & ACHIEVEMENTS
BUILDING SAFETY

 Processed 454 PDIs
 1282 Building permits 
 98 SFR building permits
 56 Commercial permits 
 $19.6 million in new construction 

valuation
 649 Plan reviews 
 6,882 Inspections
 46,156 Inspector miles driven
 Next day inspections
 Quarterly contractor & owner 

builder meetings
 Began use of Skype for certain 

types of inspections
 Building Inspector on KMOG radio 

show

PLANNING & ZONING

 18 Pre-application meetings (introduced in April) 
 10 Variances
 50 Administrative Variances
 5 Rezonings
 11 Use Permits
 1 Conditional Use Permits
 4 Temporary Use Permits 
 9 Development Plans 
 1 Comprehensive Plan Amendment
 16 applications heard by the Board of Adjustment and 10 by 

Planning & Zoning Commission
 Revised all zoning applications, instruction sheets, and 

checklists – Uploaded to County website
 Planner began a complete rewrite of the Zoning Ordinance
 Working with a developer on a 10 lot subdivision – East of Globe
 2 New RV parks - Tonto Basin
 2 Wedding venues – Pine & Strawberry
 Bakery – Strawberry
 8-10 room lodge – Pine
 Development of 16 single family residences - Pine



LOOKING AHEAD IN 2020
 Installation of an information monitor  - Payson
 Safer and more secure lobby – Payson
 Approval of the rewritten Zoning Ordinance
 2 Permit Techs to obtain ICC Permit Tech certification
 Plan Reviewer to obtain ICC ADA certification
 Building Inspector to obtain ICC Building Inspector certification
 Permit software (Trakit) training – Health and Public Works Department staff participating
 Research the feasibility and cost to convert to a web-based version of the Trakit software and 

obtaining additional Trakit modules in order provide improved services to our customers such as 
self-scheduling of inspections, check online the status on plans in review, and emailing inspection 
results while still on the job site.

 Adoption of the 2018 International Building Codes and Building Code Ordinance
 Building Official to meet with realtors in Globe and Payson
 Continue to offer our services to the Towns of Hayden and Winkelman through an IGA
 IGAs in place with both the Town of Payson and City of Globe to allow us to permit and inspect 

County buildings in their jurisdictions
 Ready and able to permit, plan review, and inspect all new and remodeled County buildings 



QUESTIONS?

“A customer is the most important visitor on our 
premises, he is not dependent on us.  We are dependent 
on him.  He is not an interruption in our work.  He is the 
purpose of it.  He is not an outsider in our business.  He 
is part of it.  We are not doing him a favor by serving 
him.  He is doing us a favor by giving us an opportunity 
to do so.”

Mahatma Gandhi



   
ARF-5819   Regular Agenda Item     3. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/04/2020  
Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Debra Williams, 911 Coordinator
Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: FY2021 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

07/01/2020 through
06/30/2021

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Annual Arizona 9-1-1 Program Grant Application to Support FY2021 Gila
9-1-1 Network Operations

Background Information
Per the attached Arizona Department of Administration (ADOA), Office of
Grants and Federal Resources, Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for
fiscal year 2021, the System Administrator is responsible to apply for
funding on behalf of all Public Safety Answering Points (PSAPs) within the
9-1-1 System.  The Gila 9-1-1 Systems consists of the Gila County
Sheriff's Office PSAP and the Payson Police Department PSAP.   A
Memorandum of Understanding or Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) for
funding management is required between the administrating agency and
all PSAPs.  The IGA between Gila County and the Town of Payson is
undergoing minor revisions.  Once completed, it will be presented to the
Gila County Board of Supervisors and the Payson Town Council prior to
June 30, 2020, as required by the NOFA.

In a change from past years, in addition to requesting funding for the
9-1-1 ESInet infrastructure, the State 9-1-1 program office is taking into
consideration requests for qualified expenses that support other PSAP
operations.  These expenses are listed on the attached
BOSDraftBudget.pdf spreadsheet as NEW. 

Evaluation
The baseline operational request totals $202,001; new qualified expenses



The baseline operational request totals $202,001; new qualified expenses
total $123,417.  Total grant application amount is $325,418.   Funding
for PSAP personnel is not provided by this grant.

The application requires the following information for each PSAP: 

Scope of Work: Specific Project Request(s).
Collaborative Elements and Partners: Sustainability
Plan; Evaluation Plan. 
Budget Module and Narrative. 

The electronic grant application is in progress but is not completed as of
this date.   Submission date is no later than February 14, 2020.  Should
this request be approved, a copy of the final application will be submitted
to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors by that date.

Conclusion
Without these grant funds, the Gila County Sheriff's Office and the Payson
Police Department PSAPs would need to request annual budget funding to
support the 9-1-1 ESInet and other public safety communication services
from alternate sources.

Recommendation
Gila County Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd recommends that the Board of
Supervisors authorize the electronic submission of a grant application in
the amount of $325,418 for the Annual Arizona 9-1-1 Program Grant
Application to support FY2021 Gila 9-1-1 Network Operations to meet the
grant application deadline of February 14, 2020.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Sheriff's Office electronic
submission of the annual Arizona 9-1-1 Grant Program Application to the
Arizona Department of Administration, Office of Grants and Federal
Resources in the amount of $325,418 to support FY2021 Gila 9-1-1
Network Operations. (Debra Williams)

Attachments
ADOA-NOFA
FY2021 Budget Draft



1 
 

 
Arizona Department of Administration 

Office of Grants and Federal Resources 
Arizona 9-1-1 Program 

 

Arizona 9-1-1 Grant Program-FY2021  
Notice of Funding Availability 

Updated 12/18/2019 

 

 

Eligibility 

Arizona 9-1-1 System Administrators on behalf of 
Arizona 9-1-1 Public Safety Answering Points (PSAPs) in their system  

Eligible PSAPs not currently funded will be considered once criteria is met and 
submitted to the Arizona 9-1-1 Program  

 

Open Date: 

Applications may be started in eCivis on January 2nd, 2020 

 

Deadline:  

All applications are due by 3:00 p.m. on Friday February 14th, 2020 

 

For Assistance:   

If you have questions about this grant solicitation or are having difficulties with eCivis, 
please contact: 

Anna Haney, Senior Program Manager   Katje Benoit, Program Manager  
602-542-7015      602-542-3635    
anna.haney@azdoa.gov   katje.benoit@azdoa.gov 
 
        
 

mailto:anna.haney@azdoa.gov
mailto:katje.benoit@azdoa.gov


2 
 

Introduction 
The Office of Grants and Federal Resources, Arizona 9-1-1 Program, is publishing this 
notice to announce the availability of funds for the Arizona 9-1-1 Program to be 
distributed during FY 2021. The Arizona 9-1-1 Grant Program is designed to assist 
Public Safety Answering Points (PSAPs), in collaboration with regional and local 
jurisdictions, perform activities related to implementation and operation of their 
respective emergency telecommunication system.  
 
Arizona supports the use of these funds for:  

• Adoption and operation of Next Generation 9-1-1 (NG9-1-1) services and 
applications, including monthly recurring costs for 9-1-1 equipment, network, 
maintenance, and hardware and software support  

• Facilitate the migration of the State’s PSAPs to the next generation of 9-1-1 
capability  

• Migration to an Emergency Services IP-enabled network  
• Establishment of IP-backbone networks, connectivity, and application layer 

software infrastructure needed to interconnect the multitude of emergency 
response organizations statewide 

• Solutions that meet or exceed the National Emergency Number Association 
(NENA), Federal Communications Commission (FCC), international, and industry 
standards or requirements. 

 
The National Emergency Number Association (NENA) defines NG9-1-1 as:   

“An Internet Protocol (IP) based system comprised of managed Emergency 
Services IP networks (ESInets), functional elements (applications), and 
databases that replicate traditional E9-1-1 features and functions and provides 
additional capabilities. NG9-1-1 is designed to provide access to emergency 
services from all connected communications sources, and provide multimedia 
data capabilities for Public Safety Answering Points (PSAPs) and other 
emergency services organizations.”  

 
Eligibility 
Eligible applicants are Arizona 9-1-1 System Administrators, as identified in their 
approved Arizona 9-1-1 service plan. System Administrators must apply for funds on 
behalf of all PSAPs within their 9-1-1 System.    
 

• For a PSAP to be eligible for funding through the System Administrator, it must 
meet the following criteria:  
1. Monitor the 9-1-1 service system level of service to ensure that the standards 

in R2-1-407 are met. Once each fiscal year the PSAP manager shall obtain a 
report regarding the 9-1-1 level of service from the telephone company 



3 
 

servicing the telephone exchange area. If the report provided by the 
telephone company indicates that the required service level is not being met, 
the PSAP manager shall: 

a. Request the telephone company to prepare plans, specifications, and 
cost estimates to raise the level of service to that required in R2-1-407. 

b. Notify the Assistant Director under R2-1-406 if, based on information 
provided by the telephone company, modifications to the system are 
necessary.  

 
2. Provide service to all callers within its service area 24 hours each day, 7 days 

a week. To qualify as a primary or secondary PSAP, the PSAP must receive 
a minimum of three hundred (300) 9-1-1 emergency calls per month.  

i. If a PSAP does not receive a minimum of three hundred (300) 9-1-1 
emergency calls per month, the System Administrator must submit a 
letter of justification explaining why the PSAP should qualify for 
funding.  

 
3. Refer all calls entering the 9-1-1 service system that do not require a public or 

private safety response unit be dispatched to a non-9-1-1 telephone number. 
 
4. Designate a telephone number other than 9-1-1 as a backup number in case 

the 9-1-1 service system fails. The designated alternate telephone number 
shall be published in the public telephone directory by the local public safety 
agency. 
 

5. Develop and maintain a system for recording 9-1-1 calls received by the 
PSAP. The records shall be retained for at least 31 days from the date of the 
call and shall include the following information: 

a. Date and time the call is received. 
b. Nature of the problem, and 
c. Action taken by the dispatcher  

 
PSAPs that have not previously received funding under the Arizona 9-1-1 Program are 
encouraged to apply to this grant opportunity through their 9-1-1 System Administrator 
(System Administrator). As part of the application process, System Administrators must 
upload their current or updated approved service plan per Arizona 9-1-1 Program rules. 
 
If an unfunded PSAP would like to receive funding they must either:  

• Work with the System Administrator for inclusion in the existing system’s service 
plan  
OR 



4 
 

• Become a designated 9-1-1 System by sending a service plan for approval to the 
Arizona 9-1-1 Program at: az911@azdoa.gov  

 
Service plan requirements for new and existing PSAPs can be found at: 
https://grants.az.gov/sites/default/files/media/911AdminRules.pdf.  

 
Funding Available 
Funding will be available for multiple grants and allocated to each System Administrator 
Agency to pay, on behalf of the PSAPs, 9-1-1 system costs and approved projects that 
support the goals of the Arizona 9-1-1 Program.  
 
The estimated amount of grant funds available for the FY2021 year is $19,411,000. 
 
All projects funded under this program will be for twelve (12) consecutive months 
starting July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021.  Funds unexpended by the end of the 
contract period without an approved written extension must be returned to the State 9-1-
1 Program. 
 
Funding Priorities and Allowable Costs 
In accordance with the ARS § 41-704: 

• Necessary or appropriate equipment or service for implementing and operating 
emergency telecommunication services through political subdivisions of this 
state. Priority shall be given to establishing emergency telecommunication 
services in those areas of the state that are without emergency 
telecommunication services. 

• Monthly recurring costs of emergency telecommunication services, including 
expenditures for capital, maintenance and operation purposes. 

• A wireless carrier's costs associated with the provision, development, design, 
construction and maintenance of the wireless emergency telecommunication 
services in an amount that the wireless carrier has not recovered through the 
deduction mechanism specified in federal law. 

Administrative Cost:  
• Per ARS § 41-704, section B, subsection 2, allows five percent of the annual 

revenue in the fund to be used for necessary or appropriate costs or consultant 
fees.  

• Arizona 9-1-1 Program will utilize two-thirds of the five percent (3.33%) 
• System administrators may use up to one-third of the remaining five 

percent (1.67%) for local network management of contracts with public 
safety answering points for emergency telecommunication services.   

mailto:az911@azdoa.gov
https://grants.az.gov/sites/default/files/media/911AdminRules.pdf
https://www.azleg.gov/viewdocument/?docName=https://www.azleg.gov/ars/41/00704.htm
https://www.azleg.gov/viewdocument/?docName=https://www.azleg.gov/ars/41/00704.htm


5 
 

System Administrators may choose to utilize up to 1.67% of their overall award 
for administrative cost; however, this is not required and may be used for PSAP 
or System programmatic cost.  

• Eligible costs may include necessary costs associated with System 
Administrator function.   

MSAG updates/GIS projects 

• The databases within the NG9-1-1 environment are primarily GIS databases that 
provide critical functionality including call routing, location validation and, as it 
does today, 9-1-1 call mapping. In NG9-1- 1, GIS data takes the lead role in 
emergency call handling, beginning with the routing of calls to the appropriate 9-
1-1 PSAPs. PSAPs must be able to operate seamlessly across authority and 
even state and national boundaries. This NG capability requires additional and 
standardized data sets. MSAG updates and GIS projects that work toward NG9-
1-1 requirements are eligible for funding. 
 

Restrictions on Use of Funds 
Grant funds may not be used for the following activities:  

1. Costs associated with PSAP relocation, move, or remodel 
2. Back-up sites 
3. Termination charges as a result of closure or consolidation of a PSAP 
4. Late payment fees  
5. Equipment replacement due to force majeure or negligence on the behalf of the 

PSAP 



6 
 

Application and Submission Information (what an application should include) 

1. Scope of Work: 
The scope of work must respond to the solicitation. The following sections should 
be included as part of the scope of work:  

• How PSAPs in a 9-1-1 System are currently operating, as well as any 
plans to enhance services, including migrations to a NG9-1-1 network. 

• For each individual PSAP:  
• Number of 9-1-1 emergency calls monthly 

• Utilize statistics produced from the 9-1-1 equipment MIS 
program 

• Number of administrative calls supported by PSAP personnel for 
each PSAP 

• Utilize statistics produced from the 9-1-1 equipment MIS 
program 

• PSAP authorized staffing level to include positions staffed and 
vacant at the time of application 

• Specific projects PSAPs or 9-1-1 Systems would like to implement 
 

2. Project Timeline:  
Detail each project objective, activity, expected completion date, and responsible 
person or organization.  

• Specify for each project in the application request  
 

3. Collaborative Elements and Partners: 
Applicants should provide detail regarding their collaboration efforts with the 
PSAPs within their community, local units of government, and applicable public 
or private partnerships and all 9-1-1 stakeholders.  

 
4. Sustainability Plan: 

Applicants should identify future potential funding sources to ensure the projects 
and programs will be sustainable and ongoing beyond the funding availability. If 
an applicant is requesting funding for new projects, they must identify how the 
project will be sustained.   
 

5. Evaluation Plan:  
Applicant must identify how the program will be evaluated to determine if the 
program is meeting its stated goals. 
 

6. Project Goals and Objectives: 
Applicants must detail the goals of utilizing 9-1-1 Program funds to carry out 
specific projects detailed in their grant application. 



7 
 

7. Budget Module and Narrative: 
The budget module should include all PSAP requests within the 9-1-1 System. 
The budget module should provide the detailed computation for each budget line 
item, listing the total cost of each, and show how it was calculated. The budget 
must list itemized cost by category. Refer to the eCivis Application Help Guide to 
complete the budget request in the application.   
 
The following categories are eligible for funding: 

a) Wireline 
b) Wireless  
c) NG9-1-1 expenses  
d) 1.67% of the overall award may be utilized by the System 

Administrators for local 9-1-1 network management costs.   
 

Below are examples of where 9-1-1 budget requests would fit in the standard 
budget categories that are in the eCivis application.  
 

1. Personnel:  
• Costs associated with administrative oversight of managing local 

contracts (1.67%)  
• Costs associated with MSAG/GIS coordinator, if it is an employee 

of the System Administrator’s agency 
 

2. Fringe Benefits: 
• Employee related expenses associated with administrative 

oversight of managing local contracts and/or MSAG/GIS 
coordinator (1.67%) 
 

3. Travel: 
• Travel requests for training, conferences, etc. related to System 

Administrator and/or MSAG/GIS coordinator functions  
 

4. Equipment: 
• Logging recorders  
• Software and/or hardware support 
• Servers  
• PSAP Positions  
• 9-1-1 customer premise equipment- upgrades and replacement  

 
5. Supplies:  

• Costs associated with supplies related to System Administrator 
functions  
 



8 
 

6. Contractual: Any vendor contracts the PSAP or System Administrator 
needs to provide 9-1-1 service, including necessary and appropriate 
consulting services or reoccurring monthly bills 

• Wireline 
o Network 

 EM Trunks 
 Long distance 
 EM/ES Trunks 
 CPE Maintenance 

• Wireless 
o Wireless Cost Recovery 
o ALI Data Extract  

• NG911 
o Managed Services 
o Expenses related to the procurement of ESInet or NG9-1-1 

core services 
• GIS 

o GIS Project - hiring of GIS company to complete a GIS 
project for PSAP or System   

o Costs associated with MSAG/GIS coordinator, if it is an 
outside vendor 
 

7. Construction: not allowable  
 

8. Other Costs:  
• Training or education assistance related to System Administrator 

and/or MSAG/GIS coordinator functions. 
 
Budget Narrative: 
The budget narrative should thoroughly and clearly describe every category of expense 
listed in the budget request. The narrative must provide sufficient explanation of each 
budget category requested in order to establish the need for the funds in each category 
and the basis for the figures. Provide appropriate documentation, including quotes from 
service provider or contractor, where applicable. This may be done on a separate 
document and uploaded with the application or utilize the budget justification text box.   
   
Special Requirements 
There are three program specific criteria in the application. Applicants should upload the 
corresponding required documents:  

1. Program Specific Criteria #1: New or updated Service Plan 
a. If updates are needed, please submit as appropriate. If updates are 

currently in process, a letter by the System Administrator may be 
submitted stating that updates are in process and a tentative date of when 
the updates will be complete.   



9 
 

i. New service plan templates and checklist can be found at: 
https://az911.gov/9-1-1-system-administrators/service-plan  

b. If no changes are necessary, a letter stating such must be provided. 
 

 
2. Program Specific Criteria #2: If current MOUs need to be renewed for FY21, 

submission of the renewed MOUs will be required prior to July 1, 2020 or before 
funding can be released. Otherwise, a letter certifying that MOUs are current will 
need to be submitted. 

  
 

How to Submit Applications 
All applications must be submitted through eCivis. Paper applications will not be 
accepted. User guides may be accessed at the link below:  
https://az911.gov/funding/9-1-1-grant-program/arizona-9-1-1-fy2021  
 
System Administrators must submit the application on behalf of PSAPs within their 9-1-
1 System as identified by the service plan. Individual PSAP applications will not be 
accepted.  
 

Applications must be submitted by February 14, 2020 at 3:00 p.m. Late application 
submissions will not be considered for funding.  
 
Reporting Requirements 
Report Type Due Date 
Programmatic Reports 
Annual 9-1-1 Call 
Statistics 

March 15th  

GIS Accuracy Report June 15th  
GIS Data Twice a year upon 

request 
Traffic Busy Study 
Report 

April 25th  

Annual Narrative August 28th  
Financial Reports 
Monthly request for 
reimbursement 

Monthly on the 25th  

 
Financial Reports: 
The 9-1-1 System Administrator will submit all invoices and requests for reimbursement 
for PSAPs within their system to the 9-1-1 Program, through a monthly finance report in 
eCivis. Invoices must be from approved categories only and show date of service, 
expenses incurred, and line item detail.  
 

https://az911.gov/9-1-1-system-administrators/service-plan
https://az911.gov/funding/9-1-1-grant-program/arizona-9-1-1-fy2021


10 
 

Finance reports will be due on the 25th of every month. The 9-1-1 Program will review, 
approve, and process reimbursements/payments to the System Administrator within 10 
days. 

 
Programmatic Reports as part of Grant Award: 

1. Annual 9-1-1 Call Statistics: 
The Annual 9-1-1 Call Statistic report is needed for each PSAP and should 
contain the following parameters: 

• Report is based on the previous calendar year (i.e. January 1, 2019 – 
December 31, 2019) 

• Report contains only incoming 9-1-1 calls. Do not include transfers 
• Report includes wireline and wireless statistics reported separately for 

each month and cumulative for the calendar year 
• The report must originate from the 9-1-1 Management Information 

System (MIS).  CAD reports and independent calculations cannot be 
accepted 

2. GIS Accuracy Report: 
Information on the GIS Accuracy Report and the reporting guidelines can be 
found within Chapter 2 and Chapter 4 of the Arizona NG9-1-1 GIS Guidelines 
and Best Practices document.  A reporting template is available upon request. 

3. GIS Data: 
9-1-1 System must share GIS data, at minimum, two (2) times per fiscal year, 
with the Arizona 9-1-1 Program in order to support ongoing statewide initiatives.  
Data shared will not be distributed for commercial use and is pursuant to A.R.S. 
§ 37-178. 

• The following data layers will be shared although additional data layers 
may be requested dependent on the statewide initiative. 
• Road Network 
• Address Points 
• Emergency Service Zone and/or Emergency Service Boundaries to 

include PSAP, Law, Fire, and EMS 
• Community Boundary 

4. Traffic Busy Study Report: 
Arizona Administrative Code R2-1-407 requires that a 9-1-1 service system “be 
designed and operated to provide service that enables no more than 1 call out of 
100 incoming calls to receive a busy signal on the first dialing attempt during the 
busy hour of an average week during the busy month.”  A Traffic Busy Study is 
provided by the Arizona 9-1-1 System Service Provider for each PSAP. 

5. Annual Narrative: 

https://grants.az.gov/sites/default/files/media/AZ_NG911_GIS_Guideline_Best%20Practices_v2.0_111717.pdf
https://grants.az.gov/sites/default/files/media/AZ_NG911_GIS_Guideline_Best%20Practices_v2.0_111717.pdf
https://www.azleg.gov/viewdocument/?docName=https://www.azleg.gov/ars/37/00178.htm
https://www.azleg.gov/viewdocument/?docName=https://www.azleg.gov/ars/37/00178.htm
https://grants.az.gov/sites/default/files/media/911AdminRules.pdf


11 
 

An annual narrative template will be provided to System Administrators to report 
on activity and accomplishments throughout the fiscal year.  

 
Award Process: 
The GFR staff will prepare 9-1-1 System awards which will be announced April 3, 2020. 
Funds will be disbursed to Systems after an approved financial reimbursement request 
and in accordance with the final approved award for the grant period of July 1, 2020 
through June 30, 2021. 



 

Passthrough Agency: Report Date: 43,847$        

Program: Requested By: Debra Williams

Stage: dwilliams@gilacountyaz.gov

Budget Items - BASELINE

Category GL Account Title Units Unit Cost Extended Cost Direct Cost Indirect Cost Cost Share Type

        

        

   Conference  APCO/NENA 1  $                1,500  $                  1,500  $                1,500  Direct Cost 

        

   Conference  APCO/NENA 1  $                1,500  $                  1,500  $                1,500  Direct Cost 

        

   Conference  APCO/NENA 1  $                   500  $                     500  $                   500  Direct Cost 

 $                3,500 

        

 $                        -   

      

      

   Administration  Office supplies 1  $                   500  $                     500  $                   500  Direct Cost 

   Cell Phone 1  $                   500  $                     500  $                   500  Direct Cost 

1  $                1,000   

        

        

   AzTelco-TDS  Gila 911 Network - GCSO 1  $                5,191  $                  5,191  $                5,191  Direct Cost 

   CenturyLink  Gila 911 Network - GCSO 1  $                   422  $                     422  $                   422  Direct Cost 

    

   CenturyLink  PSAP - Payson PD 1  $            105,292  $              105,292  $            105,292  Direct Cost 

   CenturyLink  PSAP - GilaCo Sheriff's Office 1  $              79,372  $                79,372  $              79,372  Direct Cost 

    

   CenturyLink  PSAP - Payson PD 1  $                1,972  $                  1,972  $                1,972  Direct Cost 

   CenturyLink  GilaCo Sheriff's Office 1  $                1,960  $                  1,960  $                1,960  Direct Cost 

 $            194,209   

        

        

   APCO  Conference Registrations 1  $                1,500  $                  1,500  $                1,500  Direct Cost 

   NENA  Conference Registrations 1  $                1,500  $                  1,500  $                1,500  Direct Cost 

 Contractual Total 

 Other - Administration 1.67% 

 Supplies 

 Office Supplies 

 Supplies Total 

 Contractual - Operating Budget 

 Wireline 

 NG911 Network ESInet Bundle 

ADOA 9-1-1 Program Office - FY2020 Budget Draft

 Text to 911 

 Transportation 

 Per Diem 

 Travel Total 

 Equipment 

 Equipment Total 

Arizona Sub Recipient Portal

Arizona 9-1-1 Grant Program-FY2021

Pre-Award

 Travel 

 Lodging 

 911 Administration 

Page 1 of 2

mailto:dwilliams@gilacountyaz.gov


   NENA  Membership 1  $                   150  $                     150  $                   150  Direct Cost 

   APCO  Membership 1  $                     92  $                       92  $                     92  Direct Cost 

   APCO  RETAINS Subscription 1  $                     50  $                       50  $                     50  Direct Cost 

 $                3,292 

 $            202,001   

Budget Items - NEW

Category GL Account Title Units Unit Cost Extended Cost Direct Cost Indirect Cost Cost Share Type

        

    

   CenturyLink MS  GilaCo Sheriff's Office 1  $              26,457  $                26,457  $              26,457  Direct Cost 

  CenturyLink TT911  GilaCo Sheriff's Office 1  $                1,960  $                  1,960  $                1,960  Direct Cost 

 Contractor  GCSO 1  $              75,000  $                75,000  $              75,000  Direct Cost 

 Contractor  GCSO 1  $              10,000  $                10,000  $              10,000  Direct Cost 

 $            113,417   

        

 Dispatch  APCO/NENA 1  $              10,000  $                10,000  $              10,000  Direct Cost 

 $              10,000 

 $            123,417   

 $            325,418   

 NEW: Training 

 Other Projects Total 

 New Items Total 

 Total Budget Request 

 NEW: NG911 Data Validation, Maintenance and Improvement 

 NEW: Quality Assurance Implementation 

 Contractual Total 

 Other - Payson PD 

 Contractual - Operating Budget 

 NEW: Additional 911 Seat  

 Other Projects Total 

 Baseline Total 

Page 2 of 2



   
ARF-5853   Regular Agenda Item     3. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/04/2020  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Shannon Boyer, Executive Administrative Asst.
Department: Public Works

Information
Request/Subject
Accept or reject a Citizens' Petition to begin the process to designate E.
Granny Jones Lane from SR 288 to the north boundary of parcel
305-26-007H also shown as Parcel 3A on Record of Survey 4053, Gila
County Records as a primitive road.

Background Information
'On December 11, 2019, Gila County Public Works received a Citizens'
Petition to establish E. Granny Jones Lane from SR 288 to the north
boundary of parcel 305-26-007H, also shown as Parcel 3A on Record of
Survey 4053, Gila County Records as a primitive road. The road is in the
community of Young.

Evaluation
The petition and the roads meet the requirements of Public Works Policy
No. PWS-001 - Guidelines to Primitive Roads which was approved by the
Board of Supervisors on October 3, 2003, revised on December 1, 2004,
and revised again on February 19, 2019.

Conclusion
Easements from property owners will need to be granted to Gila County.
Once the easements are accepted by the County, providing maintenance
as described in the Primitive Road Policy will consist of grading the roads
a few times a year. Providing maintenance on these roads will not reduce
the level of service to other roads in the Gila County Maintained Roadway
System.

Recommendation
The Public Works Department Director recommends that the Board



The Public Works Department Director recommends that the Board
accept the Citizens' Petition to begin the process to establish E. Granny
Jones Lane from SR 288 to the north boundary parcel 305-26-007H, also
shown as Parcel 3A on Record of Survey 4053, Gila County Records as a
primitive road.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to accept or reject a Citizens' Petition to
begin the process to establish E. Granny Jones Lane from SR 288 to the
north boundary of parcel 305-26-007H, also shown as Parcel 3A on
Record of Survey 4053, Gila County Records, as a primitive road. (Steve
Sanders)

Attachments
Citizen's Petition
Map







   
ARF-5863   Regular Agenda Item     3. C.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/04/2020  
Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2020-2021 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

02-04-20 to 04-03-21 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Request to award a contract in response to Request for Proposals No.
102119-Consultation Services: Health Prevention and Surveillance
Services.

Background Information
The Gila County Public Health Department (GCPHD) seeks to improve:
outcomes for residents affected by the current public health opioid
epidemic, and increase program effectiveness and utilization of
immunization programs for community members and vulnerable
populations. The GCPHD is seeking consultation services from local
Arizona, health-focused consultants in the areas of opioid prevention
services, and immunization marketing and research programming for
rural communities. The GCPHD has allocated $60,000 for opioid
prevention and $40,000 for immunization marketing and research
consultative services. We are requesting bids that comprehensively
address prevention services in these areas.

The GCPHD will accept proposals from organizations with the following
types and levels of experience as a public health consultant: 1) Individual
or agency that employs a professional with a completed Master of Public
Health from an accredited university; 2) a minimum of three (3) years of
experience with public health marketing, experience acquired
concurrently is considered acceptable; 3) must document all prior
experience working with opioid prevention, immunization marketing,
immunization surveillance and facilitating public health boards; and 4)



eExperience with local rural public health agencies using grant
management principles is preferred.

The GCPHD currently has funding through the Arizona Department of
Health Services (ADHS) to provide prescription drug overdose prevention
strategies for Gila County residents. Recently GCPHD received funding to
establish the Gila County Overdose Fatality Review Team to collect and
review data on the causes of deaths and recommend a change in policies
and programs that will decrease the number of Gila County overdose
deaths. The GCPHD was the first health department in Arizona to
implement a naloxone distribution center in Globe and Payson, Arizona.
The GCPHD has established partnerships with the Copper Basin Coalition
and Sonoran Prevention Works. These partnerships focus on educating
the community on safe medication disposal, introduction of harm
reduction philosophies, usage, the importance of naloxone, and referrals
to treatment and services. Additionally, immunization coverage rates in
Arizona continue to fall. The ability for parents to opt their child out of
vaccination is simple and is being done more frequently throughout
Arizona. This has resulted in families and communities being at increased
risk for vaccine-preventable diseases. The ADHS has identified
approaches that could aid in addressing this negative trend and increase
vaccine coverage rates across all Arizona communities.

The overall goal of the consultation and marketing support is to apply
comprehensive evidence-based strategies to improve health outcomes and
well-being for Gila County residents.

Evaluation
The purpose of this request is to implement collaborative and
comprehensive public health approaches and public health marketing
supporting public health opioid prevention and surveillance and for
immunization/vaccination prevention, marketing, and surveillance. To
comply with mandated grant guidelines, Gila County must consult with a
certified health professional, who has an extensive background in public
health research, meeting facilitation, and marketing of rural public health
services. Without consulting these services Gila County would have to
employee multiple part-time employees that have these skills and without
a guarantee for long-term funding.

RFP No. 102119 was emailed to seven contractors; advertised in the
Arizona Silver Belt newspaper and posted on the County website. Gila
County received one bid from Guild Health Consulting. Evaluation of the
proposal was conducted by the Director and Deputy Director of the
Health & Emergency Management Department and was found to be in full
compliance with the bid guidelines.



compliance with the bid guidelines.

Bid responses were opened in a public setting and evaluated in
accordance with A.R.S. Section 41-2533, Competitive Sealed Bidding.

Conclusion
To meet grant requirements that support our Community Health
Assessment goals and objectives, the GCPHD seeks to improve: outcomes
for residents affected by the current public health opioid epidemic; and
increase program effectiveness and utilization of immunization programs
for community members and vulnerable populations. GCPHD is seeking
consultation services from local Arizona, health-focused consultants in
the areas of opioid prevention services, and immunization marketing and
research programming for rural communities. The GCPHD has allocated
$60,000 for opioid prevention and $40,000 for immunization marketing
and research consultative services. We are requesting bids that
comprehensively address prevention services in these areas.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Finance Director and the Health &
Emergency Management Department Director that the Board of
Supervisors award a contract to Guild Health Consulting in the amount of
$100,000 in response to RFP No. 102119-Consultation Services: Health
Prevention and Surveillance Services.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to review the bid submitted for Request
for Proposals No. 102119-Consultation Services: Health Prevention and
Surveillance Services; award to Guild Health Consulting in the amount
of $100,000; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the award
contract. (Michael O'Driscoll)

Attachments
Contract No. 102119
As Read Bid Results
Quote Tabulation Form
Request for Proposal No. 102119



























































































































      BID  

TITLE:

      BID              DUE

      NO.: DATE:
 

 

QUOTE TABULATION FORM

GILA COUNTY

GUILD HEALTH CONSULTING

COLL CUNSULTING

R

A

N

K

I

N

G

WOSZA LLC

Consultation Services-Health Prevention and Surveillance Services

102119 December 18, 2019

COMMENTS

CROSSOVER INNOVATIONS

BIDDER FIRM NAME BID AMOUNT

FLEX BILT





 

 

 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 0 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) NO. 102119 
 
 

CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE 
 
 
 
 
  

BIDDER’S INFORMATION 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 
Tim R. Humphrey, Chairman 
Woody Cline, Vice Chairman 
Tommie C. Martin, Member 

 
 
 

*COUNTY MANAGER* 
James Menlove 

 
 

 

 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 1 
 

                                                              GILA COUNTY 
NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR SEALED PROPOSALS NO. 102119 

CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE 

 

Notice is hereby given that Gila County is requesting proposals from qualified Contractors to develop a 
program for Consultation Services: Health Prevention and Surveillance.  
 
SUBMITTAL DUE DATE:      3:00 PM, MST, December 18, 2019 
 

RETURN PROPOSAL TO:      GILA COUNTY  
    FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

        1400 EAST ASH STREET 
        GLOBE, ARIZONA  85501 
 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that sealed competitive proposals for the material or services as specified will be 
received by the Gila County Finance Department, until the time and date cited. 
 
Proposals received by the correct time and date will be publicly opened and recorded thereafter in the finance 
department Copper Conference Room or other site, which may be designated.  Any proposals received later than 
the date and time specified above will be returned unopened.  Late proposals shall not be considered.  The 
prevailing clock shall be the atomic clock in the reception area of the Copper Building. 
 
All proposals shall be made on the request for sealed proposals forms included in this RFP No. 102119 package 
and shall include all applicable taxes. 
 
Interested bidders may obtain a copy of this solicitation by calling the Gila County Finance Department at 928-
402-4355 or by clicking on the link: 
http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php and downloading the file.  
Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read the entire request for proposal. 
 
Any questions regarding this request for proposals shall be submitted in writing and directed to:  Betty Hurst, 
Contracts Administrator, at bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov, 928-402-4355. 
 
The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, or to accept any proposal, or to waive 
any informality in any proposal, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest of Gila County.  All 
procurement activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and regulations of the Gila 
County Procurement Code.  A copy of the code is available for review in the Clerk of the Board’s office, Globe, 
AZ. 
 
Dates advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt: November 27, 2019 and, December 04, 2019 
 
 
Signed: _____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 Woody Cline, Chairman of the Board  
 
 
Signed: _____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 The Gila County Attorney’s Office  
 
 
 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php
http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php
mailto:jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov
mailto:jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov


RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

     CONTENT           PAGE 

 
 
Notice of Solicitation.................................................................................................................................. 1 

Table of Contents ....................................................................................................................................... 2 

Intent ......................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Scope of Work ........................................................................................................................................ 4-5 

Exhibit “A”; Instructions to Bidders ......................................................................................................... 6-8 

 Preparation of Sealed Bid .......................................................................................................................... 6 
 Amendments ............................................................................................................................................. 7 
 Inquiries ..................................................................................................................................................... 7 
 Late Proposals ........................................................................................................................................... 7 
 Submittal Bid Format ............................................................................................................................. 7-8 

General Terms and Conditions .............................................................................................................. 9-10 

 Award of Contract ..................................................................................................................................... 9 
 Protests ..................................................................................................................................................... 9 
 Laws & Ordinances .................................................................................................................................. 10 

Exhibit “B”; Contract Award Agreement ............................................................................................. 11-15 

 Overcharges by Antitrust Violations ........................................................................................................ 11 
 Authority to Contract .............................................................................................................................. 11 
 Contract Amendments ............................................................................................................................ 11 
 Contract Default ...................................................................................................................................... 11 
 Right to Assurance ................................................................................................................................... 12 
 Co-op Intergovernmental Purchasing Agreement .................................................................................. 12 
 Cancellation of County Contracts ............................................................................................................ 12 
 Termination of Contract .......................................................................................................................... 12 

Indemnification Clause ............................................................................................................................ 13 
Insurance Requirements .................................................................................................................... 13-15 

 Exhibit “C”; Minimum Specifications and Information ........................................................................ 16-17 

 Section 1.0; General Purpose .................................................................................................................. 16 
 Section 2.0; Bid Pricing & Term ............................................................................................................... 16 
 Section 3.0; Negotiations ........................................................................................................................ 16 
 

Qualification and Certification Forms .................................................................................................. 18-19 

Price Sheet ............................................................................................................................................... 20 

Reference List .......................................................................................................................................... 21 

No Collusion Form.................................................................................................................................... 22 

Certification Regarding Debarment……………………………………………………………………………………………………….23 

Intentions Concerning Subcontracting ..................................................................................................... 24 

Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance .................................................................................................... 25 

Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment ................................................................................................... 26 

Offer Page ................................................................................................................................................ 27 

Acceptance of Offer Page ......................................................................................................................... 28 

 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 3 
 

INTENT 
                               

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR: Consultation Services: Health Prevention and Surveillance 
 

INTENT: 
 

     Gila County Public Health Department (GCPHD) seeks to improve: outcomes for residents effected by the 
current public health opioid epidemic; and increase program effectiveness and utilization of immunization 
programs for community members and vulnerable populations. GCPHD is seeking consultation services from 
local Arizona, health focused, consultants in the areas of opioid prevention services, and immunization 
marketing and research programming, for rural communities. GCPHD has allocated $60,000 for opioid 
prevention, and $40,000 for immunization marketing and research consultative services.  We are requesting 
bids that comprehensively address prevention services in these areas. 

 

 
 

 
For the purposes of this Request for Proposal, “Contractor” is defined as an individual or an entity 
who submits a bid. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 4 
 

SCOPE OF WORK:  
 

Consultation Services: Health Prevention and Surveillance  

 

Opioids Prevention 

GCPHD currently has funding through the Arizona Department of Health Services to provide prescription drug 

overdose prevention strategies for Gila County residents.  Recently GCPHD received funding to establish the 

Gila County Overdose Fatality Review Team to collect and review data on the causes of deaths and recommend 

change in policies and programs that will decrease the number of Gila County overdose deaths.  GCPHD was 

the first health department in Arizona to implement a naloxone distribution center in Globe and Payson Arizona. 

GCPHD has established partnerships with Copper Basin Coalition and Sonoran Prevention Works.  These 

partnerships focus on educating the community on safe medication disposal, introduction of harm reduction 

philosophies, usage and importance of naloxone and referrals to treatment and services. 

 

Goals:  

1. Facilitate Fatality Review Team to address opioid mortality rates in Gila County 

2. Expand community naloxone program in Gila County   

 

Immunization 

Immunization coverage rates in Arizona continue to fall. The ability for parents to opt their child out of 

vaccination is simple and is being done more frequently throughout Arizona. This has resulted in families and 

communities being at increased risk for vaccine preventable diseases. Arizona Department of Health Services 

(ADHS) has identified the following approaches that could aid in addressing this negative trend and increase 

vaccine coverage rates across all Arizona communities: 

1. Improve vaccine education to professionals who will interact with parents 

2. Implement public information campaigns to promote vaccination 

3. Evaluate the effectiveness of current vaccine education pilot in reducing exemptions 

4. Ensure private providers continue to provide childhood vaccination services 

5. Determine best practices for improving vaccination coverage 

6. Partner with the Department of Education to increase school vaccination rates and compliance 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS TO ADDRESS GOAL 1: 

1. Provide vaccination education materials for traditional VFC vaccination providers. 

2. Provide vaccination education materials for non-traditional vaccination providers and health educators 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS TO ADDRESS GOAL 2: 

1. Develop plans for regular pro-vaccination campaign messaging. 

2. Develop pro-vaccination social media messaging. 

 

RECOMMENDATION TO ADDRESS GOAL 3: 

1. Utilize 2019/2020 Immunization Data Report data to assess education course effectiveness in reducing 

the use of personal beliefs exemptions. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS TO ADDRESS GOAL 4: 

2. Work with vaccination billers and vaccination payers to identify barriers to reimbursement for vaccine 

counseling. 

3. Provide materials that clearly define the benefits of VFC program participation and how to enroll. 

4. Review the recommendations from the Vaccine Financing and Availability Advisory Committee. 

 

RECOMMENDATION TO ADDRESS GOAL 5: 

1. Conduct a comprehensive literature review of the 50 states to identify strategies implemented in other 

states that have proven to be effective at improving vaccination coverage. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS TO ADDRESS GOAL 6: 
1. Coordinate with Arizona Department of Education (ADE) staff to identify areas that would benefit from 

pro-vaccination communication. 

 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 5 
 

 
MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 
 

GCDPH will accept proposals from organizations with the following types and levels of experience as a public 
health consultant 

• Individual or agency that employs a professional with a completed Master of Public Health form an 
accredited university. 

• A minimum of three (3) years of experience with public health marketing, experience acquired 
concurrently is considered acceptable.  

• Must document all prior experience working with opioid prevention, immunization marketing, 
immunization surveillance, and facilitating public health boards. 

• Failure to meet these Minimum Qualifications will result in a proposal being found non-responsive and 
eliminated from consideration. 

• Experience with local rural public health agencies using grant management principles is preferred.  

 
Qualifying experience includes:  
 
 

EXAMINATION INFORMATION:  

 
This examination utilizes an evaluation of Education and Experience (E&E) weighted 100% and is based 
solely upon information provided within the application. Information provided with the application will 
be assessed in relation to the elements of the scope of work and linked to the knowledge, skills, and 
abilities required for the work.  
 
Special care should be taken to submitting a complete description of educational qualifications and 
experience relevant to the typical tasks, scope, and minimum qualifications stated on this 
announcement. Supplemental information will be accepted but competitors should read the 
announcement carefully to determine what kind of information will be useful to those individuals 
completing the evaluation.  
 
The County reserves the right to revise the examination plan to better meet the needs of the service if 
the circumstances under which this examination was planned change. Competitors shall be notified of 
such revisions.  
 
SCOPE: Rankings will be determined based on the depth and breadth of professional education and 
experience beyond what is minimally required.  

 

It is the intent of Gila County to award a contract to a qualified Contractor for the Consultation Services: Health 

Prevention and Surveillance.   

 

See page 20 of Bid Packet for Price Proposal. 

 

INFORMATION REQUESTS 

All requests for additional information shall be put in writing and directed to: Betty Hurst, Contracts 

Administrator, (928) 402-4355,  bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov.  

 

 

mailto:jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov
mailto:jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov


RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 6 
 

 
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

 
IMPORTANT:  EXHIBIT “A”, INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS AND EXHIBIT “B”, BIDDERS AWARD AGREEMENT ARE 
BASIC CONTENT TO GILA COUNTY BID PACKAGES.  INDIVIDUAL BIDS MAY REQUIRE DIFFERENT LANGUAGE FOR 
INSTRUCTIONS AND AWARD AGREEMENTS.  WHERE APPLICABLE, SUCH CHANGES WILL APPEAR IN EXHIBIT 
“C”, MINIMUM PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS AND INFORMATION AND TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER THE LANGUAGE 
APPEARING IN EXHIBITS “A” & “B”. 
 

EXHIBIT “A” INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
 
Preparation of Sealed Proposal 

A. Sealed proposals will be received by the Gila County Finance Department, from individuals and 
Contractors to deliver the product(s), goods and services contained, to establish a contract for 
specified locations within Gila County.  The county seeks sealed proposals only from qualified, 
experienced Contractors able to provide services which are, in all respects, responsive to the 
specifications.  All proposals shall be on the forms provided in this request for sealed proposal 
package.  It is permissible to copy these forms if required but copies must have original signatures. 

 
B. Before submitting its proposal and qualification form each Contractor shall familiarize itself with the 

scope of work, laws, regulations and other factors affecting performance of work.  It shall carefully 
correlate its observations with requirements of the Contract and otherwise satisfy itself of the 
expense and difficulties attending the performance of the work.  The submission of a proposal will 
constitute a representation of compliance by the Contractor.  There will be no subsequent financial 
adjustment, other than that provided for by the Contract, for lack of such familiarization. 

 
C. Contractors must complete the proposal and qualifications forms provided in this request for proposal 

package in full, original signature in ink, by the person(s) authorized to sign the proposal and to be 
submitted at the time of bid and made a part of this contract.  The county will use the proposal and 
qualifications form in evaluating the capacity of Contractor(s) to perform the scope of services as set 
forth in the Contract.  Failure of any Contractor to complete and submit the price sheet and signature 
and offer page at time and place of opening shall be grounds for automatic disqualification of the 
Contractor(s) from further consideration. 

 
D. The names of all persons authorized to sign the proposal must also be legibly printed below the 

signature. Evidence of the authority of the person signing shall be furnished. 
 

E. The full name of each person or company interested in the request for proposal shall be listed on the 
proposal. 

 
F. No alterations in proposals, or in the printed forms therefor, by erasures, interpolations, or otherwise 

will be acceptable unless each such alteration is signed or initialed by the Contractor; if initialed, the 
county may require the Contractor to identify any alteration so initialed. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 7 
 

 

Instructions to Bidders continued…. 

 
Addendum 

Any addendum issued as a result of any change in this request for sealed proposal must be acknowledged by all 
Contractors in the following manner: 
 

1. Completion of the bidder checklist & addenda acknowledgment form, page 27. 
2. Copies of all addenda must be attached to the submittal. 
 

Failure to indicate receipt of addenda in the above manner may result in a proposal being rejected as non-
responsive. 
 

Inquiries 

Any questions related to this request for proposal must be directed to those whose names appear on the notice.  
The Gila County Supervisors may require all questions be submitted in writing.  Any correspondence related to 
a request for proposals should refer to the appropriate request for proposals number, page, and paragraph 
number.  However, the Contractor(s) must not place the request for proposal number on the outside of an 
envelope containing questions since such an envelope may be identified as a sealed proposal and may not be 
opened until after the official request for proposal due date and time.  Questions received after 3:00 P.M., 
Thursday, December 12, 2019 will not be answered.   Only questions answered by formal written addenda will 
be binding.  Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. 
 

 

Late Proposals 

Any proposal received later than the date and time specified on the notice for sealed proposal will be returned 
unopened.  Late proposals shall not be considered.  Any Contractor submitting a late proposal shall be so notified. 
 

 

Submittal Proposal Format: 

It is required that One (1) Original and Two (2) copies (3 TOTAL) with original signatures on all three (3) of the 
proposal and all forms shall be submitted.  The county will not be liable for any cost incident to the preparation 
of proposal, materials, reproductions, presentations, copy-right infringements, etc.  It is permissible to copy 
these forms if required.  Facsimiles or mailgrams shall not be considered.   Spiral bound proposals are not 
permitted. Failure to include all required documents, all with original signatures, may invalidate the bid. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 8 
 

Instructions to Bidders continued… 

 
1. By signature in the offer section of the offer and acceptance page, Contractor certifies: 
 

A. The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 
 

B. The Contractor has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any 
economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or 
service to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer. 
 

C. In order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs, improve timely acquisition and cost of 
supplies and to improve efficiency and economy of procurement, any political subdivision, county, 
city, town, etc., of the State of Arizona, will be allowed by the Contractor awarded the contract to 
provide the same services, at the same prices stated in the proposal.  Delivery charges may 
differentiate depending on geographical location. 

 
2. Proposals submitted early may be modified or withdrawn by notice to the party receiving proposals at the 

place and prior to the time designated for receipts of proposals. 
 
3. The county is not responsible for any Contractor’s errors or omissions.  Negligence in preparing an offer 

confers no right to the Contractor unless the Contractor discovers and corrects such errors prior to the 
proposal deadline. 

 

 

The Proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope, a minimum of Three (3) copies with original signatures 
shall be provided by the Bidder.  The words “SEALED PROPOSAL” with Proposal Title “CONSULTATION 
SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE”, Proposal No., “102119”, Date “December 18, 2019”, 
and time “3:00 PM” of proposal opening shall be written on the envelope.  The Bidder(s) shall assume full 
responsibility for timely delivery at the location designated in the notice.  Spiral bound proposals are not 
permitted. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 9 
 

 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Award of Contract   
 

1. The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to award any proposal by individual line item, 
by group of line items or as total, or any part thereof, whichever is deemed to be in the best interests 
of, and most advantageous to the County of Gila. 

 
a.   Notwithstanding any other provisions of the RFP, the county reserves the right to:  

1.   Waive any immaterial defects or informalities; or 
2.   Reject any or all proposals; or portions thereof; or 
3.   Reissue a request for proposal. 

 
2. It is the responsibility of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to let the county contracts to the lowest 

responsive and responsible Contractor(s).  To ensure that all Contractors are experienced, reasonably 
equipped and adequately financed to meet their contractual obligations, a determination of 
responsibility shall be made by the Gila County Board of Supervisors prior to contract award. 

 
3. Further, the County reserves the right to reject the proposal of any Contractor(s) who has previously 

failed to perform adequately after having once been awarded a prior proposal for furnishing and 
installing materials similar in nature or providing similar services. 

 
4. All submitted forms provided in this request for proposal will be reviewed by the Gila County attorney 

and Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 

5. Those Contractor(s) who, in the opinion of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, are best qualified and 
whose proposals are most advantageous to the county may be invited to appear before the Board for 
an oral review. 

 
6. The apparent successful Contractor shall sign and file with the county, within ten (10) days after the 

date of the notice of intent to award, all documents necessary to successfully execute the contract. 
 

Protests 

Only other Contractors who have submitted a timely proposal have the right to protest.  A protest of an award 
must be filed within ten (10) days after the award by the Board of Supervisors.  A protest must be in writing and 
must include the following: 
 

A. Name, address and telephone number of the protester. 
B. Signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 
C. Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 
D. Detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant documents. 
E. The form of relief requested. 

 
All protests shall be sent to the attention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, 
Arizona 85501. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 10 
 

 
 

General Terms & Conditions continued… 

 
 
Laws and Ordinances 

This agreement shall be governed and enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona and Gila County.  
Contractor shall maintain in current status all federal, state and local licenses and permits required for the 
operation of the business conducted by the Contractor.  The Contractor shall comply with the applicable 
provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable 
federal regulations under the act. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 11 
 

EXHIBIT “B” CONTRACT AWARD AGREEMENT 

This exhibit shall serve as an example of the contract agreement to any Contractor, its agents, subcontractors, 
or representatives, awarded this or any portion of this contract by the county, i.e. by submitting proposals to 
this solicitation requiring sealed proposals, it does hereby agree to the following provisions.  Proof of acceptance 
of these provisions will be the Contractor’s signature(s) appearing on all forms contained on pages 21 through 
30. 

 

Overcharges by Antitrust Violations 

The county maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust violations are borne by the 
purchaser.  Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the Contractor hereby assigns to the county any and all 
claims for such overcharges as to the goods or services used to fulfill the contract. 
 

Authority to Contract 

This contract shall be based upon the request for proposal issued by the county and the offer submitted by the 
Contractor in response to the RFP.  The offer shall substantially conform to the terms, conditions, specifications 
and other requirements set forth within the text of the RFP.  The county reserves the right to clarify any 
contractual terms with the concurrence of the Contractor; however, any substantial non-conformity in the offer, 
as determined by the County Attorney, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer rejected.  The contract 
shall contain the entire agreement between Gila County and the Contractor relating to these requirements and 
shall prevail over any and all previous agreements, contracts, proposals, negotiations, purchase orders, or master 
agreement in any form.  The contract activity is issued under the authority of the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors.  No alteration of any portion of the contract, any items or services awarded, or any other agreement 
that is based upon this contract may be made without express written approval of Gila County in the form of an 
official contract amendment.  Any attempt to alter any documents on the part of the Contractor or any agency 
is a violation of the county procurement code.  Any such action is subject to the legal and contractual remedies 
available to the county inclusive, but not limited to, contract cancellation, suspension and debarment of the 
Contractor. 

 

Contract Amendments 

The contract shall be modified only by a written contract amendment signed by the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors and persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the Contractor. 
 
Contract Default 

A. The county, by written notice of default to the Contractor, may terminate the whole or any part of this 
contract in any one of the following circumstances: 

 
1. If the Contractor fails to make delivery of the supplies or deliverables, or to perform the services 

within the times specified; or 
 

2. If the Contractor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this contract; and fails to remedy 
the situation within a period of ten (10) days after receipt of notice. 

 
B. In the event the county terminates this contract in whole or part, the county may procure supplies or 

services similar to those terminated, and the Contractor shall be liable to the county for any excess costs 
for such similar supplies or services. 

 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 12 
 

Right to Assurance 

Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other party’s intent to perform, 
the other party may demand that the other party give a written assurance of this intent to perform.  In the event 
that a demand is made, and no written assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat 
this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of this contract. 
 

Co-op Use of Contract – Intergovernmental Purchasing 

Gila County has entered into an active purchasing agreement with other political subdivisions, cities, and towns 
of the State of Arizona in order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs and improve timely acquisition 
and cost of supplies, equipment and services.  The Contractor to whom this contract is awarded may be 
requested by other parties of said active purchasing agreements to extend to those parties the right to purchase 
supplies, equipment, and services provided by the Contractor under this contract, pursuant to the terms and 
conditions stated herein.  Any such usage by other entities must be in accord with the rules and regulations of 
the respective entity and the approval of the Contractor. 
 

Cancellation of County Contracts 

This contract is subject to the cancellation provisions of A.R.S. §38-511. 
 

Termination of Contract 

The county, with or without cause, may terminate this contract at any time by mutual written consent, or by 
giving thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor.  The county at its convenience, by written notice, may 
terminate this contract, in whole or in part.  If this contract is terminated, the county shall be liable only for 
payment under the payment provisions of this contract for the services rendered and accepted material received 
by the county before the effective date of termination. 
 
The county reserves the right to cancel the whole or any part of this contract due to failure of the Contractor to 
carry out any term, promise, or condition of the contract.  The county will issue a written ten (10) day notice of 
default to Contractor for acting or failing to act as in any of the following: 
 

1. In the opinion of the county, the Contractor fails to perform adequately the stipulations, conditions 
or services and specifications required in the contract. 

2. In the opinion of the county, the Contractor attempts to impose on the county material products, or 
workmanship, for services which are of unacceptable quality.  

3. Contractor fails to furnish the required service or product within the time stipulated in the contract. 
4. In the opinion of the county, the Contractor fails to make progress in the performance of the 

requirements of the contract or give the county a positive indication that Contractor will perform to 
the requirements of the contract. 

 
Each payment obligation of the county created hereby is conditioned upon the availability of county, state and 
federal funds, which are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an obligation.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 13 
 

Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
If funds are not allocated by the county and available for the continuance of service herein contemplated, the 
contract period for the service may be terminated by the county at the end of the period for which funds are 
available.  The county shall notify the Contractor at the earliest possible time which service may be affected by 
a shortage of funds.  No penalty shall accrue to the county in the event this provision is exercised, and the county 
shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments due or for any damages as a result of termination under 
this paragraph. 
 
 
Indemnification Clause 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, 
and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, 
damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation 
and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss 
or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent 
or willful acts or omissions of Contractor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, employees or 
subcontractors.  This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the Workers’ 
Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such Contractor to conform to any federal, state or local law, 
statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee 
shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the 
Indemnitee, be indemnified by Contractor from and against any and all claims.  It is agreed that the Contractor 
will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs. 
 
General 

After receipt of all proposals, each submittal shall be screened to determine if any shall be deemed non-
responsive.  Unsigned proposals, unacknowledged addenda, incomplete proposals, non-conformance with 
mandatory requirements, etc., may result in the determination of non-responsive. 
 
Subsequent to the initial review, all remaining proposals shall be reviewed by the Gila County Finance 
Department to evaluate the information submitted, perform tests when necessary and make comparisons in 
order to approve or reject the request.  If rejected, the purchasing department shall give written notice to the 
bidder submitting this request. 

 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  Contractor and subcontractors shall procure and maintain until all of their 
obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Contract are satisfied, insurance 
against claims for injury to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or 
subcontractors.   
 
The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this contract and do not limit the indemnity 
covenants contained in this contract.  The county does not warrant that the minimum limits contained herein 
are sufficient to protect the Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the work under 
this contract by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors and Contractor may 
purchase additional insurance as may be determined necessary. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 14 
 

Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
A. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE:  Contractor shall provide coverage with limits of liability 

not less than those stated below. 
 

1. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 
Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage and broad form contractual liability coverage. 

• General Aggregate $2,000,000 

• Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 

• Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 

• Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: "The County of 
Gila shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of the activities 
performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor". 

 
2. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 

 Workers' Compensation Statutory 
 Employers' Liability  

 Each Accident $100,000 
 Disease – Each Employee $100,000 
 Disease – Policy Limit $500,000 

a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the County of Gila. 
 

3. Automobile Liability 
Bodily injury and property damage for any owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles used 
in the performance of this Contract. 
 Combined Single Limit (CSL) $1,000,000 

 
4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions Liability) 

 Each Claim $1,000,000 
 Annual Aggregate $2,000,000 

a. In the event that the professional liability insurance required by this Contract is written on a 
claims-made basis, Contractor warrants that any retroactive date under the policy shall precede 
the effective date of this Contract; and that either continuous coverage will be maintained or an 
extended discovery period will be exercised for a period of two (2) years beginning at the time 
work under this Contract is completed. 

 

B. ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  The policies shall include, or be endorsed to include, the 
following provisions: 

1. On insurance policies where the County of Gila is named as an additional insured, the County of Gila 
shall be an additional insured to the full limits of liability purchased by the Contractor even if those 
limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Contract. 

2 The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and non-contributory with respect to 
all other available sources. 

3. Coverage provided by the Contractor shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the 
indemnification provisions of this Contract. 

 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 15 
 

 
Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
C. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION: Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Contract 

shall provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or 
endorsed to lower limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the County.  
Such notice shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing Department, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, 85501 
or and shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested. 

 
D. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or approved 

unlicensed companies in the state of Arizona and with an “A.M. Best” rating of not less than B+ VI.  The 
county does not warrant that the above-required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to protect the 
Contractor from potential insurer insolvency. 

 
E. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  Contractor shall furnish the county with certificates of insurance (ACORD 

form or equivalent approved by the county) as required by this contract.  The certificates for each 
insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. 

 
 All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the County before work 

commences.  Each insurance policy required by this contract must be in effect at or prior to 
commencement of work under this contract and remain in effect for the duration of the project.  Failure 
to maintain the insurance policies as required by this contract or to provide evidence of renewal is a 
material breach of contract.   

 
 All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing Department, 1400 

E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, 85501 or email to bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov. The county project and contract number 
and project description shall be noted on the certificate of insurance.  The county reserves the right to 
require complete, certified copies of all insurance policies required by this contract at any time.   

 
F. SUBCONTRACTORS:  Contractors’ certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as additional insured’s 

under its policies or Contractor shall furnish to the county separate certificates and endorsements for each 
subcontractor.  All coverage’s for subcontractors shall be subject to the minimum requirements identified 
above. 

 
G. APPROVAL:  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this contract shall be made 

by the County Attorney, whose decision shall be final.  Such action will not require a formal contract 
amendment but may be made by administrative action. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 16 
 

 

MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 
 
 

EXHIBIT “C” MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS – PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS 
 
Purpose 
It is the intent of this invitation for proposals to enter into a contract with a qualified Contractor to provide 
CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE for Gila County.  
 

This specification is intended to describe the type, size, and quality, which will best meet the demands of the 
using department.  It is NOT intended to favor any one brand or make.  The mention of brand names or 
components merely serves to specify the quality or general type required. 

 
 
SECTION 1.0 
 
General Purpose 

 
1.1 All proposals must represent the entire package.  Partial awards will not be made unless otherwise 

stated in the proposal specifications. 
 
1.2 The parties specifically understand and agree that the quantities used for bidding purposes are 

estimates of county needs and in no event shall the county be obligated to purchase the exact 
quantities of any item set forth in the proposal.  The county does not guarantee any maximum or 
minimum amounts of purchase. 

 
1.3 Contractor shall review its proposal submission to assure the following requirements are met. 

 
1.3.1 One (1) original and two (2) copies, total of three (3), all with original signatures, shall be 

submitted at time of bid opening. 
1.3.2 Qualification and Certification Form (page 19-20) 
1.3.3 Price Sheet (page 21) 
1.3.4 References List (page 22) 
1.3.5 No Collusion Certification (page 23) 
1.3.6 Certification of Debarment (page 24) 
1.3.7 Intentions Concerning Subcontracting (page 25) 
1.3.8 Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance (page 26) 
1.3.9 Israel Boycott Certification (page 27) 
1.3.10 Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment (page 28) 
1.3.11 Offer Page (page 29) 
1.3.12 Acceptance of Offer (page 30) 

 
SECTION 2.0 

Proposal Pricing & Term 

2.1 Prices shall be in effect for the duration of the contract period.  Contractor shall incorporate all 
profit and discount into their price.  The exception will be any price reduction, which will be applied 
to the contract immediately upon the Contractor’s or Gila County’s discovery of any such price 
reduction. 
 
 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 17 
 

Minimum Specifications continued…. 

 

2.2 The term of the contract shall commence upon award and shall remain in effect for one year from the 
date of award.  The county shall have the option to renew the contract for three (3) additional one (1) 
year periods upon agreement of both parties. 

 

SECTION 3.0 

3.1 Evaluation of Proposal and Negotiations 

The finance director may appoint a selection committee to evaluate the proposals and make a 
recommendation based on the criteria set forth in the request for proposals.  The board of supervisors 
shall not act in capacity of the selection committee.  Proposals shall be evaluated on the factors set forth 
in the request for proposals. 

 
For the purpose of conducting negotiations, the county shall determine what proposals are susceptible 
for being selected for award.  A determination that a proposal is unacceptable shall be in writing, state 
the basis of the determination and be retained in the county files.  If it is determined a proposal is not 
reasonably susceptible of being selected for award, the Contractor shall be notified and shall not be 
afforded an opportunity to modify its proposal. 
 

3.2 Negotiations with Individual Contractors 

▪ Gila County may establish procedures and schedules for conducting negotiations.  Disclosure of a 
contractors’ price or any information derived from competing proposal prices or any information 
derived from competing proposals is prohibited.   

▪  
a.    Any response to a request for clarification of a proposal shall be in writing.   
b.    Gila County shall keep a record of all negotiations. 

 
▪ For the purposes of conducting negotiations with Contractors, Gila County may use any of the 

following methods that, in their judgment, best meets the unique requirements. 
 

a. Concurrent Negotiations:  Negotiations may be conducted concurrently with responsible 
Contractors for the purpose of determining source selection and or contract award.  

b. Exclusive Negotiations:  A determination may be made by the director to enter into exclusive 
negotiations with the responsible Contractor whose proposal is determined in the selection 
process to be most advantageous to the county. 

 
▪ Exclusive negotiations may be conducted subsequent to concurrent negotiations or may be 

conducted without requiring previous concurrent negotiations.  
 

a. A determination to conduct exclusive negotiations shall not constitute a contract award nor 
shall it confer any property rights to the successful Contractor.   

b. If exclusive negotiations are conducted and an agreement is not reached, the county may 
enter into exclusive negotiations with the next highest rank Contractor without the need to 
repeat the formal Solicitation process. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 18 
 

QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION FORM 

 
EXHIBIT “D” Bidder Qualifications and Certification 
 
Purpose 
 
This exhibit shall serve as a requirement to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of Contractors 
under consideration for final award. 
 
The information may or may not be a determining factor in award. 
 
 
Contract Number 102119 CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE 
 
The applicant submitting this proposal warrants the following: 
 
1. Name, Address, and Telephone Number of Principal Contractor: 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever failed to complete a contract? 

________Yes    ________No.   If “Yes, give details, including the date, the contracting agency, and the 
reasons Contractor failed to perform in the narrative part of this contract. 

 
3. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever been disbarred or prohibited from 

competing for a contract?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give details, including the date, the 
contracting agency, the reasons for the Contractor’s disqualification, and whether this disqualification 
remains in effect in the narrative part of this contract. 

 
4. Has Contractor ever terminated a contract for cause with any individual or entity, government or 

otherwise, (under Contractor’s present or any previous name)?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, 
give details including the date, the contracting agency, and the reasons Contractor was terminated in the 
narrative part of this contract. 

 
5. Contractor must also provide at least the following information:   

a. A brief history of the Contractor. 
b. A cost proposal shall be submitted on the price sheet, attached hereon and made a full part of 

this contract by this reference. 
c. A list of previous and current customers, which are considered identical or similar to the scope 

of services described herein; shall be submitted on the reference list, attached hereon and 
made a full part of this contract by this reference. 

d. List the specific qualifications the Contractor has in supplying the specified services. 
e. Gila County reserves the right to request additional information. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 19 
 

 
 
 
6. Contractor Experience Modifier (e-mod) Rating in Arizona:  _____________________________ 

                                     (If Applicable) 

A method the National Council on Compensation Insurance (NCCI) uses to measure a business’ computed 
loss ratio and determine a factor, which when multiplied by premium, can reward policyholders with lower 
losses.  E-mod rate may be a determining factor in bid award. 

 

7. Current Contractor Business Arizona License Number:  __________________________________ 
(If Applicable) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 20 
 

PRICE SHEET 

Please complete price sheet in its entirety for the services provided in RFP 102119 CONSULTATION SERVICES: 
HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE.   

 

 

Contractor Name:  _____________________________________            Phone No.:  __________________ 
 

 

    
 

 

 
 

COSTS 

 

Annual Rate 
 
(Contractor shall be paid per 
monthly expenditure report.  
Monthly expenditure report shall be 
submitted to Gila County by the 15th 
of the following month) 
 
 

 

$ _________________ 
 
 

  

 

TOTAL COST 

 

$ _________________ 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
**All applicable taxes shall be included in proposed amount. 
 
 

      
 ________________________________________ 

       Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 

 

 

 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 21 
 

REFERENCE LIST 

These references are required to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of the Contractor under 
consideration for final award.       
 
References 

Please list a minimum of three (3) references for contracts, entered into or completed, of similar size and scope, 
as this request for proposals during the past twenty-four (24) months.  Bidder may attach further reference 
information as necessary. 
 

1. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

    _______________________________________________________________ 

                 _______________________________________________________________  

 

2. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

     _______________________________________________________________ 

                   _______________________________________________________________ 

 

3. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

     _______________________________________________________________ 

                               _______________________________________________________________ 

 
 
        _______________________________________ 

           Name of Business 

________________________________________ 
           Signature of Authorized Representative 

________________________________________ 
           Title 

 

 

 

 

 
 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 22 
 

AFFIDAVIT BY BIDDER 
CERTIFYING THAT THERE WAS NO COLLUSION 

IN BIDDING FOR CONTRACT 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF GILA  ) 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
(Name of Individual) 
 

being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 
 
That he or she is ___________________________________________________________________________ 

(Title) 
 
Of _____________________________________________________________________________ and 

(Name of Business) 
 

 That he or she is submitting a proposal on CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND 
SURVEILLANCE, RFP NO. 102119 and, 
 
 That pursuant to Section 112 (C) of Title 23 USC, he or she certifies as follows: 
 
 That neither he or she nor anyone associated with the said ___________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 

(Name of Business) 
 

has, directly, or indirectly, entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, or otherwise taken any 
action in restraint of free-competitive bidding in connection with the above-mentioned service. 
   
      ____________________________________________ 
      Name of Business 
 
      ____________________________________________ 
      By 
 
      ____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 
       
Subscribed and sworn to before me this _________ day of ____________________________, 2019. 
 
__________________________________ My Commission expires:  ______________________ 
Notary Public 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 23 
 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER 
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 

 
The prospective participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals: 
 

(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; 
 

(b) Have not within a three year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a 
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or 
local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State 
antitrust statutes or commission or embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

 
 

(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government 
entity (Federal, State, or local with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and 
 

(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more 
public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default 

 
I understand that a false statement on this certification may be grounds for rejection of this proposal 
or termination of the award.  IN addition, under 18 USC Sec. 1001, a false statement may result in a 
fine of up to $10,000 or imprisonment for up to 5 years, or both. 
 
 
 

Typed Name and Title of Authorized Representative 
 
 
 
 

Signature of Authorized Representative 
 

 .................................................... I am unable to certify the above statements.  My explanation is attached 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 24 
 

 
CERTIFICATION:  INTENTIONS CONCERNING SUBCONTRACTING 

 
 
 At the time of the submission of bids on Bid No. 102119 CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH 
PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE, my intention concerning subcontracting a portion of the work is as indicated 
below. 
 
 A list of any subcontractors (if applicable) to be used in performing the service must accompany the 
proposal.  The list must include the subcontractors name, address, phone number, and Arizona Registrar of 
Contractors License Number.  List must be provided in a sealed envelope marked “List of Subcontractors”. 

 
 
 
 
 

     YES, it is my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 

     NO,  it is not my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 25 
 

 
 
 
 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE 
 

Contractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal 
immigration laws applicable to Contractor’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. 
§ 23-214 (A) (together the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Contractor shall further ensure that each 
subcontractor who performs any work for Contractor under this contract likewise complies with the state and 
federal immigration laws. 
  
County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Contractor and any subcontractor in 
order to verify such party’s compliance with the state and federal immigration laws.   
 
 Any breach of Contractor’s or any subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the state and federal 
immigration laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this 
contract subjecting Contractor to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this contract. If the 
breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, Contractor shall be 
required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that would have been 
provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor, as soon as possible so as not to delay 
delivery of services.   
 
Contractor shall advise each subcontractor of county’s rights, and the subcontractor’s obligations, under this 
Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form:  “Subcontractor hereby 
warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal immigration laws 
applicable to subcontractor’s employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). Subcontractor further 
agrees that county may inspect the subcontractor’s books and records to insure that subcontractor is in 
compliance with these requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by subcontractor will be deemed to be a 
material breach of this contract subjecting subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension or 
termination of this contract.”  
  
Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the 
responsibility of Contractor. 
 

 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 26 
 

 
 
 

ISRAEL BOYCOTT CERTIFICATION 
 
 

Contractor hereby certifies that it is not currently engaged in and will not, for the duration of this 
agreement, engage in a boycott of Israel as defined by A.R.S. § 35-393.01. Violation of this certification by 
Contractor may result in action by County up to and including termination of this agreement. 
 

 

 

       
Date:  __________________________  

 
 

_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Printed Name 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Title 

       

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Unless and until the District Court's injunction in Jordahl is stayed or lifted, the Anti-Israel Boycott Provision 
(A.R.S. §35-393.01 (A)) is unenforceable and the State will take no action to enforce it. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 27 
 

 
BIDDER CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that all bid documents shall be completed and executed and submitted with this RFP.  
If Contractor fails to complete and execute any portion of the bid documents, all with original signatures, the 
RFP may be determined to be non-responsive and rejected. 
 
CHECKLIST: 
 

REQUIRED DOCUMENT      COMPLETED AND EXECUTED 
 
QUALIFICATION & CERTIFICATION FORM              ______________ 

PRICE SHEET              ______________ 

REFERENCE LIST             ______________ 

NO COLLUSION FORM            ______________ 

INTENTIONS IN SUBCONTRACTING           ______________ 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE          ______________ 

ISRAEL BOYCOT CERTIFICATION           ______________ 

CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT          ______________ 

OFFER PAGE              ______________ 

      
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA: 

 

    #1  #2             #3             #4           #5 

Initials         ________        ________          ________           ________          ________ 

Date         ________           ________          ________            ________          ________  
 

 

Signed and dated this _________ day of ______________________, 2019 
 
           ______________________________________ 
                                   Contractor: 

           ______________________________________ 
                                       By:   
 
 
Each proposal shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to the Finance Department, Gila County and bearing the following 
statement on the outside of the envelope:  Request for Sealed Proposals:  Bid No. 102119 CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH 
PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE.  All proposals shall be filed with the Gila County Finance Department Division in the 
Copper Building at 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ on or before, December 18, 2019, by 3:00 PM. 

 
 
 

 

 

 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 28 
 

 

OFFER PAGE  

TO GILA COUNTY: 

The undersigned hereby offers and agrees to furnish the material or service in compliance with all terms and 
conditions, instruction, specifications, and any amendments contained in this request for proposal document. 
 
Signature also certifies the Contractors bid proposal is genuine, and is not in any way collusive or a sham; that 
the bid proposal is not made with the intent to restrict or prohibit competition; that the Contractor submitting 
the proposal has not revealed the contents of the proposal to, or in any way colluded with, any other Contractor 
which may compete for the contract; and that no other Contractor which may compete for the contract has 
revealed the contents of a proposal to, or in any way colluded with, the Contractor submitting this proposal. 
 

CONTRACT NUMBER:  102119 CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE 
 
 
 
Contractor Submitting Proposal:    For clarification of this offer, contact: 

 
 
________________________________________  Name:  __________________________________ 
Company Name 
 
________________________________________  Phone No.:  ______________________________ 
Address   
       Fax   ____________________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
City                                State                                Zip  Email:  __________________________________ 
       
 
 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
Proposal must be signed by a duly authorized officer(s) eligible to sign contract documents for the Contractor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RFP NO. 102119/CONSULTATION SERVICES: HEALTH PREVENTION AND SURVEILLANCE Page 29 
 

 
 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 
(For Gila County use only) 

 
 
 
 

The Offer is hereby Accepted: 
 

The Contractor                  is now bound to provide the materials or services listed 

in RFP No.: 102119, including all terms and conditions, specifications, and amendments, and the contractor’s 

offer as accepted by Gila County. 

 

The contract shall henceforth be referenced to as    Contract No. 102119. The Contractor has been cautioned 

not to commence any billable work or to provide any material or service under this contract until Contractor 

receives written notice to proceed from Gila County. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, three (3) identical counterparts of this contract, each of which shall include original 
signatures, and for all purposes shall be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the parties 
hereinabove named, on this __________________ day of _________________________________,                    . 
 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:    CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
              
Woody Cline, Chairman, Board of Supervisors   Authorized Signature 
 
 
ATTEST:              
        Print Name 
 
         
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
The Gila County Attorney’s Office 

 

 



   
ARF-5857   Regular Agenda Item     3. D.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/04/2020  
Submitted For: Mary Springer, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Mary Springer, Finance Director
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: FY20-21 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

070120 - 063021 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Approve advertisement of Request for Qualifications for attorneys for
indigent legal representation.

Background Information
Each year the Superior Court in Gila County retains various attorneys to
provide professional legal services, such as representation for indigent
citizens in the categories of felony and misdemeanor criminal actions,
delinquency, dependency, and mental health cases, as well as mediation
services. This year Superior Court plans to issue a limited number of
contracts for attorneys based on a request for the qualifications selection
process. The intent is to retain qualified contract attorneys and limit the
number of contracts issued.

Evaluation
Superior Court Administration has reviewed the prior practice of issuing
professional service contracts for attorneys and has identified a robust
selection process to select contract attorneys based on a scoring matrix
and issue a limited number of contracts for indigent defense attorneys.

Conclusion
It is the intent of this Request for Qualifications solicitation to retain
qualified contract attorneys for indigent defense.

Recommendation
Staff recommends proceeding with advertising public solicitation for



Staff recommends proceeding with advertising public solicitation for
Request for Qualifications for indigent defense attorneys.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Request
for Qualifications No. 010220-Indigent Defense Attorney Services as
outlined in the solicitation. (Jonathan Bearup)

Attachments
Request to Advertise
RFQ No. 010220-Indigent Defense Attorney Services





 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS NO.  010220 

 
INDIGENT DEFENSE ATTORNEY SERVICES 

 
GILA COUNTY 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 
Woody Cline, Chairman 

Tommie C. Martin, Vice Chairman 
Tim Humphrey, Member 

 

 
 

*County Manager* 
James Menlove 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

GILA COUNTY 
PROCUREMENT GROUP 

NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR 
QUALIFICATIONS 

1400 East Ash Street 
Globe, Arizona 

85501 

        SOLICITATION NUMBER 
          010220 

 

BID DUE DATE: March 12, 2020 TIME:  3:00 PM 
 

DESCRIPTION: Indigent Defense Attorney Services 
 
PRE-BID CONFERENCE: Not Applicable 
 
Bid Submittal Location:   Gila County Procurement, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ 85501 

 
Bid Opening Location:  Gila County Copper Building Conference Room 

1400 E. Ash Street, Globe, AZ  85501 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that sealed competitive proposals for the material or services as 
specified will be received by the Gila County Procurement Department, until the time and date 
cited. 
 
Interested bidders may obtain a copy of this solicitation by calling Gila County Procurement at 928-
402-4355, Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read the entire Request for Qualifications. 
 
Proposals received by the correct time and date will be publicly opened and recorded thereafter in 
the Copper Building Conference Room, 1350 E. Monroe St., Globe, AZ, or another site, which may be 
designated.  Any proposals received later than the date and time specified above will not be 
considered.   
 
The County takes no responsibility for informing recipients of changes to the original solicitation 
document.  It is the bidders responsibility to obtain a copy of any amendment relevant to this 
solicitation.   
 
The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, or to accept any proposal, 
or to waive any informality in any proposal, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest 
of Gila County.   
 
All procurement activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and 
regulations of the Gila County Procurement Code.  A copy of the Code is available for review in the 
Clerk of the Board’s Department, 1400 E. Ash Street, Globe, AZ. 
 

Arizona Silver Belt advertisement dates:   February 12, 2020 and February 19, 2020 

 

Signed:  ______________________________________________________________  Date:  _________________  
                Woody Cline, Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Signed:  ______________________________________________________________  Date:  ________________ 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office 



 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 
 

INDEX 
 

Section A  Request for Qualifications 
 
Section B  Purpose of the RFQ/Intent/Evaluation Criteria 
 
Section C  Instructions to Respondents 
 
Section D  Qualifications 
 
Section E  Scope of Work 
 
Section F  Proposal Certification 
 
 

 
 
    

 
 
Gila County General Provisions 
 
*NOTE:  The General Provisions are being provided solely for the purpose of 
the potential bidder to be aware of Gila County’s liability requirements and 
contract format. 



 

1 

 

Section A. REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
 
 

RFQ NO.  010220 
 
It is the intent of Gila County to hire attorneys to perform the services as outlined in the ‘Scope of 
Work” for Indigent Defense Attorney Services in Gila County. 
 
Indigent Defense Attorney Services 
 
 
Request for Qualifications are to be received in the office of: 
 

Betty Hurst, Gila County Contracts Administrator  
Copper Building 

1400 E. Ash Street 
Globe, AZ  85501 

 
 
Until: 3:00 p.m. on March 12, 2020, at which time a representative of the Purchasing Services 
Department shall announce publicly the names of those firms submitting responses.  No other 
public disclosure shall be made until after award of the contract. 
 
All inquiries regarding this request shall be directed to: 
 
 Name:  Betty Hurst, Gila County Contracts Administrator 
 Address: 1400 E. Ash Street 
   Globe, AZ  85501 
 
 Phone:  (928) 402-4355 
 Email:  bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov


 

2 

 

Section B. PURPOSE OF THE RFQ 
 

 
1. The intent of this RFQ is to establish a listing of qualified attorneys to provide legal 

representation to indigent defendants as assigned by the Superior Court or Court 
Administration.  Attorneys interested in being selected for the proposed work shall submit 
their proposal to Betty Hurst – Gila County Contracts Administrator, by March 12, 2020 at 
3:00 P.M. 
 

2. Any questions regarding the proposed work must be submitted in writing no later than 3:00 
P.M. on March 5, 2020.  All questions will be answered in writing no later than March 10, 
2020 at 3:00 P.M. 

 
3. Proposals will be evaluated based on the minimum requirements and the evaluation criteria 

set forth in Section D. 
 

Section C. INSTRUCTIONS TO RESPONDENTS 
 
RFQ’s shall be addressed and delivered to: 
 
 Name:  Betty Hurst 

Gila County Contracts Administrator 
 Address: 1400 E. Ash Street 
   Globe, AZ  85501 
 
 

Responses shall be in a sealed envelope marked as follows:  
 
Name of Respondent 
Title of Respondent 
RFQ Title and Number 
Date and Time Response is Due 
 
 
No telephonic, telegraphic, or facsimile responses shall be considered.  Responses 
received after the time for closing shall be returned to the respondent unopened. 
 

1. Responses shall be submitted in 5 copies. 
 

2. No department, school, or office at the County has the authority to solicit official responses 
other than the Finance Department.  All solicitation is performed under the direct supervision 
of the Finance Director and in complete accordance with Gila County policies and procedures. 
 

3. Responding firms may be requested to meet with the selection committee to discuss their 
Request for Qualifications.  Scheduling of these discussions shall be accomplished by Court 
Administration. 
 

4. Any information considered to be proprietary by the respondent shall be placed in a separate 
envelope and marked "Proprietary Information."  To the extent the Finance Director concurs, 
this information shall not be considered public information.  The Finance Director is the final 
authority as to the extent of material which is considered confidential.  Pricing information 
cannot be considered proprietary. 



 

3 

 

5. If responding by express mail, allow sufficient time for delivery.  Globe is considered a rural 
area; thereby Federal Express deliveries are often made late in the afternoon.  RFQ proposals 
may not be faxed nor electronically transmitted to the County.  Proposals, which are received 
after the deadline, will not be considered.  Respondents must ensure delivery (not 
postmarking) by the date and time indicated above. 
 

6. Proposals shall be signed by an authorized agent of the company. 
 
Section D. QUALIFICATIONS 
 
Applicant Scoring  
 
There is a maximum of one hundred (100) points available to all applicant attorneys based 
upon the criterion explained below.  
 
“Member – American Bar Association (ABA)”: In order for an applicant to be considered, they 
must be a member of the Arizona Bar Association. This is a prerequisite for the position and, as 
such, does not receive an individual numeric score.  
 
“Bar Discipline”: Attorneys may receive discipline of varying scale and scope dependent upon the 
disposition of a Bar Complaint filed with the Arizona Bar Association. An applicant attorney with no 
discipline within the past ten years and no pending discipline would be entitled to ten (10) points. 
Scoring values may be reduced from the value of ten (10) depending upon; 1) the frequency of 
complaints; 2) the severity of the discipline imposed; and 3) the nature of the complaint (for 
example, ethics / moral turpitude complaints may result in a greater reduction in scoring than a 
technical or procedural violation.) Any unsubstantiated complaints will not be considered.  
 
“Years of Experience”: “Years of Experience” means the total number of years that an applicant 
attorney has been practicing in any capacity. The following scale is applicable when rating “Years of 
Experience”: 
 
0 – 10 Years:  1 point 
10+ Years:  2 points 
 
“Years of Experience in Specific Field Applied For”: “Years of Experience in Specific Field 
Applied For” means the total number of years that an applicant attorney has been practicing in the 
specific field for which they have applied. An applicant attorney would receive a corresponding 
score, based upon the table below, for the number of years in that given area of representation. 
 
0 – 2 Years:  2 points 
3 – 5 Years:  4 points 
6 – 10 Years:  6 points 
11 – 15 Years: 8 points 
15+ Years: 10 points 
 
“References / Recommendations”: The applicant attorney would receive a score based upon the 
strength of the references and / or recommendations contained in their response / Letter of 
Interest / Statement of Qualifications. When contemplating the score, the scorer may be guided by 
considering the originating source of the reference / recommendation; the interpretation of the 
reference / recommendation as it relates to professional competencies; the length of the 
association between the attorney and the reference / recommendation; and any specific attributes 
highlighted by the reference / recommendation. A maximum score of twenty (20) points is 



 

4 

 

available in this area.  
 
“Criminal Specialist Certification”: The applicant attorney may receive a score of three (3) points 
in this category if he / she possesses a “Criminal Specialist Certification.” Those that do not will 
receive zero (0) points.  
 
“Interview”: For applicant attorneys receiving interviews, scoring will be based upon the 
interviewee’s demonstration of professional expertise; apparent ability to effectively advocate for 
indigent clients; courteous and professional demeanor; and an understanding of modern case 
processing. A maximum score of forty (40) points is available in this area.  
 
“Willingness to Travel to Payson and Globe”: Scoring in this category will be based upon the 
applicant attorney’s willingness to accept case appointments in both Payson and Globe. If the 
applicant attorney agrees to accept appointments in Payson and / or Globe without reservation, 
they will receive ten (10) points. If they are willing to accept appointments in both locales but with 
restrictions, they can receive no higher score than seven (7) points and may be disqualified if their 
personal schedules conflict with the Court’s calendaring parameters. If they are only willing to 
accept appointments in one location, they may receive five (5) points unless, again, their schedule 
conflicts with that of the Court.  
 
“Willing to Accept Appointments in Various Case Types”: The expectation is that an applicant 
attorney is willing to accept appointments in case types outside the primary scope of the contract. If 
the applicant attorney is willing to accept any case type without reservation, they will receive five 
(5) points. If they are willing to accept appointments of the primary case type, and conflict 
misdemeanor appointments, but no other case types, they may receive no score higher than three 
(3) points. If they are willing to accept appointments of the primary case type, conflict 
misdemeanors, and some other case type(s), they may receive a score of up to four (4) points. 
 

Section E. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
Gila County Court Administration is developing an indigent defense attorney listing to accept case 
assignments within Gila County’s Justice and Superior Courts in both Payson and Globe. The intent 
of this Request for Qualifications is to establish a listing of qualified attorneys to provide legal 
representation to indigent defendants as assigned by the Court or Court Administration.  This 
solicitation encompasses the following areas of indigent defense practice:  
 

- Adult Felony    - Juvenile Delinquency / Incorrigibility 

- Adult Misdemeanor   - Direct Appeal / Post-Conviction Relief 

    
 

All case assignments made to contracted attorneys pursuant to an award under this solicitation 
shall be under the new contract terms and compensation schedules specified within this 
solicitation.    
 
Contractors agree to fully comply with all terms and conditions specified within this solicitation for 
inclusion on the list of qualified Gila County Indigent Defense Attorneys. Each applicant shall 
register as a vendor with Gila County and shall comply with the requirements of vendor registration 
upon submission of their application and response to this solicitation. Additionally, fees and 
compensation for each area of practice are predetermined and are not negotiable, except as 
otherwise noted.  
  



 

5 

 

Submission of an application in response to this solicitation shall signify full understanding and 
agreement with the terms and conditions of the solicitation. Applicants shall clearly designate the 
area or areas of practice for which they are applying. No guarantee is made regarding the frequency 
of assignments or volume of work that any attorney may be offered.  For purposes of this 
solicitation only, the terms “Contractor”, “Attorney” and “Applicant” are used inter-changeably to 
mean the individual who successfully responds to this solicitation and is placed on the list of 
qualified Indigent Defense or Legal Services Attorneys for Gila County. 
 
 
INDIGENT DEFENSE ATTORNEY SERVICES REQUIREMENTS 

  
I. CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITES  

A. CASE ASSIGNMENT: The Court, under the terms of this solicitation and at its sole discretion, shall 
assign cases.  

B. NON-EXCLUSIVE STATUS: The Court may contract for the same or similar professional services 
through persons other than Contractor. This provision applies to the Court only and does not 
confer upon any Contractor permission to substitute performance in any way without the express 
written consent of the Court.  

C. EFFECTIVE REPRESENTATION: Contractor shall comply with the Arizona Rules of Professional 
Conduct, State and Local Court Rules and the written administrative and procedural policies and 
procedures established by the Court(s). Contractor shall effectively represent the client including, 
but not limited to:  

1. Contacting and conferring with the client concerning the representation within a reasonable 
amount of time upon notice of assignment.  

2. Maintaining reasonable contact, including in-person consultations, and adequately 
communicating with the client until the representation is terminated.  

3. Promptly assembling the core defense team and continually monitoring the case for the need of 
additional expert, investigative, or other ancillary professional services.  

4. Continually monitoring the client’s mental, physical and emotional condition for effects on 
Client’s legal position.  

5. Using reasonable diligence in notifying the client of necessary court appearances, including any 
Court action that arises out of the client’s non-appearance.  

6. Conducting all out-of-court preparation required for competent representation of the Client, 
including a prompt and thorough Client interview and such additional interviews and 
investigation as may be appropriate.  

7. Appearing in court on time and prepared for scheduled proceedings.  

8. Displaying appropriate respectful professional demeanor and conduct in all dealings with the 
Court, opposing counsel, victims, witnesses, and the client.  

9. Facilitating the work of successor counsel.  

10. Recognition of legal issues.  

11. Effective legal research and use of motions.  



 

6 

 

12. Effective case development including thorough interviews, appropriate use of investigators, and 
timely and comprehensive witness interviews.  

13. Effectiveness in plea negotiations.  

14. Thorough and effective trial preparation including anticipation of key legal issues, evaluations of 
admissibility of evidence, discussion of the Defendant’s role including possible testimony, and 
preparation of witnesses including the Defendant if necessary.  

15. Willingness to try cases.  

 
16. Advocacy skills.  

17. Effective sentencing preparation and proper billing preparation.  

18. Preparation of monthly statistical reporting.  

II. CASE ASSIGNMENT SPECIFICATIONS  

A. MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: To qualify as a qualified Indigent Defense Attorney with Gila 
County, Attorney must minimally possess all of the listed qualifications specified to be qualified 
for assignments based on one or more of the three respective service areas specified herein.  

1. EDUCATION AND LICENSURE  

a. Applicant shall be a graduate of an ABA accredited law school; and  

b. Applicant shall be a member in good standing with the Arizona State Bar Association; and  

c. Applicant shall be licensed by the Arizona State Bar Association; and  

d. Applicant shall maintain their good standing within the Arizona State Bar Association as 
well as his/her licensure for the duration of contract award if accepted by Court 
Administration qualified Indigent Defense Attorney for placement on its roster of qualified 
attorneys.  

e. Applicant must include with his/her application packet the following documentation:   

1) A copy of his/her Arizona State Bar card.  

2) Any pertinent letters of recommendation or other such references.  

B. CASE CATEGORIES AND EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENTS: Following are the case assignments to 
be made directly from the Bench, as well as minimum standards for practical experience with 
each case category. Separate contracts will be offered for each of the numbered categories and 
attorneys may apply for multiple contracts. Assignments may be in Payson or Globe, but the Court 
will consider geographic preference and establish a degree of consistency with appointments in 
each locale.  

1. FELONIES: Applicant shall have a minimum of one (1) demonstrable year case experience 
or practicum experience within this case category. Case assignments shall include: Class 1-
6 Felony Offense(s) and Petitions to Revoke Probation.  

Number of contracts available: Ten (10).  

2. MISDEMEANOR: Applicant shall be able to represent indigent defendants, within the 

designated misdemeanor case categories cited herein in keeping with ABA and attorney 



 

7 

 

licensure standards. Case assignments shall include:  DUI, Rule 6.1 appointments, and other 

applicable Misdemeanor Offenses.   

Number of contracts available: Two (2).  

3. JUVENILE DELINQUENCY: Applicant shall be able to represent indigent defendants, within 
these designated case categories cited herein in keeping with ABA and attorney licensure 
standards. Case assignments shall include: Delinquency, incorrigibility, and Petitions to 
Revoke Probation.  

Number of contracts available: Three (3).  

4. APPELLATE / POST-CONVICTION RELIEF PETITIONS: Applicant shall be able to represent 
indigent defendants, within these designated case categories cited herein in keeping with 
ABA and attorney licensure standards. Case assignments shall include: Direct appeals and 
Post-Conviction Relief cases.  

Number of contracts available: One (1).  

III. REPRESENTATION OF INDIGENT DEFENDANTS IN CAPITAL CASES:   

Applicant(s) SHALL NOT be assigned any capital cases under this solicitation. Capital case 
assignments are made separately.  

IV. COMPENSATION: In consideration for the professional services to be provided pursuant to the 
provisions of this solicitation, Gila County shall pay Attorney for work properly authorized under 
this solicitation as set forth herein for each case category specified herein.  

Under no circumstances may Attorney solicit outside compensation from clients assigned to 
Attorney under this Agreement for work to be performed by Attorney under this solicitation.  
The Court understands and agrees, however, that Attorney is available and able to represent 
private clients.  In addition, it is understood that the Court neither agrees to use Attorney 
exclusively nor to guarantee Attorney a specific number of appointments under this solicitation.  

A. Attendant Case Costs: Attorney shall not bill for nor be compensated for:  

1. Travel time between Attorney’s residence, office, or other base of operation and the Court or 
other work site in Gila County.   

2. Internal administrative costs related to file preparation, billing, opening or closing files, copies, 
establishing billing files, administrative communications with the Court, or any other similar 
administrative procedures that do not involve legal skills.  

B. Flat Rate Amounts of Compensation: For each applicable case assignment, Gila County shall 
pay Attorney the following flat monthly rate amounts per case category.  

1. FELONY CASE ASSIGNMENTS: Six-thousand dollars ($6000.00) per month.  

Additional Compensation for Other Cases.  Attorneys assigned to First or Second Degree 
Homicide Cases; Class Two or Three Felony Sexual Assault or Molestation Cases; or cases 
formally designated “Complex”, may request additional compensation up to twelve hundred 
dollars ($1200.00).  

2. JUVENILE DELINQUENCY / INCORRIGIBILITY CASE ASSIGNMENTS: Three-thousand 
dollars ($3000.00) per month.  



 

8 

 

 
3. MISDEMEANOR CASE ASSIGNMENTS: Two thousand, one hundred, and fifty-four dollars 
($2,154.00) per month.  

 
4. APPELLATE / POST-CONVICTION RELIEF ASSIGNMENTS: Six-thousand dollars 
($6000.00) per month. 

 
Ordinary Expenses. The parties contemplate and agree that ordinary expenses involved in the 
representation of indigent clients under this Agreement are not reimbursable, but instead are 
included in the contract prices specified herein.  Ordinary expenses include, but are not limited to:  

- Office overhead  
- Facsimiles  
- Postage  
- Copying expenses  
- Computer and Westlaw/Lexis charges  
- Messenger services  
- Support staff expenses  
- Office supplies  
- Mileage, travel and lodging expenses  

Travel: All travel for which reimbursement or compensation is provided under the terms of this 
solicitation for Attorney(s), witnesses, or experts must be pre-approved and scheduled through the 
Court. Attorney may not seek reimbursement for mileage or bill for travel time.  

Extraordinary Expenses. Before incurring any extraordinary expenses, Attorney must file an 
appropriate Motion.  An approval of such a request shall specifically set forth the authorized 
expenditures and monetary limits of such authorization.   

- “Extraordinary expenses” include, but are not limited to:  
o Transcripts  
o Clothing for an indigent client  
o Depositions  
o Lodging - per diem  
o Witness fees  
o Subpoena fees  
o An unusually large number of copies or phone calls.    

C. Failure to obtain prior approval will result in non-payment for any expenditure and the 
debt shall become the personal responsibility of the Attorney. At the sole discretion of the 
Court Administrator or Court, any such non-approved costs which are incurred, may be 
paid and deducted from amounts otherwise due and owing to the Attorney.    

a. If billed expenses exceed the Court Order approved amount for the expenditure, the County is 
not obligated to pay any such overage and the overage becomes the personal responsibility of 
the Contractor.   

b. At the sole discretion of the Court Administrator, any such cost exceeding authorization which 
is incurred, may be paid and deducted from amounts otherwise due and owing to the 
Contractor.   



 

9 

 

c. When billing for reimbursement, receipts for all expenses must be attached along with any 
Order approving the expenditure. All expenses must be approved by the Contract 
Administrator prior to incurring the expense.  

 

Sample contracts for all of the categories as described under II. B above are attached to this 
solicitation and applicants are encouraged to review the provisions of, and be familiar with, 
the specifications prior to applying for a contract award.  



 

10 

 

 RESPONSE CERTIFICATION 
 
 
___________________________ 
(DATE) 
 
 
 
Purchasing Services Department 
 
 
 
 
The undersigned certifies that to the best of his or her knowledge: (check one) 
 

 There is no officer or employee of Gila County who has, or whose relative has, a substantial 
interest in any Contract award subsequent to this Response. 

 
 The names of any and all public officers or employees of Gila County who have, or whose 

relative has, a substantial interest in any Contract award subsequent to this Response are 
identified by name as part of the submittal 

 
 
 
The undersigned further certifies that their firm (check one)  IS or  IS NOT currently 
debarred, suspended, or proposed for debarment by any federal or state entity.  The undersigned 
agrees to notify the County of any change in this status, shall one occur, until such time as an award 
has been made under this procurement action. 
 
In compliance with Request for Qualifications No. 010220 Indigent Defense Attorney Services for 
Gila County, and after carefully reviewing all the terms and conditions imposed therein, the 
undersigned agrees to furnish such services in accordance with the specifications/scope of work 
according to the Proposal submitted or as mutually agreed upon by subsequent negotiation. 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
(signed)     (by) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
(firm)      (title) 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
(address)    (phone number) 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

11 

 

CONTRACT 
 

a. The County reserves the right to award the total proposal, to reject any and all proposals 
and to waive any informality or technical defects if, in the County’s sole judgment, the best 
interest of the County be so served; 

b. The County reserves the right to request clarification of information from any firm 
submitting a proposal; 

c. The County reserves the right to cancel this RFQ at any time prior to contract award 
without obligation in any manner for proposal preparation, interview, fee negotiation or 
other marketing costs associated with this RFQ; 

d. The Contract resulting from acceptance of a proposal by the County shall be in a form 
supplied by the County and shall reflect the specifications of this RFQ.  

e. The County reserves the right to reject any proposed agreement that does not conform to 
the specification contained in this RFQ, and which is not approved by the County Attorney’s 
office; 

f. The County shall not be responsible for any costs incurred by the firm in preparing, 
submitting or presenting its response to the RFQ; 

g. Selection criteria of the RFQ will be evaluated on Professional Qualifications and 
Experience; 

h. All bid documents are public record and subject to disclosure. 
 
COST LIABILITY 
 
 The County assumes no responsibility or liability for costs incurred by the respondent prior 
to the execution of a Professional Services Agreement. The liability of the County is limited to the 
terms and conditions outlined in this Agreement. 



 

12 

 

(SAMPLE) PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT NO.  
LEGAL SERVICES 

 

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into 
this    day of    , 2020 by and between Gila County, a political subdivision of 
the State of Arizona, hereinafter (the “County”) on behalf of the Gila County Superior Court, 
hereinafter (the “Court”) and      , Attorney at Law, hereinafter (the 
“Attorney”).  (The County, Court and Attorney shall be collectively referred to hereafter as “the 
Parties” and individually as a “Party”). 

RECITALS 

Whereas, the Attorney is licensed to practice law in the State of Arizona; and 

Whereas, the County and the Court desire to secure the professional services of the 
Attorney to provide indigent legal representation pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.  

Now, Therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in the Agreement and 
the mutual benefits to result therefrom, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

AGREEMENTS 
 

I. GENRAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE ATTORNEY 

 
In addition to the Specific Duties of the Attorney as set forth in Section V below, the Attorney agrees 
as follows: 
 

A, The Attorney has a professional duty to the Court, to his/her clients, and to opposing 
counsel in providing legal services for persons found to be indigent or for whom the Court is 
required to provide legal counsel in Gila County. 

B. The Attorney shall maintain the credentials necessary to practice law in the courts of the 
State of Arizona and to do so in a competent, professional, ethical manner and as an officer of the 
Court at all times. 

C. The Attorney shall be prepared, prompt, comply with Court rules, submit timely reports, 
attend meetings with the Court, accept appointments within the main category of assignment as 
well as those outside the main category when circumstances require, and complete cases assigned 
during the term of the contract. 

D. The Attorney shall keep his/her clients advised of the status of their cases, be available 
for consultation, and to diligently represent their interests. 

E. The Attorney shall cooperate with opposing counsel in scheduling and prompt 
disposition of cases. 

 
II. TERM OF AGREEMENT 

A.  Period Covered:  The Attorney will accept appointments to represent persons found to 
be indigent or for whom the Court is required to provide legal counsel in Gila County, from JULY 1, 
2020 TO JUNE 30, 2021. 

 

The County shall have the option to renew the contract for three (3) additional one (1) year 
periods, upon agreement of both Parties. 



 

13 

 

B. Termination:  Upon thirty (30) days written notice, either Party may terminate this 
Agreement without cause provided that the Attorney shall complete any assignments made prior to 
such termination. 

In the event of formal discipline of the Attorney by the State Bar of Arizona, the Court may suspend 
or terminate the Agreement. 

 

  III. COMPENSATION, COSTS, AND BILLING PROCEDURES 

   

A. XXXXXXXX Case Representation: The Attorney agrees to provide legal services for the 

sum of XXXXX dollars per month.  

 B.  Court Payment of Costs and Expenses: 

  1) Routine / Non-routine expenses: Routine expenses such as photocopying, 
postage, travel and other operating expenses are not reimbursed by the Court and are a personal 
expense of the Attorney.  

              2)  Additional Compensation for Other Cases.  Attorneys assigned to First or 
Second Degree Homicide Cases; Class Two or Three Felony Sexual Assault or Molestation 
Cases; or cases formally designated “Complex”, may request additional compensation up to 
twelve hundred dollars ($1200.00).  

  3) Extraordinary Costs: The Attorney should file a motion in advance requesting 
approval for any extraordinary costs he/she wants paid by the County. This includes such items as 
transcripts (besides Grand Jury or appeal transcripts), expert witness fees, depositions, 
investigators, or any other extraordinary cost. 

  4) Personal Expense: Costs incurred without prior approval of the Court may be 
treated as a personal expense of the Attorney. 

 

  5) Costs Which Could Have Been Avoided: Court expenses which could have been 
avoided had the Attorney been prepared, such as jury costs for a trial that did not go, Rule 11 
evaluation costs for which the defendant did not show because of failure of the Attorney to timely 
obtain an Order for Transport or reschedule the appointment, expedited transcripts, etc., may be 
charged back to the Attorney as a personal cost. 

 

 C.  Billing Procedures for Legal Services Provided for Indigents: 

  1)  Submission and Payment: The Attorney may submit a monthly invoice for each 
month’s services.  

  2)  Statistical Report:  The Court requires the Attorney to prepare a statistical 
report summarizing his/her appointments and case activity each month on a statistical recap form 
and backup list of cases. Invoices are to be submitted only after the previous month’s statistical 
report has been completed. The statistical report is due by the 10th of each month for the preceding 
month’s appointments and concluded cases. (For example, appointments and dispositions made 
during July would be due by August 10). The statistical report for the previous month should be 
submitted with the bill for the current month’s services. (For example, the bill for services in August 
would be submitted with the statistical information for July). 
 



 

14 

 

IV. CONTRACT CATEGORY, CONFLICTS, REASSIGNMENT 

 A.  Contract Category:  To the extent practicable, the Attorney will be primarily assigned  
XXXXXXX cases, and will be subject to appointments in other contract categories, including but not 
limited to Domestic Relations, Guardianship, Delinquency, and Mental Health cases, (due to 
problems such as conflicts or insufficient number of contract attorneys for that category or 
geographical area) which may be made from time to time. Some of the  Post Conviction Relief issues 
and appeals may also be assigned to him/her rather than to the contract attorneys who are 
assigned appellate work. 

 B.  Reassignment of Case:  When the Attorney has been allowed to withdraw because the 
case is assigned to another Attorney, the withdrawn Attorney should promptly turn over his/her 
file to the new Attorney and notify him/her of any pending hearing dates and the status of the case. 
Assignment to a case that is outside the normal category covered by this contract is not sufficient 
grounds for reassignment. 

 C.  Rule 32’s and Appeals:  Separate contracts exist for Rule 32’s and appeals. However, 
circumstances may exist which would warrant a Rule 32 or appeal being assigned to a regular 
contract attorney and not the appellate contract attorneys, and such assignments may be made to 
the regular contract attorney without additional compensation. 
 

V. SPECIFIC DUTIES OF COUNSEL 

 A.  Readiness and Promptness for Court: 

  1)  Readiness and Promptness: The Attorney agrees to be prepared and appear 
in Court promptly at or before the time set for hearings and not to rely on Court staff to notify 
or have to locate him/her when court is ready to proceed. The Attorney agrees to discuss the case 
with her client before the time set for hearing, not at the time set for hearing. 

 

  2)  Law and Motion Day:  The Attorney agrees to be present for Law and Motion 
day and Pre-trial Conferences as scheduled. If a substitute attorney is necessary, the Attorney 
agrees to arrange for and update the substitute on case status, so the hearing can proceed rather 
than be continued. 

  3)  Delays:  In the event the Attorney will be late due to unforeseen circumstances, 
he/she agrees to communicate the delay and an anticipated arrival time as soon as practicable. 

 B.  Meetings with the Court:  The Attorney agrees to attend administrative meetings with 
the Court when, and as, scheduled regarding the court calendar, procedures, and contract issues. 

 C.  Statistical Reports:  The Attorney agrees to accurately complete and submit the 
caseload and summary statistical information regarding the Attorney’s appointments each month 
as required by the Court when submitting monthly bills for services rendered. 

 D. Criminal Case Processing: The Attorney acknowledges that the Arizona Supreme Court 
has adopted a goal of processing Ninety Percent (90%) of all criminal cases within one hundred 
(100) days. Gila County will be undergoing a criminal case re-engineering process with services of a 
consultant, and local criminal procedures may change as a result. The Attorney agrees to assist the 
Court in working on and obtaining those goals. 

  

 E.  Contact with and Representation of Client: 

  1)  Office:  The Attorney agrees to maintain regular office hours and have a method 



 

15 

 

for clients to contact him/her in an emergency outside of regular hours.  

  2)  Communication and Representation:  The Attorney agrees to promptly return 
phone calls and respond to correspondence, to obtain clients’ consent before requesting that 
hearings and appointments be rescheduled, to interview witnesses, to issue subpoenas, and in 
other ways deal professionally with the client and diligently represent the clients’ interests.  

  3)  Calendar:  The Attorney agrees to calendar her cases when they are scheduled 
for hearing, rather than relying on court staff to advise what is scheduled for him/her each week. 
The Attorney agrees to be the primary source of case information for the client. (Clients calling the 
Court trying to ascertain case information, clients failing to appear for hearings due to lack of 
notice, or clients appearing for hearings that have been changed is an indication of unavailability of 
counsel). 

  4)  Completion of Case:  The Attorney agrees to continue to represent any client on 
cases to which he/she was appointed during the term of this contract until the case is completed or 
he/she is relieved of that representation by order of the Court, regardless of the termination of the 
contract, and without additional compensation. 

 F.  Attorney Files:  The Attorney should retain his/her file for no less than five (5) years 
after the last action taken in the case. 

VI. PLEADINGS AND CASE MANAGEMENT PROCEDURES 

 A.  Motions and Orders: 

  1)  Timeliness and Basis:  Motions should be filed sufficiently in advance of 
trials/hearings to allow for response and reply. The Attorney acknowledges the requirements of 
good cause, supported by specific legal and factual basis, in submitting motions to the Court. 

  2)  Copies:  Copies of motions should be sent to the assigned judge and the court 
administrator. 

  3)  Oral Argument:  If oral argument is requested, a form of notice wherein the 
court administrator may insert the date and time for oral argument to be conducted should be 
submitted. 

  4)  Telephone Conference:  Prior approval by the Court to conduct oral argument 
by telephone conference call should be obtained, and the requesting Attorney is responsible for 
initiating the call to the Court at the date and time scheduled for hearing. 

  5)  Non-Appearance Calendar:  Motions filed without request for oral argument 
and which do not require an evidentiary hearing will be placed on the Court’s non-appearance 
calendar for submission to the Court after the time for response and reply have passed. 

  6)  Expedited Action:  If action is sought prior to the expiration of the time for 
response and reply, the motion should clearly identify that fact and indicate whether the prosecutor 
or any co-defendant objects to the requested relief.  

  7)  Orders:  Orders for the Court’s signature should be prepared as a separate 
document containing the standard case heading and should not be included as an integral part of 
stipulations, motions, or other pleadings. 

 B.  Facsimile: 

  1)  Temporary Pleadings:  Facsimile documents are intended to serve as 
temporary pleadings only. 

  2)  Originals:  After faxing a document, the Attorney should submit an original 
document (without modification) within ten (10) days of transmission of the facsimile so that the 



 

16 

 

Clerk can substitute the original for the facsimile in the Court file. 

  3)  Consent:  If a facsimile need to serve as an original, the Attorney should obtain 
consent of the assigned judge to submit the facsimile as an original. 

 C.  Pre-Trial Conference: 

  1)  Personal Attendance:  The Attorney and the defendant must be personally 
present. 

  2)  Discovery:  The Attorney should complete discovery by pre-trial conference so 
that motions to compel, motions for sanctions, etc., are unnecessary, and hearing does not need to 
be continued. 

  3)  Hearing Motions:  Simple motions that do not require evidentiary hearing can 
be heard at the pre-trial conference and should be filed with sufficient time for response before the 
pre-trial conference. Motions to suppress, voluntariness hearings, and other such matters requiring 
evidentiary hearings will be scheduled for a time other than the pre-trial conference. 

  4)  Continuances:  Continuances of the pre-trial conference are to be avoided. 

 D.  Special Management/Settlement Conferences: 

  1)  Personal Appearance:  The Attorney and the defendant must be personally 
present. 

  2)  Request:  Any Party may request a special management/settlement conference. 
Normally the conference will be held by a judge other than the assigned judge. 

 

  3)  Purpose:  The purpose is to help identify and resolve problems preventing the 
case from being completed, and may include discussion of possible plea agreements, 
diversion/deferral, ancillary motions such as discovery disputes and motions to continue. 

  4)  Assigned Judge:  Setting does not affect the assignment of trial judge, nor does it 
vacate any court dates set in the case.  Substantive issues of law and case-dispositive hearings are to 
be decided by the assigned trial judge. 

 E.  Deadline Date for Plea Agreements:  Plea negotiations should be completed by the 
first pre-trial conference date. If the Court sets a plea negotiation deadline, counsel acknowledges 
that submission of plea agreements after that date may not be accepted by the Court. 

 F.  Delinquency Cases:  All contract attorneys, not just those who primarily are assigned to 
represent juveniles in delinquency matters, are subject to being “on call” for representing juveniles 
who have been detained at accelerated hearings held on weekends and holidays. 

 G.  Dependency Cases:  Dependency cases require that the Attorney and parties personally 
appear at accelerated pre-hearing conferences and preliminary protective hearings. The Attorney 
should familiarize themselves with dependency procedures that became effective on January 01, 
1999. 

 H.  Motions to Continue: 

  1)  Procedure:  Continuances should be avoided and only sought for good cause. 
When expedited action is requested, the Attorney should contact the defendant, any co-defendants’ 
counsel, and prosecutor, advise them of the request, and indicate in the motion whether they object 
to the continuance. 

  2)  Order:  If there will be no objection, the Attorney should also submit an Order 
Continuing for the Courts’ signature. The Attorney should not assume a continuance will be granted 



 

17 

 

because there is no objection and is responsible for ensuring that a continuance was granted, and 
new dates have been assigned. 

  3)  Sanctions:  Sanctions, including jury costs and other court costs, may be 
imposed for late requests for continuances, whether granted or not. 

 I. Motions and Orders to Transport: 

  1)  Preparation:  When a defendant is in custody in Gila County, the Attorney 
should prepare a motion and order to transport so the defendant can be transported to 
proceedings, such as Rule 11 evaluations, outside of Gila County. When a defendant is in custody 
outside of Gila County, the Attorney should prepare a motion and order to transport so the 
defendant can be transported to any pre-trial hearings, trial, or post-trial hearings before the Court 
in Gila County.  

  2)  Time:  Motions and orders to transport should be prepared sufficiently in 
advance to permit Court action and notice to the Sheriff’s Office to accomplish timely 
transportation. 

  3)  Video-Conferencing:  The Court may utilize video-conferencing for Court 
hearings. The Attorney is to become familiar with policies and procedures for video-conferencing 
when it is used. 

 J.  Rule 11 Evaluations: 

  1)  Defendant’s Attendance:  The Attorney should make sure the defendant is 
aware of and appears for scheduled Rule 11 appointments or prepare a Motion to Transport and 
Order and make arrangements with the Sheriff’s Office in sufficient time for the Sheriff to transport 
the defendant to the appointment. 

  2)  Rescheduling:  If an appointment needs to be rescheduled, the Attorney should 
make such arrangements with the evaluator so as to avoid a billing for a “No Show”. 

  3)  Expense:  If the Attorney has filed a motion in advance and obtained Court 
approval, the Rule 11 evaluation will be an expense to the Court for the amount approved. If the 
defendant fails to appear for an evaluation, and the expert bills for a “No Show”, such cost may be 
assessed to the Attorney as a personal expense. 

 K.  Interpreters: 

  1)  Notice:  The Attorney should give the Court at least one-week advance notice 
when an interpreter will be necessary to ensure an interpreter can be scheduled. 

  2)  Permission:  The Attorney should get court permission in advance to use an 
interpreter at court expense for interviews, depositions, etc. 

  3)  Attorney Presence:  The Attorney should be present with the interpreter during 
interviews, depositions, and attorney-client discussions. 

VII. ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

A.  Cancellation for Conflict of Interest: This Agreement is subject to cancellation for 
conflict of interest as provided in A.R.S. § 38-511, which is hereby fully incorporated herein by this 
reference as if the same is fully set forth in this Agreement. 

B.  Arizona Legal Workers Act:  The Attorney hereby warrants that it will at all times 
during the term of this Agreement comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to 
Attorney’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A) 
(together the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  The Attorney shall further ensure that each 
contractor who performs any work for the Attorney under this Agreement likewise warrants 



 

18 

 

complies with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.  A breach of this warranty shall be deemed 
a material breach of the Agreement that is subject to penalties up to and including termination of 
the Agreement.  The County retains the legal right to inspect the employment record of Attorney or 
subcontractor who works on the Agreement to ensure compliance with the foregoing warranty.   

C. Compliance with Laws: Attorney shall comply with all laws, including rules and 
regulations of all governmental accrediting and regulatory authorities, including the State of 
Arizona and the State Bar of Arizona, relating to the licensure and regulation of attorneys.  

D. Entire Agreement: The Parties agree that this Agreement represents the complete 
and exclusive statement of agreement between the Parties and supersedes all proposals, oral or 
written, and all other communications relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.   

E. Waiver: Failure or delay in enforcing any term, provision or condition of this 
Agreement by either Party will not operate as a waiver and no waiver of any term, provision or 
condition of this Agreement will be valid unless in writing and signed by the Party agreeing to such 
waiver.  Any waiver by either Party of any condition, term or provision of this Agreement will not 
operate or be considered as a waiver of any other condition, term or provision of a waiver of any 
future event or circumstance. 

F.  Modifications: This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a written 
instrument duly signed by an authorized representative of the governing body of each Party.  

G. Severability: If any provision of this Agreement is determined by an arbitration 
panel or court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, then such provision shall be 
deemed modified to the extent necessary to render such provision valid and enforceable; if such 
provision may not be so saved, it shall be severed, and the remainder of this Agreement shall 
remain in full force and effect 

H. Governing Law and Jurisdiction:  The Parties agree that the Agreement shall be 
governed by the laws of the State of Arizona and the jurisdiction for any legal disputes arising out of 
this Agreement shall be the Superior Court of the State of Arizona.  The Parties acknowledge and 
agree that even if this Agreement does not specifically reference any provision required by state or 
federal law, those state and federally required provisions are incorporated into this Agreement by 
this reference as though they were specifically listed herein. 

I. Insurance: Prior to undertaking any work under this Agreement, the Attorney shall 
provide the County with proof of Lawyers Professional Liability Insurance with limits of $250,000 
per claim/ $500,000 aggregate.   Failure by Attorney to maintain such coverage shall be deemed a 
material default of the Agreement and may result in the termination of the Agreement.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, three (3) identical counterparts of this Agreement, each which shall 
include original signatures and for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly 
executed by the Parties hereinabove named, on the date and year first above written. 

 
GILA COUNTY PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT NO.  

 
APPROVED: 
 
              
Woody Cline, Chairman of the Board   XXXXX    

 
       
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



 

19 

 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________________ 
The Gila County Attorney’s Office 
 
 
       
Timothy Wright, Presiding Judge 



   
ARF-5861   Regular Agenda Item     3. E.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/04/2020  
Submitted For: Shelley McPherson, HR and Risk Management Director 
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Sr.
Department: Human Resources 

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of Revised Policy No. BOS-HRS-625 - Personnel Commission

Background Information
On January 5, 2016, the Board of Supervisors approved Policy No.
BOS-HRS-626-Personnel Commission to change the former policy as
Rule 3 under the Gila County Merit System Rules and Procedures to the
form adopted for all Countywide Board-adopted policies and change the
policy number.

On March 15, 2016, the Board of Supervisors approved another revision
to this policy to remove the reference of Adult and Juvenile Probation
Officers, and the Superior Court's Merit Rules and Policies as the
Superior Court has its own set of policies.

Evaluation
A.R.S. Section 38-847 states that the Chairperson of the Personnel
Commission must also serve as a member on the Public Safety Personnel
Retirement System (PSPRS) Local Board, Correctional Officers Retirement
Plan (CORP) Local Board for Detention Officers and Non-Uniformed
Officers, and the CORP Local Board for Dispatchers. The terms of office
for a member of the PSPRS Local Board and the two CORP Local Boards
is four (4) years. It would be appropriate to revise Policy No.
BOS-HRS-625-Personnel Commission to reflect a term of four (4) years for
the Chairperson. This will allow the Chairperson to remain an active
member of the PSPRS Local Board and two CORP Local Boards for the
appropriate term length.

Conclusion
The only change to this Policy will be changing the election of the
Chairperson from an annual basis to a term of four (4) years.



Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors adopt revised Policy No.
BOS-HRS-625.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt revised Policy
BOS-HRS-625-Personnel Commission changing the election of the
Chairperson from an annual basis to a four-year term. (Shelley
McPherson)

Attachments
BOS-HRS-625 Policy
Revised Personnel Commission Policy Redline



Gila County Human Resources 

PERSONNEL COMMISSION 

I. PURPOSE:

Page 

1 of 3 

Policy Number: BOS-HRS-625 

Replaces: Rule # 3 
Adopted: 01-05-2016 
Revised: 02-04-2020

The purpose of this policy is to establish the Gila County Personnel Commission
(Commission), identify the Commission's authority, and set forth the situations under which
eligible employees may appeal employment actions the employee deems to be adverse.

II. APPLICABILITY:

This policy applies to all classified Gila County employees.

III. POLICY:
It is the policy of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to appoint a Personnel Commission,
a five-member independent body of private citizens to provide an appeal process to County
employees who believe they have been involved in an adverse employment action. The
Commission is responsible for reviewing and understanding the precepts of Gila County
employment, retention and promotion for all classified employees to ensure it meets the
standards of the Gila County Merit System.

SIGNATURE: 

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE ' 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-625 

___________________________________ _______________



Gila County Human Resources 

PERSONNEL COMMISSION 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-625 

Replaces:  Rule # 3 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 
Revised:  02-04-2020

2 of 3 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-625 

IV. PROCEDURES:
The Board of Supervisors (Board) shall appoint a Personnel Commission to assist in the

County’s personnel administration system.

The Commission shall consist of five members, each of whom shall hold office for a term of

four years or until a successor is appointed and qualified. The Commission serves as an

independent advisory board established to hear appeals from eligible employees about

specific adverse employment actions.

Members of the Commission are selected from among the qualified electors of the County

and shall be generally familiar with Human Resources policies and procedures. No more than

three (3) of such members shall be from the same political party. At least one (1) member

shall have prior work experience in the law enforcement or probation field.

Each member shall hold office for a term of four (4) years or until his successor is appointed

and qualified. Of the members first appointed, two (2) shall serve for a two (2) year term, two

(2) for a three (3) year term, and one shall serve a four (4) year term, and such members shall

determine, by lot, the length of their terms. Appointment to fill a vacancy caused by other

than expiration of term shall be for the unexpired portion of the term. A member of the

Commission may be removed by the Board for cause. Any one of the following shall

constitute the resignation of a Commissioner and authorize the Board to appoint a new

member to fill the unexpired term so vacated:

 Absence from three (3) consecutive meetings;

 Becoming a candidate for any elected public office; or,

 Accepting any appointive office or employment in County service.

The Commission shall elect one (1) of its members as the Chairperson for a term of four (4) 
years. The Chairperson shall also be willing to serve on other local boards within the County 

that are required, by statute, to be represented by the “head of the merit system” and which 

are appointed by the Board of Supervisors. Three (3) members shall be present to constitute a 

quorum for the transaction of business. A majority of the commission membership shall 

constitute a majority vote. 

The Commission shall become familiar with and perform duties as are necessary to carry out 

the provisions of the Gila County Merit Rules, Human Resources policies, the Arizona 

Revised Statute (A.R.S.) Title 38, et seq., for Public Safety Officers (A.R.S. 38-1101 through 

38-1114), the Gila County Sheriff’s Office Policy and Procedure Manual, and other adopted 
policies of the County. In addition, the Commission may assist the Board of Supervisors in 
the following areas:



Gila County Human Resources 

PERSONNEL COMMISSION 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-625 

Replaces:  Rule # 3 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 
Revised:  02-04-2020

3 of 3 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-625 

A. Making recommendations on Human Resources policies with the goal of improving

understanding, consistent application, and the efficient operation of County government;

B. Making recommendations to the Board and Human Resources Director (Director) of

problems concerning personnel administration;

C. Making recommendations to assist in the fostering of interest in the best practices of

institutions of learning and of civic, professional, and employee organizations in order to

improve personnel standards in the County service; and,

D. Making annual reports, and such special reports as the Commission considers desirable to

the Board regarding personnel administration in the County service and recommendations for

improvements.

The Commission shall hold meetings in accordance with the Arizona Open Meeting laws 

A.R.S. §38-431, et seq.  The Commission shall meet at such times and places as shall be 

specified by call of a majority of the Commission or by the Chairperson. 

Further: 

 All meetings shall be open to the public;

 At least five (5) days’ written notice of each meeting shall be given by the

Director to each member not joining in the call for a meeting; and,

 Three (3) members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

All matters to be presented for consideration by the Commission at a regular or special 

meeting shall be placed on the Commission’s agenda without undue delay. The agenda shall 

be electronically mailed to each member of the Commission and shall be posted in 

accordance with A.R.S. §38-431.02, no less than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the meeting. 

The Director shall provide for the recording of the official actions of the Commission in its 

minutes. The time and place of each meeting of the Commission, the commissioners present, 

all official acts of the Commission and, when requested, a commissioner’s dissent and the 

reasons for the dissent shall be recorded in the minutes. The Director shall cause the minutes 

to be transcribed and presented for approval or amendment at the next meeting. The minutes, 

or a true copy thereof, shall be open to public inspection.  



Gila County Human Resources 

PERSONNEL COMMISSION 

I. PURPOSE:

Page 

1 of 3 

Policy Number: BOS-HRS-625 

Replaces: Rule # 3 
Adopted: 01-05-2016 
Revised: 02-04-2020

The purpose of this policy is to establish the Gila County Personnel Commission
(Commission), identify the Commission's authority, and set forth the situations under which
eligible employees may appeal employment actions the employee deems to be adverse.

II. APPLICABILITY:

This policy applies to all classified Gila County employees.

III. POLICY:
It is the policy of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to appoint a Personnel Commission,
a five-member independent body of private citizens to provide an appeal process to County
employees who believe they have been involved in an adverse employment action. The
Commission is responsible for reviewing and understanding the precepts of Gila County
employment, retention and promotion for all classified employees to ensure it meets the
standards of the Gila County Merit System.

SIGNATURE: 

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE ' 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-625 

___________________________________ _______________



Gila County Human Resources 

PERSONNEL COMMISSION 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-625 

Replaces:  Rule # 3 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 
Revised:  02-04-2020

2 of 3 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-625 

IV. PROCEDURES:
The Board of Supervisors (Board) shall appoint a Personnel Commission to assist in the

County’s personnel administration system.

The Commission shall consist of five members, each of whom shall hold office for a term of

four years or until a successor is appointed and qualified. The Commission serves as an

independent advisory board established to hear appeals from eligible employees about

specific adverse employment actions.

Members of the Commission are selected from among the qualified electors of the County

and shall be generally familiar with Human Resources policies and procedures. No more than

three (3) of such members shall be from the same political party. At least one (1) member

shall have prior work experience in the law enforcement or probation field.

Each member shall hold office for a term of four (4) years or until his successor is appointed

and qualified. Of the members first appointed, two (2) shall serve for a two (2) year term, two

(2) for a three (3) year term, and one shall serve a four (4) year term, and such members shall

determine, by lot, the length of their terms. Appointment to fill a vacancy caused by other

than expiration of term shall be for the unexpired portion of the term. A member of the

Commission may be removed by the Board for cause. Any one of the following shall

constitute the resignation of a Commissioner and authorize the Board to appoint a new

member to fill the unexpired term so vacated:

 Absence from three (3) consecutive meetings;

 Becoming a candidate for any elected public office; or,

 Accepting any appointive office or employment in County service.

The Commission shall elect one (1) of its members as the Chairperson for a term of four (4) 
years. The Chairperson shall also be willing to serve on other local boards within the County 

that are required, by statute, to be represented by the “head of the merit system” and which 

are appointed by the Board of Supervisors. Three (3) members shall be present to constitute a 

quorum for the transaction of business. A majority of the commission membership shall 

constitute a majority vote. 

The Commission shall become familiar with and perform duties as are necessary to carry out 

the provisions of the Gila County Merit Rules, Human Resources policies, the Arizona 

Revised Statute (A.R.S.) Title 38, et seq., for Public Safety Officers (A.R.S. 38-1101 through 

38-1114), the Gila County Sheriff’s Office Policy and Procedure Manual, and other adopted 
policies of the County. In addition, the Commission may assist the Board of Supervisors in 
the following areas:



Gila County Human Resources 

PERSONNEL COMMISSION 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-625 

Replaces:  Rule # 3 

Page 

Adopted: 01-05-2016 
Revised:  02-04-2020

3 of 3 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-625 

A. Making recommendations on Human Resources policies with the goal of improving

understanding, consistent application, and the efficient operation of County government;

B. Making recommendations to the Board and Human Resources Director (Director) of

problems concerning personnel administration;

C. Making recommendations to assist in the fostering of interest in the best practices of

institutions of learning and of civic, professional, and employee organizations in order to

improve personnel standards in the County service; and,

D. Making annual reports, and such special reports as the Commission considers desirable to

the Board regarding personnel administration in the County service and recommendations for

improvements.

The Commission shall hold meetings in accordance with the Arizona Open Meeting laws 

A.R.S. §38-431, et seq.  The Commission shall meet at such times and places as shall be 

specified by call of a majority of the Commission or by the Chairperson. 

Further: 

 All meetings shall be open to the public;

 At least five (5) days’ written notice of each meeting shall be given by the

Director to each member not joining in the call for a meeting; and,

 Three (3) members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

All matters to be presented for consideration by the Commission at a regular or special 

meeting shall be placed on the Commission’s agenda without undue delay. The agenda shall 

be electronically mailed to each member of the Commission and shall be posted in 

accordance with A.R.S. §38-431.02, no less than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the meeting. 

The Director shall provide for the recording of the official actions of the Commission in its 

minutes. The time and place of each meeting of the Commission, the commissioners present, 

all official acts of the Commission and, when requested, a commissioner’s dissent and the 

reasons for the dissent shall be recorded in the minutes. The Director shall cause the minutes 

to be transcribed and presented for approval or amendment at the next meeting. The minutes, 

or a true copy thereof, shall be open to public inspection.  



   
ARF-5854   Regular Agenda Item     3. F.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/04/2020  
Submitted For: Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau

Chief 
Submitted By: Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau

Chief
Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: 2020-2021 Budgeted?: No
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2020 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Approve the County Attorney's application for the use of money from the
County Anti-Racketeering Fund to pay a tax lien on real property subject
to seizure for forfeiture in order to prevent foreclosure of the property and
preserve the state's right to a percentage of the net proceeds of sale of the
property.

Background Information
The Gila County Attorney filed a Notice of Seizure for Forfeiture and
Notice of Pending Forfeiture Making Uncontested Forfeiture Available on
Gila County Parcel No. 305-40-031. The County Attorney litigated the
matter in the Arizona Superior Court, Gila County, Case No.
SO400CV201600117. The Court entered the Stipulated Settlement Order
on April 28, 2019. Under the Settlement Order, the property is to be sold
and the net proceeds divided between the state (which will receive 65
percent of the net proceeds) and the owner of the property (who will
receive 35% of the net proceeds). However, there is a tax lien against the
property and the time is at hand when a foreclosure action could be filed.
In order to protect the state's interest against possible foreclosure, it is
necessary to advance the money to pay the tax lien from the County
Anti-Racketeering Fund and then repay the fund from the proceeds of the
sale. There should be sufficient funds from the proceeds of the sale to
repay the fund because the property has been estimated to be worth at
least $70,000 and the tax lien is $8,010.93.



Evaluation
A.R.S. § 13-2314.03 provides that “...before the county attorney’s office
may use any monies from the fund, the county attorney shall submit
an application that includes a description of what the requested
monies will be used for to the board of supervisors. The board of
supervisors shall approve the county attorney’s use of the monies if
the purpose is authorized by this section, section 13-4315 or federal
law.”  Section 13-4315(C) authorizes: “Monies in any anti-racketeering
fund .... may be used ..... for .... payment of any expenses necessary
to .... protect, maintain, [or] preserve the availability of ... property that
is subject to forfeiture and that is seized ..... pursuant to this title .... "

Payment of the tax lien against parcel number 305-40-031 would protect,
maintain, and preserve the availability of the property for forfeiture
proceedings; therefore, the use of the monies for this purpose is an
authorized use.

Conclusion
The payment of the tax lien against this parcel is necessary to prevent
foreclosure of the property to preserve the state's right under the
settlement agreement to receive 65 percent of the net proceeds of the sale
of the parcel.

Recommendation
The County Attorney recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve
the County Attorney's application to use monies from the County
Anti-Racketeering Fund to pay the tax lien against Gila County parcel
number 305-40-031 to prevent foreclosure of the property and preserve
the state's right to 65 percent of the net proceeds of sale as set forth in
the settlement order.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Gila County Attorney's
application to use monies from the Gila County Anti-Racketeering Fund
pursuant to A.R.S. § 13-2314.03 to pay the outstanding tax lien against
Gila County parcel number 305-40-031 to prevent foreclosure of the
property and then to reimburse the fund for the tax lien payment from the
proceeds of the sale of the property. (Jeff Dalton)

Attachments



STIPULATED SETTLEMENT ORDER













   
ARF-5856   Regular Agenda Item     3. G.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/04/2020  
Submitted For: Woody Cline, Member, Board of Supervisors 
Submitted By: Cathy Melvin, Executive Assistant
Department: Board of Supervisors-District 3

Information
Request/Subject
Discussion regarding the Forest Service 203 Road located in the Sierra
Ancha Wilderness.  The road is scheduled to be closed pursuant to the
Tonto National Forest Travel Management Plan.  The reopening of this
road may require Congressional Action.

Background Information
A Work Session was held on December 10, 2019 and a number of
interested parties attended the Work Session to discuss the closure of
10.5 miles of the Forest Service 203 Road and possible alternatives and
solutions for the reopening of the road.  Following the Work Session, the
County Manager's Office determined that a facilitated meeting would be
beneficial in order to continue the discussion among the interested
parties.  Southwest Decision Resources has agreed to facilitate a meeting
that will be held on February 19, 2020 in Globe.  Prior to this meeting it
would be beneficial for Gila County to define their position regarding the
action that will be required to reopen the road.

Evaluation
It would be beneficial for the Board of Supervisors to discuss the County's
position regarding the possible alternatives and solutions for the
reopening of the 10.5 miles of Forest Road 203.

Conclusion
N/A

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors discuss the possible
alternatives and solutions related to the reopening or possible permanent
closure of the 10.5 miles of Forest Road 203.

Suggested Motion



Information/Discussion/Action to determine the County's position on the
issue regarding the Forest Service 203 Road. (Woody Cline)

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
ARF-5875   Regular Agenda Item     3. H.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/04/2020  
Submitted For: Woody Cline, Member, Board of Supervisors 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board
Department: Board of Supervisors-District 3

Information
Request/Subject
Appointment to the Board of Directors of the Gila County Industrial
Development Authority

Background Information
The Industrial Development Authority of the County of Gila, Arizona (IDA)
is comprised of nine members.  Each Supervisor recommends to the
Board of Supervisors the names of three members who they would like to
represent their specific Supervisorial District on the IDA Board, and the
Board of Supervisors then votes on the appointment(s).  The terms of
office for IDA members is six years.

As of January 1, 2020, there is a vacancy for a member that represents
Supervisorial District 3, which is Supervisor Woody Cline's district.  The
six-year term of office began on January 1, 2020 and will expire on
December 31, 2025.

Evaluation
Supervisor Cline has asked Bill Marshall to serve on the IDA to which he
has agreed.

Conclusion
Supervisor Cline recommends the appointment of Mr. Bill Marshall to the
IDA Board of Directors for the term of office beginning on February 4,
2020, through through December 31, 2025.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors appoint Mr. Marshall to
the IDA Board of Directors for a six-year term of office that will begin
upon the day of appointment by the Board of Supervisors and end on
December 31, 2025.



Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to appoint Mr. Bill Marshall to the Board
of Directors of The Industrial Development Authority of the County of
Gila, Arizona (IDA) for a term of office that will expire on December 31,
2025.  (Woody Cline)

Attachments
IDA Member List



GILA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

(Proposed to the BOS on 2-4-20) 

 

Name of Member & 
Appointment Info.1 

Appointment 
Designation2 

Appointment Type3 
&  

BOS Approval Date 

Time Served Prior 
 to Current 

Appointment 

Term of Incumbent (End 
date must match end 

date of Term of Office) 

Term of Office 
(Only change when new 

term cycle begins 

Tim Grier D (Supv.  Dist. 1 
recommendation) 

C (09/17/19) 6 years 09/17/19-12/31/24 01/01/19-12/31/24 

Cliff Potts D (Supv.  Dist. 1 
recommendation) 

C (10/30/18) 6 years 06/07/17-12/31/22 06/07/17-12/31/22 

James Feezor D (Supv.  Dist. 1 
recommendation) 

C (10/30/18) 3 years, 11 months 06/07/17-12/31/22 06/07/17-12/31/22 

Robert Pastor D (Supv.  Dist. 2 
recommendation) 

C (09/17/19) 6 years 09/17/19-12/31/24 09/17/19-12/31/24 

Stanley Gibson D (Supv.  Dist. 2 
recommendation) 

C (12/06/16) 2 years, 6 months 01/20/16-12/31/21 01/20/16-12/31/21 

M. Lisa Brazil D (Supv. Dist. 2 
recommendation) 

C (09/17/19) 3 years as of 
12/31/19 

01/01/20-12/31/25 01/01/20-12/31/25 

Jill Wilson D (Supv. Dist. 3 
recommendation) 

A (12/04/18) - 12/04/18-12/31/22 01/01/17-12/31/22 

William Marshall D (Supv.  Dist. 3 
recommendation) 

A (02/04/20) - 02/04/20-12/31/25 01/01/20-12/31/25 

Udon McSpadden D (Supv. Dist. 3 
recommendation) 

A (07/23/19) - 07/23/19-12/31/24 07/23/19-12/31/24  

                     
1  Appointment Information: 

A. Date of creation: August 7, 1972  
B. Regulated by A.R.S. §35-701 through 35-761, and the IDA’s Articles of Incorporation dated August 7, 1972. 
C. Governing Board members:  A nine-member board which is appointed by the Board of Supervisors.  
D. Terms of Office:  Members are appointed to six-year terms of office.  The initial governing board was broken into 3 groups of 3 so that the terms of office would be two years apart for each group, per A.R.S. §35-

705.    
 

2  Appointment Designation: 
A.     Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 

         B.     Supervisory Appointment:  Member unrestricted by district. 
C. Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 
D. County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E. Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 

 
3  Appointment Type 

A. New Appointment 
B. Existing vacancy created by (provide name) 
C. Reappointment (include number of years/months served prior to most recent appointment in right-hand column) 



   
ARF-5878   Regular Agenda Item     3. I.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/04/2020  
Submitted For: Mary Springer, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Mary Springer, Finance Director
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: FY20-21 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

02/04/2020 -
06/30/2021

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Professional Services Contract No. 020120-Federal Relations Services
with Bose Public Affairs Group.

Background Information
On May 12, 2009, the Gila County Board of Supervisors approved
Professional Services Contract No. 042109-PSC between Gila County
and Bose Public Affairs Group (BPAG) to provide government
relations services for the support of development and execution of
county federal programs and projects in the monthly amount of
$6,500 and in effect until June 30, 2011. On June 7, 2011, the Gila
County Board of Supervisors approved the First Amendment to
Professional Services Contract No. 042109-PSC with BPAG, which
extended the term of the contract from July 1, 2011, to June 30,
2013. Staff began working on amendments to the contract before its
expiration. It has been determined that a new contract would be
more appropriate because of the June 30, 2013, end date. On July
16, 2013, the Board approved Professional Services Contract No.
070113 with BPAG to continue providing lobbying and consulting
services at the federal government level to Gila County at the rate of
$6,500 per month, effective July 16, 2013, through June 30, 2014.
On November 18, 2014, the Board approved Professional Services
Contract No. 103114 between Gila County and Bose Public Affairs
Group (BPAG) to provide government relations services for the



support of development and execution of county federal programs
and projects. The contract amount was issued as a not to exceed,
without prior written approval from the County, amount of $50,000,
for a contract term of November 18, 2014 to November 17, 2015,
with the option to renew for two additional one-year periods. On
August 17, 2015, the Board authorized an increase of $29,645 to
the contract amount, which was the amount, excluding expenses,
that BPAG had estimated their projected services would be through
their contract end date of November 17, 2015. The increase made a
new total contract amount of $79,645 for the contract term of
November 18, 2014 to November 17, 2015. On October 20, 2015,
the Board approved Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services
Contract No. 103114 to extend the term of the contract from
November 18, 2015 to November 17, 2016; and to increase the
contract amount from $50,000 to $75,000, to be expensed if needed
and as requested. On December 6, 2016, the Board approved
Professional Services Contract No. 071014-2 with BPAG to provide
consulting and lobbying services for Gila County at the federal
government level in a not to exceed amount of $75,000 for the
period November 17, 2016, to November 18, 2020. (Note: The
contract was dated December 6, 2016, at which time the BOS
Chairman and other County staff signed it, so it would be in effect
until December 5, 2020.) On February 19, 2019, Professional
Services Contract No. 013019 was presented to the Board for
services provided by BPAG to be on a monthly retainer fee of $7,000
instead of an hourly rate for a total of $84,000 plus up to $4,000
annually for approved expenses. After discussion, the Board tabled
the agenda item and opted to continue operating with BPAG under
the current Professional Services Contract No. 071014-2 which
expires on November 18, 2020. It has been determined that a new
contract would be more appropriate and payment for service should
be on a monthly retainer fee of $7,000 instead of an hourly rate. The
requested contract amount is an annual retainer fee of $84,000 with
an additional $4,000 travel allowance if travel is necessary and
approved during the course of the contract.

Evaluation
Contract No. 020120 is a new contract which supersedes Contract No.



Contract No. 020120 is a new contract which supersedes Contract No.
071014-2. Services: The County hereby retains BPAG to perform certain
services intended to strengthen Gila County's relationship with members
of the U.S. House and Senate, and with various Federal Agencies
including but not limited to: U.S. Forest Service, Environmental
Protection Agency, U.S. Fish and Wildlife, Federal Emergency
Management Agency, Department of Agriculture, and Bureau of Land
Management. BPAG will work with the Board of Supervisors and staff to
develop the County's Federal Relations Program to meet the needs of the
citizens of the County. 

Conclusion
The new Professional Services Contract No. 020120 with Bose Public
Affairs Group will terminate the existing contract 071014-2 and will
provide a better value allowing unlimited access instead of an hourly
fee for Gila County by paying a retainer fee of $7,000 monthly
($84,000 annually) plus travel not to exceed $4,000, if required and
approved and will continue to have a qualified partner representing
Gila County's interests at the federal government level.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve
Professional Services Contract No. 020120 with Bose Public Affairs
Group in the amount of $84,000 plus approved travel related
expenses not to exceed $4,000 to continue to provide lobbying and
consulting services at the federal government level to Gila County,
which cancels existing Contract No. 071014-2.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional Services Contract
No. 020120 with Bose Public Affairs Group, which will terminate Contract
No. 071014-2 to continue providing lobbying and consulting services at
the federal government level to Gila County in the amount of $84,000 per
year (at a rate of $7,000 per month) plus up to $4,000 in travel related
expenses, effective February 1, 2020, through June 30, 2021. (Mary
Springer)

Attachments
Professional Services Contract No. 020120-BPAG
Contract 071014-2



Contract 071014-2
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 103114
Contract 103114-Bose
Contract 070113 BPAG
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 042109
Contract No. 042109



























































   
ARF-5865   Consent Agenda Item     4. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/04/2020  
Submitted By: Erin Miller, Elections Assistant
Department: Elections

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of an Order to Designate Polling Places and Appoint Poll
Workers for the March 17, 2020 Presidential Preference Election.

Background Information
Arizona Revised Statute §16-411 provides that the Board of Supervisors
shall designate polling places for each precinct.

Arizona Revised Statute §16-531 provides that the Board of Supervisors
shall designate poll workers and election board workers.

Evaluation
Arizona Revised Statutes §16-411 and §16-531 require the adoption of
this Order.

Conclusion
An Order must be adopted by the Board of Supervisors in order to
designate polling places and appoint poll workers and the election board
workers within Gila County.

Recommendation
The Elections Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt
this Order.

Suggested Motion
Adoption of an Order designating polling places and the appointment of
poll workers and election board workers for the purpose of conducting the
March 17, 2020 Presidential Preference Election.

Attachments
Order



ARS 16-411
ARS 16-531



Order-Designate Polling Places and Appoint Poll Workers and Election Board Workers Page 1 of 8 
 

 

 
 

 

ORDER 

 

AN ORDER OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

DESIGNATING POLLING PLACES WITHIN EACH ELECTION 

PRECINCT AND APPOINTING POLL WORKERS AND ELECTION 

BOARD WORKERS FOR THE PRESIDENTIAL PREFERENCE 

ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MARCH 17, 2020. 

 

WHEREAS, A.R.S. §16-411(B) states, “Not less than twenty days before a general or primary 

election, and at least ten days before a special election, the board shall designate one polling 

place within each precinct where the election shall be held, except that: 

1. On a specific finding of the board, included in the order or resolution designating polling 

places pursuant to this subsection, that no suitable polling place is available within a precinct, a 

polling place for that precinct may be designated within an adjacent precinct. 

2. Adjacent precincts may be combined if boundaries so established are included in election 

districts prescribed by law for state elected officials and political subdivisions including 

community college districts but not including elected officials prescribed by titles 30 and 48. The 

officer in charge of elections may also split a precinct for administrative purposes. The polling 

places shall be listed in separate sections of the order or resolution. 

3. On a specific finding of the board that the number of persons who are listed as permanent 

early voters pursuant to section 16-544 is likely to substantially reduce the number of voters 

appearing at one or more specific polling places at that election, adjacent precincts may be 

consolidated by combining polling places and precinct boards for that election. The board of 

supervisors shall ensure that a reasonable and adequate number of polling places will be 

designated for that election. Any consolidated polling places shall be listed in separate sections 

of the order or resolution of the board.”; 

4. On a specific resolution of the board, the board may authorize the use of voting centers in 

place of or in addition to specifically designated polling places. A voting center shall allow any 

voter in that county to receive the appropriate ballot for that voter on election day after 

presenting identification as prescribed in section 16-579 and to lawfully cast the ballot. Voting 

centers may be established in coordination and consultation with the county recorder, at other 

county offices or at other locations in the county deemed appropriate. 

 

WHEREAS, A.R.S. §16-531(A) states, “When an election is ordered, and not less than twenty 

days before a general or primary election, the board of supervisors shall appoint for each 

election precinct one inspector, one marshal, two judges and as many clerks of election as 

deemed necessary. The inspector, marshal, judges and clerks shall be qualified voters of the 

precinct for which appointed, unless there is not a sufficient number of persons available to 

provide the number of appointments required. The inspector, marshal and judges shall not have 



Order-Designate Polling Places and Appoint Poll Workers and Election Board Workers Page 2 of 8 
 

 

changed their political party affiliation or their no party preference affiliation since the last 

preceding general election, and if they are members of the two political parties that cast the 

highest number of votes in the state at the last preceding general election, they shall be divided 

equally between these two parties. There shall be an equal number of inspectors in the various 

precincts in the county who are members of the two largest political parties. In each precinct 

where the inspector is a member of one of the two largest political parties, the marshal in that 

precinct shall be a member of the other of the two largest political parties. Whenever possible, 

any person appointed as an inspector shall have had previous experience as an inspector, judge, 

marshal or clerk of elections. If there is no qualified person in a given precinct, the appointment 

of an inspector may be made from names provided by the county party chairman. If not less than 

ninety days before the election the chairman of the county committee of either of the parties 

designates qualified voters of the precinct, or of another precinct if there are not sufficient 

members of his party available in the precinct to provide the necessary representation on the 

election board as judge, such designated qualified voters shall be appointed. The judges, 

together with the inspector, shall constitute the board of elections. Any registered voter in the 

election precinct, or in another election precinct if there are not sufficient persons available in 

the election precinct for which the clerks are being appointed, may be appointed as clerk.”;  

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of February 2020, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 

 

Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 

_______________________________ _______________________________ 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board  Woody Cline, Chairman    

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

The Gila County Attorney’s Office 



Order-Designate Polling Places and Appoint Poll Workers and Election Board Workers Page 3 of 8 
 

 

 

ORDER - ATTACHMENT A 

 

GILA COUNTY POLLING PLACES AND VOTE CENTER LOCATIONS 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. §16-411(B), the following locations have been 

designated as polling places or vote centers for 2020 elections held in Gila County. 

 

Vote Center – A polling location in which any voter may receive an appropriate ballot for 

that voter on Election Day and lawfully cast their ballot. 

• Gila County has 6 vote centers.  ANY registered voter may vote at any of the vote 

centers. 

• Gila County has 11 precinct specific polling sites; voters must be registered in those 

precincts in order to cast a valid ballot. 

• Polling place/vote centers are open from 6:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. on Election Day. 

• Ballot Replacement Sites are open from 12:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. on Election Day. 

 

Polling Place or Vote Center Location of Election Precinct or Vote Center 

Globe Vote Center Pinal Mountain AZ #2809 Elks Lodge, 1919 E Maple 

Street, Globe 

Miami Vote Center Miami High School, 4739 S Ragus Road, Miami 

Payson Vote Center #1 Expedition Church, 302 S Ash Street, Payson 

Payson Vote Center #2 Church of the Nazarene, 200 E Tyler Parkway, Payson 

Payson Vote Center #3 Mt. Cross Lutheran Church, 601 E Hwy 260, Payson 

Star Valley Vote Center Rim View Community Church, 4180 E Hwy. 260, Star 

Valley 

Copper Basin Hayden-Winkelman School District Office, 824 Thorne 

Ave, Winkelman 

Gisela Tonto Valley Bible Church, 526 S Valley View Rd, 

Gisela 

Pine-Strawberry East &  

Pine-Strawberry West 

First Baptist Church of Pine, 4039 N hwy. 87, Pine 

Roosevelt & Sierra Ancha (All 

Mail – Ballot Replacement Site) 

Roosevelt Baptist Church, 18659 Hwy. 188, Roosevelt 

Tonto Basin Tonto Basin Chamber of Commerce, 45675 Hwy. 188, 

Tonto Basin 

Whispering Pines (All Mail – 

Ballot Replacement Site) 

East Verde Baptist Church, 11209 N Houston Mesa 

Road, Whispering Pines 

Young Pleasant Valley Community Center, Hwy. 288, Young 

Zane Grey Christopher Creek Bible Fellowship Church, 1036 E 

Christopher Creek Loop, Christopher Creek 

Canyon Day  Canyon Day Jr. High School Library, 4621 S 9th 

Street, Cedar Creek 

Carrizo Carrizo Assembly of God Church, V-10 Road, Carrizo 

San Carlos Rice Elementary School Gym, Mohave Avenue and 

Yavapai Street, San Carlos 



Order-Designate Polling Places and Appoint Poll Workers and Election Board Workers Page 4 of 8 
 

 

ORDER - ATTACHMENT B 

 

GILA  COUNTY POLLING PLACES AND APPOINTED POLL 

WORKERS AND ELECTION BOARD WORKERS FOR THE 

PRESIDENTIAL PREFERENCE ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MARCH 

17, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

Polling Place or Vote 

Center 

Name of Poll Worker or  

Election Board Worker 

Position of Poll Worker or 

Election Board Worker 

Globe Vote Center Belarde, Estelle Inspector 

Globe Vote Center Campos, Patricia Co-Inspector 

Globe Vote Center Alexander, Dan I.D. Clerk 

Globe Vote Center Campos, Antonella I.D. Clerk 

Globe Vote Center Nancarrow, Pearl Provisional Clerk 

Globe Vote Center Rogers, Linda Marshal 

Globe Vote Center Olson, Dylan Elections Day Technician 

Globe Vote Center Beaver, Larry  Ballot Judge 

Miami Vote Center Sutherland, Stacy Inspector 

Miami Vote Center Sutherland, Kelly Ballot Judge 

Miami Vote Center Milliman, Nelson Provisional Clerk 

Miami Vote Center Rasmussen, James Marshal 

Miami Vote Center  I.D. Clerk 

Miami Vote Center Benedetto, Sam Elections Day Technician 

Tonto Basin Jackson, Barbara Inspector 

Tonto Basin Hardy, Linda Ballot Judge 

Tonto Basin  I.D. Clerk 

Payson Vote Center #1 Dalby, Bob Inspector 

Payson Vote Center #1 Stroud, Barbara I.D. Clerk 

Payson Vote Center #1 Idemmili, Shelly I.D. Clerk 

Payson Vote Center #1 Dalby, Wilma Provisional Clerk 

Payson Vote Center #1 Silver, Mary Jane Marshal 

Payson Vote Center #1 Underwood, Barbara I.D. Clerk 

Payson Vote Center #1 Omoto, Carole Provisional Clerk 

Payson Vote Center #2 Miller, Frances Ballot Judge 

Payson Vote Center #2 Schwenk, Lynda I.D. Clerk 

Payson Vote Center #2 McElfresh, Herman Ballot Judge 

Payson Vote Center #2 McElfresh, Marilee I.D. Clerk 

Payson Vote Center #2 Ardt, Doug Co-Inspector 

Payson Vote Center #2 Shafferkoetter, Judy Inspector 

Payson Vote Center #2 Thompson, Cathrine Provisional Clerk 

Payson Vote Center #2 Ryan, Pamela Marshal 

Payson Vote Center #3 Rowe, Maryann Inspector 



Order-Designate Polling Places and Appoint Poll Workers and Election Board Workers Page 5 of 8 
 

 

Payson Vote Center #3 Younker, Darlene Ballot Judge 

Payson Vote Center #3 Lootans, Jean Provisional Clerk 

Payson Vote Center #3 Mills, Patrece I.D. Clerk 

Payson Vote Center #3 Gean, Jon I.D. Clerk 

Payson Vote Center #3 Moser, Linda I.D. Clerk 

Star Valley Vote Center Holmgren, John Inspector 

Star Valley Vote Center Hetrick, Marleen Marshal 

Star Valley Vote Center  I.D. Clerk 

Star Valley Vote Center  Ballot Judge 

Star Valley Vote Center  Provisional Clerk 

Pine-Strawberry Andersen, Rita I.D. Clerk 

Pine-Strawberry Dwyer, Herb Marshal 

Pine-Strawberry Underhill, Charlene I.D. Clerk 

Pine-Strawberry Owsley, Penny Provisional Clerk 

Pine-Strawberry Owsley, Michael Ballot Judge 

Zane Grey Britian, Rodney Inspector 

Zane Grey Egler, Silvanus Ballot Judge 

Zane Grey Oliver, Jim I.D. Clerk 

Zane Grey Tolle, Judy Provisional Clerk 

Young McKinney, Mike Inspector 

Young Cortez, Curtis Ballot Judge 

Young Schiedewind, Kathrine I.D. Clerk 

Young  Provisional Clerk 

Young  Marshal 

Whispering Pines Jones, Lois Inspector 

Whispering Pines Jones, Bobby Ballot Judge 

Whispering Pines Bullock, Sheila I.D. Clerk 

Whispering Pines Bullock, Leonard Marshall 

Whispering Pines Dye, Shirley Provisional Clerk 

Gisela Kirch, Mark Inspector 

Gisela Rodgers, Donna Ballot Judge 

Gisela  Provisional Clerk 

Gisela Mathis, Kay I.D. Clerk 

Gisela Orear, Fran Marshal 

Copper Basin Olmos, Judas Inspector 

Copper Basin Lovins, Maryann Ballot Judge 

Copper Basin  Hinojos, Daniel  Marshal 

Copper Basin Garcia, Jose Luis I.D. Clerk 

Copper Basin Hinojos, Annie Provisional Clerk 

Copper Basin Acton, Manuela I.D. Clerk 

Canyon Day Burnette, Sr., Vino Inspector 

Canyon Day  Ballot Judge 

Canyon Day  I.D. Clerk 

Canyon Day Thompson, Lee Provisional Clerk 

Canyon Day Thompson, Sr., Elton Marshal 



Order-Designate Polling Places and Appoint Poll Workers and Election Board Workers Page 6 of 8 
 

 

Carrizo Gooday, Rosie-Anna Inspector 

Carrizo Truax, Larue Ballot Judge 

Carrizo Altaha, Clarinda I.D. Clerk/Signature Judge 

Carrizo Foster, Rosie Poll List Clerk 

San Carlos Lupe, Pearly Inspector 

San Carlos  Co-Inspector 

San Carlos Cosen, Susie  Ballot Judge  

San Carlos   Signature Judge  

San Carlos Nosie, Marcella  ID Clerk  

San Carlos Lupe, Randy  Marshal  

San Carlos Pechuli, Joshua Provisional Clerk 

Roosevelt-Sierra Ancha  Inspector 

Roosevelt-Sierra Ancha  I.D. Clerk/Signature Judge 

Roosevelt-Sierra Ancha  Ballot Judge 

 



Order-Designate Polling Places and Appoint Poll Workers and Election Board Workers Page 7 of 8 
 

 

ORDER - ATTACHMENT C 

 

ELECTION WORKERS 

 

 

Election Responsibility Name 

Accuracy & Certification Alvarez, Alfonzo 

Accuracy & Certification Broeder, Carol 

Accuracy & Certification Mariscal, Eric 

Audit/Hand Count Alvarez, Alfonso 

Audit/Hand Count Broeder, Carol 

Audit/Hand Count Mariscal, Eric 

Audit/Hand Count Miller, Erin 

Data Processing Alvarez, Alfonzo 

Data Processing Miller, Erin 

Data Processing Broeder, Carol 

Data Processing Mariscal, Eric 

Early Board Barefoot, Janine 

Early Board Broeder, Carol 

Early Board Moorehead, Judy 

Early Board Moorehead, Sam 

Early Board Mundy, Dixie 

Early Board Miller, Erin 

Early Board Mariscal, Cheryle 

Early Board Rogers, Tom 

Early Board  

Interpreters Amaya, Marcela 

Interpreters Alvarez, Alfonzo 

Night Board Sluyter, Cheryl 

Night Board Floyd, Christine 

Night Board Gregovich-Benton, Francine 

Night Board Mariscal, Cheryle 

Night Board Guthrey, Debbie 

Night Board Rogers, Olga 

Night Board  

Night Board  

Night Board  

Pick-up Transportation Sheriffs Posse Personel 

Pick-up Transportation  

Pick-up Transportation  

Pick-up Transportation  

Pick-up Transportation  

Pick-up Transportation  

Pick-up Transportation  

Pick-up Transportation  



Order-Designate Polling Places and Appoint Poll Workers and Election Board Workers Page 8 of 8 
 

 

Pick-up Transportation  

Pick-up Transportation  

Pick-up Transportation  

Pick-up Transportation  

Pick-up Transportation  

Pick-up Transportation  

Snag Dalton, Jeff 

Snag Mariscal, Eric 

Snag Menlove, James  

Trouble Shooters Alvarez, Alfonso 

Trouble Shooters Baer, Jeff 

Trouble Shooters Miller, Erin 

Trouble Shooters Modglin, Lisa 

Trouble Shooters Mariscal, Eric 

 













   
ARF-5867   Consent Agenda Item     4. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/04/2020  
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Community Action Program (CAP) Advisory Board
Appointments

Background Information
The Gila County CAP Advisory Board consists of 9 members of which 3
members represent the public sector and are appointed by the Board of
Supervisors (BOS); 3 members represent low-income citizens and they
are elected by the citizens of a specific geographic low-income area,
and acknowledged by the BOS; and 3 members represent the private
sector and they are appointed by the CAP Advisory Board,
and acknowledged by the BOS.

A term of office for a CAP Advisory Board member who represents the
low-income sector was due to expire on December 31, 2019.  In late 2019,
an election was held to fill that slot.  On December 4, 2019, the CAP
Advisory Board declared the election results official whereby Janice
Chesser was elected to represent the low-income sector on the CAP
Advisory Board for the term beginning January 1, 2020, through
December 31, 2023.

On July 17, 2019, Linda Oddonetto was appointed to the CAP Advisory
Board as a private sector representative to fulfill Mr. Villegas's unexpired
term of office through December 31, 2019.

On December 4, 2019, the CAP Advisory Board reappointed Ms.
Oddonetto to serve another term of office to begin on January 1, 2020,
through December 31, 2023.

Evaluation
The CAP Advisory Board is under the purview of the Board of



The CAP Advisory Board is under the purview of the Board of
Supervisors.  To ensure that there is an accurate list of CAP Advisory
Board members in the office of the Board of Supervisors, the Board needs
to acknowledge the most recent membership changes for the election of
Janice Chesser and reappointment of Linda Oddonetto.

Conclusion
The names listed above are being presented to the Board of Supervisors
for acknowledgement of their respective election and appointment to the
CAP Advisory Board.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors acknowledge the election
of Janice Chesser and reappointment of Linda Oddonetto to the CAP
Advisory Board.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the election of Janice Chesser and the reappointment
of Linda Oddonetto to the Community Action Program Advisory Board for
the term beginning January 1, 2020, through December 31, 2023.

Attachments
CAP Advisory Board Member List



GILA COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM ADVISORY BOARD 

(Proposed to the BOS on 2/4/20)   

 

Name of Member & 
Appointment Info.1 

Appointment 
Designation2 

Appointment Type3 &  
BOS Approval Date 

Time Served Prior 
 to Current 

Appointment 

Term of Incumbent (End 
date must match end 

date of Term of Office) 

Term of Office 
(Only change when new 

term cycle begins 

Margret Celix (Appointed by 
BOS) 

B-Public Sector C (09/20/16) 20 years 01/01/17-12/31/20 01/01/17-12/31/20 

Charles Proudfoot (Appointed 
by BOS) 

B-Public Sector C (09/17/19) 1 year, 4 months  
as of 12/31/19  

01/01/20-12/31/23 01/01/20-12/31/23 

Audrey Opitz (Appointed by 
BOS) 

B-Public Sector C (11/07/17) 7 years, 11 months 01/01/18-12/31/21 01/01/18-12/31/21 

Janice Chesser (Elected by 
citizens of specific geographic 
area) 

C-Low-Income A (02/04/20) 
(12/4/19 election results 
declared official by CAP 
Board) 

- 01/01/20-12/31/23 01/01/20-12/31/23 

Annie Hinojos (Elected by 
citizens of specific geographic 
area) 

C-Low-Income C (08/20/18) 30 years 01/01/18-12/31/21 01/01/18-12/31/21 

Ralph Lopez (Elected by 
citizens of specific geographic 
area) 

C-Low-Income B (09/17/19 
acknowledged by BOS) 
Nolberto Waddell 

- 07/17/19-12/31/21 01/01/18-12/31/21 

Vicky Quesada  (Appointed by 
CAP Advisory Board) 

C-Private Sector C (08/20/18) 19 years 01/01/18-12/31/21 01/01/18-12/31/21 

Linda Oddonetto (Appointed 
by CAP Advisory Board) 

C-Private Sector C (02/04/20) 
(12/4/19 Reappointed 
by CAP Board)  

5 months 01/01/20-12/31/23 01/01/20-12/31/23 

Michael Black (Appointed by 
CAP Advisory Board) 

C-Private Sector C (08/20/18) 
 

10 months 01/01/18-12/31/21 01/01/18-12/31/21 

 
1  Appointment Information: 

A. Date of creation:  January 20, 1998 
B. Per Bylaws – The Board shall consist of a minimum of 9 members but shall not exceed 12 members.   
C. Board composition:  9 members 

1/3 of the members – public sector representatives - appointed by the Board of Supervisors 
At least 1/3 of the members – low-income representatives, who must reside in a low-income community – elected by the citizens of a specific geographic low-income area (candidates 
must represent low-income residents of a designated geographic area) and acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 
1/3 of the members – private sector representatives consisting of private sector officials or members of business, industrial, labor, religious, welfare, education or other major groups and 
interests in the community – appointed by the CAP Advisory Board and acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 

          D.    Members are appointed for a term of 4 years. 
 



2  Appointment Designation: 
A.     Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 

         B.     Supervisory Appointment:  Member unrestricted by district. 
C.     Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 

         D.    County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
         E.     Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 
 
3  Appointment Type 

A. New Appointment 
B. Existing vacancy created by (provide name) 
C. Reappointment (include number of years/months served prior to most recent appointment in right-hand column) 



   
ARF-5868   Consent Agenda Item     4. C.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/04/2020  
Reporting
Period:

January 21, 2020 and January 28, 2020 Meeting
Minutes

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk

Information
Subject
January 21, 2020 and January 28, 2020, Board of Supervisors' Meeting
Minutes

Suggested Motion
Approval of the January 21, 2020 and January 28, 2020, Board of
Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Attachments
01-21-20 Meeting Minutes
01-28-20 Meeting Minutes



Page 1 of 12 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  January 21, 2020 

 
WOODY CLINE       MARIAN SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 

 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN          By: Marian Sheppard 
Vice-Chairman                                                             

 
TIM R. HUMPHREY      Gila County Courthouse 

Member         Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PRESENT:  Woody Cline, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman (via 
ITV); Tim R. Humphrey, Member; W. James Menlove, County Manager; 

Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; Marian 
Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, and Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk of the 
Board.  

 
ABSENT:  Charles Shire, Deputy County Attorney-Civil. 
 

Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – INVOCATION 
 

Chairman Cline called the Regular Meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. this date in 
the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Malissa Buzan led the Pledge of 
Allegiance and Pastor Isaac Bradford of the Calvary Chapel in Payson delivered 

the invocation. 
 
Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS: 

 
A. Information/Discussion regarding the Finance Department.  

 
Mary Springer, Finance Director, advised that the Finance Department is the 
first County department to provide a report to the Board of Supervisors about 

the functions of the department, accomplishments, and goals.  She read aloud 
the names of employees in the Finance Department and their respective areas 

of responsibility.  She reviewed departmental highlights for 2019, as follows:  
536 purchase orders were placed at a value of $12,396,680; 400 plus 
contracts/agreements and amendments processed; 14,461 payroll 

transactions; $2.9M in additions to capital assets for FY 2019; 21 grant 
applications submitted with 5 grants being awarded for a total of $597K and 9 
grant applications still pending; 5 audits completed for FY 2016 and FY 2017; 

9,699 accounts payable transactions were processed; an “AA” credit rating was 
secured which provided the ability to secure capital at a low-interest rate and 



Page 2 of 12 

 

refunding savings in excess of $700K; converted to a new credit card system 
with automated monthly posting and online records; conducted community 

outreach and met with various fire districts and other entities to develop 
collaborative grant applications; improved on internal customer support to 

include ongoing training for succession planning.  Ms. Springer also reviewed 
the departmental goals for FY 2020-2021.  Each Board member thanked Ms. 
Springer and her staff for the information.  James Menlove, County Manager, 

complimented Ms. Springer’s leadership as the Finance Director. 
 
B.  Information/Discussion regarding Gila County financial data as of 

11/30/2019 as it compares to the fiscal year 2020 Gila County Budget 
and fiscal year 2019 year-to-date performance.   

 
Maryn Belling, Finance Department Budget Manager, advised that throughout 
the year the Finance Department prepares reports to compare Gila County's 

income and expenses to the adopted budget. Starting with this meeting, this 
information will be provided to the Board of Supervisors on a monthly basis.  

The Finance Department analyzed the year-to-date performance of both 
revenues and expenditures as compared to the 2020 Fiscal Year Budget. Ms. 
Belling’s presentation contained fiscal data as of November 30, 2019. 

Highlights of the presentation are as follows:  General Fund revenues as of 
November 30, 2019, are at 47% of the budget and show an increase of 
$1,000,000 over November 30, 2018. General Fund expenses as of November 

30, 2019, are at 41% of the budget and show an increase of $90,053.87 over 
November 30, 2018. General Fund revenues are ahead of General Fund 

expenses on November 30, 2019, by $1.96M. This is attributable to the timing 
of property taxes that are received twice per year.  Each Board member 
thanked Ms. Belling of the information. 

 
Item 3 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
 

A.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Request for Proposals No. 121619-Third Party Medical Claims 

Administrator as outlined in the solicitation.   
 
Ms. Springer advised that presently the Sheriff’s Office (S.O.) staff reviews 

medical claims and determines eligibility for cost reduction.  She met with 
Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd and Sarah White, S.O. Chief Administrator, and it 

was agreed that hiring a third-party medical claims administrator would be 
beneficial.  Sheriff Shepherd commented that processing bills is very time-
consuming and staff is not trained sufficiently to know all of the medical claims 

adjustments and exclusions for inmate claims that would apply to a 
governmental entity.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that she is always grateful 
to find better ways to conduct business at the County.  Upon motion by Vice-

Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Humphrey, the Board unanimously 
authorized the advertisement of Request for Proposals No. 121619. 



Page 3 of 12 

 

 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to enter into a Cooperative Forest 

Road Agreement (FS Agreement No. 20-RO-11031200-003) between Gila 
County and the United States Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, 

Tonto National Forest and authorize the Chairman’s signature on the 
agreement.   
 

Homero Vela, Assistant County Manager, advised that the existing Cooperative 
Forest Road Agreement expired on September 30, 2019. The Tonto National 
Forest (TNF) and the County have been working on a new agreement since last 

summer with the understanding that a new agreement wouldn’t be in place by 
September 30, 2019. Adding roads to the agreement and possibly eliminating 

some roads were being discussed, along with the level of service on some roads. 
It was determined that changes shouldn’t occur until the TNF Travel 
Management Plan was in place. The County and TNF agreed to continue 

maintenance under the expired agreement until a new agreement could be 
executed. Mr. Vela stated that the TNF recently informed the County that new 

changes have occurred with the Forest Service which has shortened acquisition 
deadlines and new agreements must be in place by January 31, 2020.  Based 
on the new deadlines, the County and TNF recommended that the Board 

approve the new agreement with the understanding that the future 
modifications to the roads listed in Schedule A of the agreement may be 
modified to add and or remove roads at any time.  Chairman Cline was in favor 

of entering into the proposed agreement; however, he asked Mr. Vela if the 
County would be restricted on any road maintenance performed by the County.  

Mr. Vela replied that the agreement has a minimum service level that will be 
provided by the County and he added that the number of miles outlined in the 
expired agreement is approximately the same number of miles in the new 

agreement.  Mr. Vela expects the County to add some roads to this agreement 
within the next 45 days.  Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously authorized entering into the 

Cooperative Forest Road Agreement (FS Agreement No. 20-RO-11031200-003) 
between Gila County and the United States Department of Agriculture, Forest 

Service, Tonto National Forest, and authorized the Chairman’s signature on the 
agreement.   
 

C.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 3 to an 
Independent Contractor Agreement (Contract No. 07012019-20) between 

the Arizona Community Action Association d/b/a Wildfire and the Gila 
County Community Services Department whereby the Arizona Public 
Service Crisis Bill Assistance Program (APS BA) funds will increase by 

$42,370, the Direct Service amount will increase to $63,943, and the 
Program Delivery amount will increase to $12,789 for a total of $76,732 
to be used to provide utility bill assistance to eligible citizens residing in 

Gila County for the period of July 1, 2019, through June 30, 2020.  
 



Page 4 of 12 

 

Malissa Buzan, Community Services Department Director, advised that the 
Community Services Department requested additional funding for this year 

and it was received as outlined in this agenda item.  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Humphrey, the Board unanimously 

approved Amendment No. 3 to the Independent Contractor Agreement 
(Contract No. 07012019-20). 
 

D.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 18 to an 
Agreement for Energy Wise Low-Income Weatherization Program 
Implementation between the Gila County Community Services 

Department and Arizona Public Service Company to allocate $85,000 
for calendar year 2020 and to make some other minor changes.  

 
Ms. Buzan advised that by the Board of Supervisors approving Amendment No. 
18 to said Agreement, the Gila County Weatherization Program will provide 

weatherization services to eligible low-income citizens of Gila County through 
December 31, 2020.  Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-

Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved Amendment No. 18 to 
Agreement for Energy Wise Low-Income Weatherization Program 
Implementation between the Gila County Community Services Department and 

Arizona Public Service Company to allocate $85,000 for calendar year 2020 
and to make some other minor changes.  
 

E.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Funding Agreement 
No. 204-20 between the Arizona Department of Housing and the Gila 

County Community Services Department, Housing Services, to provide 
Southwest Gas Corporation Weatherization Assistance Program funding in 
the amount of $18,490 that will be used to provide weatherization 

services to eligible citizens residing in Gila County for the period of 
January 1, 2020, through December 31, 2020.  
 

Ms. Buzan advised that funds from Southwest Gas Corporation are received 
through the Arizona Department of Housing.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman 

Martin, seconded by Supervisor Humphrey, the Board unanimously approved 
Funding Agreement No. 204-20. 
 

F.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 4 to an 
Independent Contractor Agreement (Contract No. 07012019-20) between 

the Arizona Community Action Association d/b/a Wildfire and the Gila 
County Community Services Department, whereby the Utility Repair 
Replacement Deposit Direct Service funding amount will increase to 

$78,600 and the Program Delivery amount will increase to $7,860 for a 
total amount of $86,460, to be used to provide utility bill assistance, and 
repair and replacement of gas appliances, for eligible citizens residing in 

Gila County for the period of July 1, 2019, through June 30, 2020.  
 



Page 5 of 12 

 

Ms. Buzan advised that the Community Services Department applied for and 
received additional Utility Repair Replacement Deposit Direct Service funding 

which will be used to assist eligible Gila County residents with repair and 
replacement of gas appliances and utility services.  Supervisor Humphrey 

inquired if there is a process in place whereby applicants would know in 
advance if they qualified for these services.  Ms. Buzan replied that eligibility 
for this funding is based on income.  At present, there is a waiting list of 

applicants.  She added that if there is a need for emergency repairs, they are 
usually completed within 48 hours to one week of the request.  Ms. Buzan 
stated that the County’s website contains a pre-application process whereby an 

applicant would be able to determine eligibility.  Upon motion by Supervisor 
Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously 

approved Amendment No. 4 to the Independent Contractor Agreement 
(Contract No. 07012019-20) 
 

G.  Information/Discussion/Action to consider a sealed bid for the 
purchase of Assessor's tax parcel number 206-22-023B and, if accepted, 

authorize the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed.  
 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, advised that the subject property was 

deeded to the State of Arizona in care of the Board of Supervisors in 2019.  It 
did not sell at the Board’s annual auction; therefore, it was added to a list of 
properties that could be purchased year-round.  She stated that this property 

is on Reppy Avenue in Miami and it contains an abandoned house.  Ms. 
Sheppard further advised the Abelardo Gil owns the adjoining property and he 

has submitted a sealed bid for the Board’s consideration.  Chairman Cline 
asked Ms. Sheppard to open the sealed bid and read aloud the information.  
Ms. Sheppard stated that Abelardo Gil submitted a bid in the amount of 

$1,000 and she added the lien amount on this property is $3,929.66.  Upon 
motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Humphrey, the 
Board unanimously sold Assessor’s tax parcel number 206-22-023B to 

Abelardo Gil in the amount of $1,000. 
 

Before the Consent Agenda was addressed, Supervisor Humphrey commented 
that he was pleased to see this property and the various other State-owned 
properties contained in the Consent Agenda being sold so they are once again 

on the County’s tax rolls.  He thanked Ms. Sheppard for her part in promoting 
these properties for sale.  

 
Item 4 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 

upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  
 

A.  Approval of revised Public Works Department Policy-Accident / 
Incident / Injury Reporting to make changes and additions to the 



Page 6 of 12 

 

verbiage; change the format of the policy; and change the policy number 
from DPW 02-16 to PWS-008.  

 
B.  Approval to appoint Jaime Escobedo to the Public Safety Personnel 

Retirement System (PSPRS) Local Board of Directors for the term which 
ends on December 31, 2023; and acknowledgment of the election of Cole 
Labonte to said Local Board for the term beginning on January 1, 2020, 

through December 31, 2023.  
 
C.  Approval to appoint Jaime Escobedo to the Correctional Officers 

Retirement Plan (CORP) Local Board of Directors for Detention Officers 
and Non-Uniformed Officers, and the CORP Local Board of Directors for 

Dispatchers for a term of office ending on December 31, 2023.  
 
D.  Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed for 

the Clerk of the Board's over-the-counter sale of Assessor's tax parcel 
number 206-06-177 to Nicholas Patrick Rae Edmonds.  

 
E.  Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed for 
the Clerk of the Board's over-the-counter sale of Assessor's tax parcel 

number 206-06-178 to Nicholas Patrick Rae Edmonds.  
 
F.  Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed for 

the Clerk of the Board's over-the-counter sale of Assessor's tax parcel 
number 206-06-185 to Nicholas Patrick Rae Edmonds.  

 
G.  Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed for 
the Clerk of the Board's over-the-counter sale of Assessor's tax parcel 

number 208-07-031 to Blue Ocean Partners LLC.  
 
H.  Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed for 

the Clerk of the Board's over-the-counter sale of Assessor's tax parcel 
number 101-07-106 to Jose Parra.  

 
I.  Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed for 
the Clerk of the Board's over-the-counter sale of Assessor's tax parcel 

number 101-07-107 to Jose Parra.  
 

J.  Approval of the November 19, 2019, December 3, 2019, December 10, 
2019, December 17, 2019, and January 7, 2020, Board of Supervisors' 
meeting minutes.  

 
K.  Approval of the Human Resources Department monthly activity 
reports for December 2019.  

 
 



Page 7 of 12 

 

DECEMBER 3, 2019 
 

DEPARTURES: 
1. Joe Simmons - Public Works - Temporary Worker - 11/25/19 - Public Works 

Fund - DOH 11/04/19 
2. Jennifer Hicklin - Health and Emergency Services - Environmental Health 
Specialist - 11/29/19 - Health Service Fund - DOH 12/26/18 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
3. Thor Nudson - Sheriff's Office - Deputy Sheriff Sgt. - 12/10/19 - General 

Fund 
 

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
4. Shaunae Casillas - Health and Emergency Services - From Community 
Health Specialist - To PHEP Assistant - 12/16/19 - From Tobacco-Free 

Environment Fund - To PHEP Fund - Replacing Craig Humphrey 
 

REQUEST TO POST: 
5. Health and Emergency Services - Environmental Health Specialist - Vacated 
by Jennifer Hicklin 

6. Health and Emergency Services - Community Health Specialist - Vacated by 
Shaunae Casillas 
7. Clerk of Superior Court - Courtroom Clerk Technician - Vacated by Victoria 

Waynick 
 

DECEMBER 10, 2019 
 
DEPARTURES: 

1. Paul Maniaci - Public Works - Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator - 
12/01/19 - Public Works Fund - DOH 04/23/18 
2. Victoria Waynick - Clerk of Superior Court - Courtroom Clerk Technician - 

12/06/19 - General Fund - DOH 01/11/16 
 

NEW HIRES: 
3. Manuel Lopez - Superior Court - Calendar Administration - 12/16/19 - 
General Fund - Replacing Omar Gonzalez 

4. David Levario - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer - 12/23/19 - General 
Fund - Replacing Paul Calihan 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
5. Wesley Wilson - Public Works - Temporary Worker - 12/16/19 - Public 

Works Fund  
 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 

6. Eric Avalos - Sheriff's Office - Deputy Sheriff - 12/18/19 - General Fund  
 



Page 8 of 12 

 

OTHER ACTIONS: 
7. Colleen Lacy - Probation - From Deputy Probation Officer I - To Deputy 

Probation Officer II - 12/18/19 - Diversion Intake (.50)/Juvenile Intensive 
Probation Supervision (.50) Funds - Meets Deputy Probation Officer II 

requirements 
8. Sabrina Falquez - Probation - From Deputy Probation Officer I - To Deputy 
Probation Officer II - 12/04/19 - Diversion Intake (.50)/Juvenile Intensive 

Probation Supervision (.50) Funds - Meets Deputy Probation Officer II 
requirements 
9. Tucker Kilbourne - Sheriff's Office - Sheriff Deputy Detective - 11/04/19 - 

General Fund - Change in overtime fund  
10. Gavin Erickson - Sheriff's Office - Deputy Sheriff - 10/28/19 - General 

Fund - Change in overtime fund  
 
REQUEST TO POST: 

11. Health and Emergency Services - Community Health Specialist - Vacated 
by Deeadra Ursin-Zachary 

12. County Attorney's Office - Temporary Administrative Clerk - Vacated by 
Maria Cook 
 

DECEMBER 17, 2019 
 
DEPARTURES: 

1. Jolene Myers - Clerk of Superior Court - Court Administrative Assistant - 
12/20/19 - General Fund - DOH 04/07/08 

 
NEW HIRES: 
2. Terry Scott - Facilities and Land Management - From Temporary Custodian - 

To Custodian - 12/23/19 - Facilities Management Fund - Replacing Travis 
Johnson 
 

TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
3. Charles Adornetto - Globe Justice Court - Judge Pro Tempore - 01/01/20 - 

General Fund 
4. Sherwood Johnston - Globe Justice Court - Judge Pro Tempore - 01/01/20 - 
General Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 

5. Felicia Ihrig - Health and Emergency Services - From Animal Care Worker - 
To Animal Control Officer - 12/23/19 - Rabies Control Fund - Replacing 
Gabriel Arrellin 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
6. Diane Buechner - Assessor's Office - From Administrative Assistant - To 

Office Coordinator - 07/08/19 - General Fund - Reclassification 



Page 9 of 12 

 

7. Paul Larkin - Globe Justice Court - Judge Pro Tempore - 12/01/19 - 
General Fund - Salary change 

8. Don Calender - Globe Justice Court - Judge Pro Tempore - 12/01/19 - 
General Fund - Salary change 

9. Jerri Antunes - Globe Justice Court - Judge Pro Tempore - 12/01/19 - 
General Fund - Salary change 
 

REQUEST TO POST: 
10. Health and Emergency Services - Animal Care Worker - Vacated by Felicia 
Ihrig 

 
DECEMBER 24, 2019 

 
DEPARTURES: 
1. Arthur Decker – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer - 02/02/2020 – General 

Fund - DOH 08/13/18 
 

NEW HIRES: 
2. Nicholas Franco - Sherriff’s Office - Detention Officer - 01/06/20 - General 
Fund - Replacing Justin Goad 

3. Chelsea MaCauley - Sherriff’s Office - 911 Dispatcher - 01/06/20 - General 
Fund - Replacing Jessica Cruz 
 

TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
4. Lauren Lopez - Health and Emergency Services - Temporary Administrative 

Clerk Sr. - 12/26/19 -Health Service Fund 
5. Joan Price - Public Works - Temporary Worker - 12/22/19 - Public Works 
Fund 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
6. Christopher Sanks - Sheriff’s Office - Deputy Sheriff - 01/09/2019 - General 

Fund 
 

OTHER ACTIONS: 
7. Daniel Lowe – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer IV - Adult Manager – 
12/23/19 – Various Funds – Change in fund code 

8. Robert Keefe – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer IV- 12/23/19 – From 
JPSF Treatment Fund – To Various Funds – Change in fund code 

9. Jay Boyer – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer IV– 12/23/19 – Various 
Funds – Change in fund code 
10. Brad Hicks - Public Works - Recycling & Landfill Equipment Operator - 

12/29/19 - Recycling & Landfill Management Fund – Extending probationary 
period an additional three months 
11. Malissa Buzan - Community Services - Director of Community Services - 

07/09/19- Various Funds- Change in fund code 
 



Page 10 of 12 

 

REQUEST TO POST: 
12. Clerk of Superior Court - Court Administrative Assistant - Vacated by 

Jolene Myers 
 

DECEMBER 31, 2019 
 
DEPARTURES: 

1. Kayla Herbel - Sheriff's Office - Temporary Clerk - 12/12/19 - General Fund 
- DOH 09/03/19 
2. Deborah Hughes - Assessor's Office - Assessor - 12/31/19 - General Fund - 

DOH 01/01/13 
3. Manuel Lopez - Superior Court - Calendar Administrator - 12/16/19 - 

General Fund - DOH 12/16/19 
4. Cheri Heppler - Payson Justice Court - Justice Court Clerk Lead - 02/28/20 
- General Fund - DOH 09/25/00 

5. Forrest Bennett - Computer Services - IT Systems Administrator - 12/13/19 
- General Fund - DOH 09/23/02 

6. Robert Chagolla - Sheriff's Office - Deputy Sheriff - 12/29/19 - General Fund 
- DOH 10/19/09 
7. Gavin Erickson - Sheriff's Office - Deputy Sheriff - 01/02/20 - General Fund 

- DOH 03/26/18 
8. Jerilee Antunes - Payson Justice Court - Judge Pro Tempore - 12/30/19 - 
General Fund - DOH 08/15/18 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 

9. Jolene Myers - Clerk of Superior Court - Temporary Court Clerk - 12/23/19 
- Document Conversion Superior Court Fund - Replacing Rebecca Mathews 
 

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
10. Bianca Melford - Health and Emergency Services - Medical Case Manager - 
12/16/19 - HIV Consortium Fund  

11. Kalen Trimble - Superior Court - Bailiff - 01/07/20 - Law Library Fund 
 

OTHER ACTIONS: 
12. Sharon Listiak - Health and Emergency Services - Worksite Wellness 
Coordinator - 01/06/20 - From Population Health Initiative (.70)/PHEP (.30) 

Funds - To Population Health Initiative Fund - Change in fund code 
13. Amanda Frost - Public Works - Scalehouse Attendant - 01/01/20 - 

Recycling and Landfill Management Fund - Arizona minimum wage increase  
14. Terry Scott - Facilities and Land Management - Custodian - 01/01/20 - 
Facilities Management Fund - Arizona minimum wage increase 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
15. Payson Justice Court - Justice Court Clerk Lead - Vacated by Cheri 

Heppler 
16. Computer Services - IT Systems Administrator - Vacated by Forrest Bennett 



Page 11 of 12 

 

 
 

 
L.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the reporting 

period of December 1, 2019, through December 31, 2019.    
 
Approve demands and budget amendments for operating transfers.  Warrant 

numbers 300232 through 300321, 300323 through 300370, 300372 through 

300484, 300486 through 300630, and 300632 through 300707 totaling 

$4,022,536.84 for the period 12-01-19 through 12-31-19.  

 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §11-217(C), the published minutes shall include all 

demands and warrants approved by the Board in excess of one thousand 

dollars except that multiple demands and warrants from a single supplier or 

individual under one thousand dollars whose cumulative total exceeds one 

thousand dollars in a single reporting period shall also be published.  (A 

listing of issued warrants and voided warrants is permanently attached to 

these minutes.) 

 

M.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager for December 2019.  
 

Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
the Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda items 4A-4M. 
 

Item 5 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 

issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 

conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 

addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date. 

 
Bob McQueen, a resident of Payson, addressed the proposed Tonto Creek 
Bridge.  He stated, “I am for safety and the bridge.”  Mr. McQueen advised that 

people who live on the far side of the creek would benefit the most from the 
bridge being built; therefore, it is his belief that they should be required to 

contribute more in taxes than other Gila County taxpayers.  He was not sure 
how that could be done, but feels it would be fair because if and when the 
bridge is built, the property values on the far side of the creek will certainly 

increase.   



Page 12 of 12 

 

 
Item 6 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-

431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 

on the information presented. 
 
The County Manager and Supervisors Cline and Humphrey presented a 

summary of current events.  Supervisor Martin advised that she didn’t have 
anything to report. 
 

There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Cline adjourned the meeting at 11:02 am. 

 
APPROVED: 
 

_____________________________________ 
Woody Cline, Chairman 

 
ATTEST: 
 

_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



Page 1 of 5 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  January 28, 2020 

 
WOODY CLINE       MARIAN SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 

 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN          By: Marian Sheppard 
Vice-Chairman                                                             

 
TIM R. HUMPHREY      Gila County Courthouse 

Member         Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PRESENT:  Woody Cline, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman (via 
ITV); Tim R. Humphrey, Member; W. James Menlove, County Manager; 

Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; Marian 
Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; and Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk of the 
Board. 

 
ABSENT:  Charles Shire, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief  
 

Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Chairman Cline called the Work Session to order at 10:00 a.m. this date in the 
Board of Supervisors’ hearing room and Jacque Sanders led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

 
Item 2 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.  Information/Discussion regarding an update on legislative activity in 
Washington, D.C. from Patricia Power of Bose Public Affairs Group and to 

discuss possible grant funding opportunities available to Gila County.   
 
Chairman Cline advised that there was a lengthy list of topics to discuss at this 

Work Session, so he asked James Menlove, County Manager, which item on 
the list he wanted to first address.  Mr. Menlove clarified that it was not his 

intent for the Board to discuss all of the topics on the list; however, he did 
want to include all topics that have been mentioned as being important to the 
County so that the Board would hopefully prioritize those issues to work on in 

the near future.  Vice-Chairman Martin provided some history of Ms. Power’s 
association with Gila County and she highlighted some accomplishments that 
have been made at the federal level on behalf of the County due to Ms. Power’s 

lobbying efforts.  Mr. Menlove replied that since Ms. Power was present, he 
recommended addressing item A(h) on the list which was Bose Public Affairs 



Page 2 of 5 

 

Group (BPAG) with the following subcategories:  engagement, expectations, 
report and other. Ms. Power stated that she considers this work session to be a 

follow-up to the last time she met with the Board of Supervisors, which was in 
2017.  She stated, “I don’t make decisions for the County.  I am the eyes and 

ears on the ground in (Washington) D.C. spotting opportunities; potential 
threats going on federally that could hurt you or on the opportunity side, help 
you.”  She acknowledged a high priority issue for the Board and the County is 

to obtain enough money from the state and or federal government to build a 
bridge over Tonto Creek.  Ms. Power said that it would be most helpful if a set 
process could be established between BPAG and the County so that she is able 

to contact whomever she needs to contact about issues.  Chairman Cline 
replied that there is an established process for that communication which is 

outlined in the current contract with BPAG.  Ms. Power is required to contact 
the County Manager whenever an issue arises at the federal level whereby Ms. 
Power believes that BPAG could offer assistance to the County.  Chairman 

Cline commented that he would like that process to continue.  Mr. Menlove 
commented that structure needs to remain; however, he asked for Jacque 

Sanders, Deputy County Manager and District Librarian, to be added as a 
contact person for those times he is unavailable.  Vice-Chairman Martin 
conveyed that it is equally important for Ms. Power to be able to communicate 

with each Supervisor as needed.   
 
Chairman Cline advised that all three Supervisors have agreed on issues that 

have been addressed at the federal level.  He stated that when issues come up, 
the Supervisors should be apprised by notification in the monthly report that is 

provided by Ms. Power.  Ms. Power replied that through the years she has had 
a contract with the County; however, the process has varied.  At one time she 
provided the County with monthly reports; however, she believes they were not 

always passed along to the Supervisors, so she no longer produces the reports. 
Her preference would be to establish communication with the Supervisors on a 
weekly basis through phone calls.  Regarding the contract, Ms. Power stated 

that the current contract is on a per hour basis with a capped yearly amount.  
At times, the contract was on a retainer basis with a set monthly amount to be 

paid to BPAG and capped with a yearly amount plus a certain amount for 
expenses.  Vice-Chairman Martin commented that having the contract on a 
retainer basis would provide Ms. Power some flexibility to handle more issues.  

Mr. Menlove commented that he would talk with each Board member later in 
the afternoon about possibly making changes to the contract.  Mr. Menlove 

stated that even though the contract does not expire until November of this 
year, if the Board so chooses, he would rather make changes to the contract 
“sooner than later.”  Ms. Power advised that the work over the course of the 

year tends to be front-end loaded, but with a contract on a retainer basis, it 
averages out.  Her preference is to have the contract on a retainer basis.   
 

The Board addressed item A(g) – Current Congressional Issues in Washington, 
D.C.  Ms. Power stated, “If you haven’t been invited, you’re being served.”  She 



Page 3 of 5 

 

explained the importance of having the County represented at hearings and 
meetings in Washington, D.C.  As an example, Ms. Power stated that there 

wasn’t anyone in the Congressional delegation representing Gila County when 
the latest transportation bill was addressed.  She emphasized the importance 

of ensuring that the Congressional delegation is aware that Gila County is 
interested in certain issues when they are being addressed at the federal level.  
She briefly talked about the Water Resources Development Act and 

reauthorization of the Army Corps of Engineers’ programs; Surface 
Transportation reauthorization bill; National Environmental Policy Act 
rulemaking changes; and Department of Interior and Bureau of Land 

Management rulemakings.  She advised that the National Association of 
Counties is addressing some of these issues, so it may not be necessary for the 

County to spend time on them.  Ms. Power added that if the Board wants a 
certain message relayed to the Congressional delegation on any topic, she only 
needs to be informed of its position and she will relay that message.   

 
There was a brief discussion on item A(b) – Healthy Forest Restoration.  Vice-

Chairman Martin stated that United States Forest Service (USFS) involvement 
on forest land is becoming less which will result in more forest fires, less 
restoration, and fewer cattle and wildlife.  The Supervisors agreed that the 

County needs to stay on top of issues regarding the USFS.  Chairman Cline 
commented that in an earlier discussion with Ms. Power, she suggested 
meeting with Forest Service officials to show them what is causing the forest 

fires and to let them know how each fire has directly affected Gila County 
including costs that have been incurred.  

 
The next item on the list that was addressed was A(c) – Infrastructure.  Those 
in the discussion revisited the issue of the funding needed to build the bridge 

over Tonto Creek.  Supervisor Humphrey advised that he recently testified at a 
Senate hearing regarding the proposed bridge and he gave an update on the 
status at the state level.  Mr. Menlove commented that he has called Craig 

Sullivan, Executive Director of the Arizona County Supervisors Association, “to 
get a champion at the state level to keep us informed.”  He then suggested 

involving Ms. Power to help find the best way to get the approximately $21 
million dollars to build the bridge.  Ms. Power stated that in order to be 
prepared for this meeting, she spoke with two of four members of the 

Congressional delegation.  She said that the main problem on the federal side 
is that the U.S. Department of Transportation’s BUILD Transportation Grant is 

the only clear option that is authorized.  She suggested that if the BUILD 
Transportation Grant were to be modified to address an emergency, then 
possibly the County would qualify for the grant.  She commented that a 

possible roadblock to receiving federal funds for the Tonto Creek bridge is that 
it is a very expensive project that most people think only benefits a small 
community.  Ms. Power stated that many are aware of the recent tragedy at 

Tonto Creek resulting in the deaths of 3 children, but the word needs to get out 
that many people visit this area, so building the bridge would benefit a greater 



Page 4 of 5 

 

number of people than those living in the local community.  She asked the 
Board if they wanted her involvement on this project but there was no response 

from the Board.  This category also listed USFS road maintenance and 
improvements with the following Forest Service (FS) Roads mentioned:  FS #12-

Young Road, FS #64-Fire Control Road, and FS #199-Houston Mesa Road.  Mr. 
Menlove stated that the USFS Tonto National Forest Travel Management Plan 
needs to be addressed by the County.  Ms. Power replied that the Plan gets 

approved locally.  She said that it would be helpful to be informed on the status 
of the Plan and any direct issues affecting Gila County.  She stated that if 4FRI 
(Four Forest Restoration Initiative) were working, there would be no role in 

Washington, D.C.  She added that 4FRI has gotten national attention because 
it is so broken.  Ms. Power advised that whenever there is a meeting regarding 

4FRI, she attends and represents Gila County. 
 
The following items on the list were lightly touched upon:  A(c)iii – Broadband; 

A(c)iv – Tri-City Regional Sanitary District – USDA (United States Department 
of Agriculture) Funding; A(c)v. – Blight & Brownfields Sites; and, A(e) – Admin. 

Site, Young regarding the transfer of ownership of the USFS administrative site 
to Gila County so it can be used for veterans programs.   
 

Regarding item A(d) – Wilderness Area Designations for FS Road #203-Cherry 
Creek Road, FS Road 487-Workman Creek Road to Aztec Peak, and FS Road 
(unknown number)-Powerline road, Southern Mazatzal Wilderness in Maricopa 

County, Vice-Chairman Martin mentioned that the County may need to involve 
Ms. Power with this issue. 

 
Mr. Menlove mentioned that the list also contained section A(i) – Federal 
Grants in case the Board wanted to discuss them; however, they were not 

discussed. 
 
Supervisor Humphrey expressed his appreciation for the discussion to identify 

issues so they can be addressed collectively by the Board and staff.  Chairman 
Cline stated to Mr. Menlove , “Coordinate with Patty so we can channel 

everything through you.”  Mr. Menlove commented that he will write up a plan 
of action based on this discussion which will outline how each issue will be 
addressed along with the name of the person that will address each issue.   

 
Item 3 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 

benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 

Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 

addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 



Page 5 of 5 

 

matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date. 

 
There were no comments from the public. 

 
Item 4 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 

may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on information presented. 
 

Supervisors Martin and Humphrey and the County Manager advised that they 
did not have any current events to report.  Chairman Cline presented a 

summary of current events.  
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 

Chairman Cline adjourned the meeting at 11:57 a.m. 
 

APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 

Woody Cline, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 

 
_____________________________________ 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



   
ARF-5838   Consent Agenda Item     4. D.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/04/2020  
Reporting
Period:

December 2019

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court 
Submitted By: Esther Canez, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for December 2019

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgement of the December 2019 monthly activity report
submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

Attachments
Clerks Report for December 2019



















   
ARF-5849   Consent Agenda Item     4. E.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/04/2020  
Reporting
Period:

Recorder's Office Monthly Report for December 2019

Submitted For: Sadie Bingham, Recorder 
Submitted By: Charlotte Williams, Chief Deputy Recorder

Information
Subject
Recorder's Office Monthly Report for December 2019

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the December 2019 monthly activity report submitted
by the Recorder's Office. 

Attachments
December 2019





















   
ARF-5848   Consent Agenda Item     4. F.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/04/2020  
Reporting
Period:

Monthly Report for December 2019 from Globe Regional
Justice Court

Submitted For: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr. 
Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr.

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Report for December
2019

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the December 2019 monthly activity report submitted
by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
Monthly Report for December 2019









   
ARF-5864   Consent Agenda Item     4. G.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/04/2020  
Reporting
Period:

December 2019

Submitted For: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region 
Submitted By: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Report for
December 2019

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the December 2019 monthly activity report submitted
by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
December 2091 report





Limited Jurisdiction Courts
Misdemeanor, Criminal And Civil Traffic Manner of Disposition Summary By Charge

PAYSON REGIONAL JUSTICE COURT - 404
START DATE : 12/1/2019          END DATE :12/31/2019

Misdemeanor Criminal and Civil 
Traffic Manner of Disposition 
Summary by Charge

Non-trial Dispositions Trial Dispositions

Column ID 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

Line 
ID Case Type Guilty 

Plea
Nolle 

Prosequi
Deferred 

Adjudication
Dismissal

Transfer to 
Another 

Court

Other 
Non-Trial

Total 
Non-Trial 

Dispositions

Guilty 
Verdict Acquittal

Guilty Plea 
After Trial 

Start

Total Jury 
Trials

Guilty 
Judgment Acquittal

Guilty Plea 
After Trial 

Start

Total 
Bench 
Trials

Total Trial 
Dispositions

Other 
Dispositions

Grand Total 
Dispositions

Section - 1 Misdemeanor

Person

A Person-Sex Offenses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

B Person-Kidnapping 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

C Person-Aggravated Assaults 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

D Person-Other Assaults 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Property

E Property-Burglary 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

F Property-Auto Theft 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

G Property-Other 1 3 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4

Other

H Drug Possession/Paraphernalia 2 6 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10

I Weapons 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

J Public Order 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

K Interfering With Judicial Proceedings 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

L Failure to Appear/Misd&CrimTraffic 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

M Petty Offenses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

N Other 1 2 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

Section 1: Total Misdemeanor 7 12 0 3 0 0 22 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 22

1/16/2020 4:04:29 PM Page 1 of 3



Section - 2 Criminal Traffic

DUI

A Motor Vehicle 1 3 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5

B Extreme Motor Vehicle 1 2 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

C Boating/Flying 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Serious Violations

D Leaving the Scene 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

E Reckless Driving 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

F Racing on Highway 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

G All Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other Violations

H Criminal Speed 1 0 0 2 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

I All Other 7 0 0 2 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9

Section 2: Total Criminal Traffic 10 5 0 5 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20

Section - 3 Civil Traffic

A Driver License 3 0 0 0 0 3 6 0 0 6

B Registration 4 0 0 0 0 6 10 0 0 10

C Insurance 0 0 0 12 0 8 20 0 0 20

D Speeding 34 0 0 85 0 36 155 0 0 155

E Excessive Speeding 78 0 0 1 0 10 89 0 0 89

F Red Light 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

G Seat Belt 19 1 0 0 0 7 27 0 0 27

H State DPS Photo Enforcement 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

I Other Civil Traffic 7 0 0 5 0 9 21 0 0 21

Section 3: Total Civil Traffic 145 1 0 103 0 79 328 0 0 328

Section - 4 Local - Non 
Criminal Ordinances

A Parking 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

B Non-Parking 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1/16/2020 4:04:29 PM Page 2 of 3



Section - 5 Felony

A Total Felony 0 10 0 0 0 0 10 0 0 10

 GRAND TOTAL 162 28 0 111 0 79 380 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 380

Section - 6 Domestic Violence

A Felony-Domestic Violence 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

B Misdemeanor-Domestic Violence 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Section - 7 Special Case 
Characteristics

A Self Represented Litigants 159 15 0 110 0 79 363 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 363

B Interpreter Services Provided 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1/16/2020 4:04:29 PM Page 3 of 3



Limited Jurisdiction Courts
Civil Caseload Manner Of Disposition Summary Report

PAYSON REGIONAL JUSTICE COURT - 404
START DATE : 12/1/2019          END DATE : 12/31/2019

Column ID 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

LINE 
ID CASE TYPE Non-Trial Dispositions Trial Dispositions

Jury Trail

Dismissal Default
Judgment

Summary
Judgment

Settled/ 
Withdrawn

Transfer to 
Another
Court

Total
Non-Trial

Dispositions

Verdict
Reached

Section - 1 Civil

A Small Claims 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

B Forcible Detainer / Eviction Action 2 1 2 0 0 5 0

C Tort 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

D Contract 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

E Debt-Seller Plaintiff 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

F Other Civil 10 6 4 3 0 23 0

G Total Civil Complaints 12 7 6 3 0 28 0

Section - 2 Domestic Violence & 
Harassment Petitions

A Civil Emergency Order of Protection 0 0 0 0 0 0

B Civil Order of Protection 0 0 5 0 0 5

C Injunction Against Harassment 0 0 14 0 0 14

D Injunction Against Workplace 
Harassment

0 0 0 0 0 0

Section - 3 Special Case 
Characteristics

A Self Represented Litigants 11 7 25 3 0 46 0

B Interpreter Provided 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1/16/2020 4:08:17 PM



Limited Jurisdiction Courts
Civil Caseload Manner Of Disposition Summary Report

PAYSON REGIONAL JUSTICE COURT - 404
START DATE : 12/1/2019          END DATE : 12/31/2019

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

Trial Dispositions

Jury Trail Bench Trail

Verdict
Reached

Disposed
After Start

Total Jury 
Trials

Judgment
Reached

Disposed
After Start

Total Bench 
Trials

Total
Trial

Dispositions

Other Civil
Dispositions

Grand
Total

Dispositions

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 23

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 28

0 0

0 5

5 19

0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 51

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1/16/2020 4:08:17 PM



   
ARF-5851   Consent Agenda Item     4. H.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/04/2020  
Reporting
Period:

Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for
December 2019

Submitted For: Ruben Mancha, Globe Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Michael Sellars, Constable Clerk

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for December 2019

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the December 2019 monthly activity report submitted
by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
December 2019





















   
ARF-5852   Consent Agenda Item     4. I.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/04/2020  
Reporting
Period:

Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for
December 2019

Submitted For: Tony McDaniel, Payson Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Kimberly Rust, Constable Clerk

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for December 2019

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgement of the December 2019 monthly activity report
submitted by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
December 2019




























	Agenda
	2019 Gila County Employee Service Awards Presentation
	Att1_2019 Gila County Service Awards
	Community Development Department Presentation
	Att1_Com Dev Presentation
	GILA COUNTY�COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7

	Annual Arizona 9-1-1 Program Grant Application to Support FY2021_Gila 9-1-1 Network Operations
	Att1_ADOA-NOFA
	Att2_FY2021 Budget Draft
	Accept or reject a Citizens' Petition to begin the process to designate a portion of E. Granny Jones Lane as a primitive road.
	Att1_Citizen's Petition
	Att2_Map
	Request to Award a Contract for RFP No. 102119-Consultation Services_  Health Prevention and Surveillance Services
	Att1_Contract No. 102119
	Att2_As Read Bid Results
	Att3_Quote Tabulation Form
	Att4_Request for Proposal No. 102119
	Request to Advertise for Indigent Defense Attorney Services
	Att1_Request to Advertise
	Att2_RFQ No. 010220-Indigent Defense Attorney Services
	Adoption of Revised Policy No. BOS-HRS-625 - Personnel Commission
	Att1_BOS-HRS-625 Policy
	Att2_Revised Personnel Commission Policy Redline
	Application for the Use of Money from the County Anti-Racketeering
	Att1_STIPULATED SETTLEMENT ORDER
	Forest Service Road 203
	Appointment to the Gila County Industrial Development Authority Board of Directors
	Att1_IDA Member List
	Professional Services Contract No. 020120-Federal Relations Services with Bose Public Affairs Group
	Att1_Professional Services Contract No. 020120-BPAG
	Att2_Contract 071014-2
	Att3_Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 103114
	Att4_Contract 103114-Bose
	Att5_Contract 070113 BPAG
	Att6_Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 042109
	Att7_Contract No. 042109
	Adoption of an Order to Designate Polling Places and Appoint Poll Workers
	Att1_Order
	Att2_ARS 16-411
	Att3_ARS 16-531
	Community Action Program Advisory Board Appointments
	Att1_CAP Advisory Board Member List
	January 21, 2020 and January 28, 2020 Meeting Minutes
	Att1_01-21-20 Meeting Minutes
	Att2_01-28-20 Meeting Minutes
	December 2019
	Att1_Clerks Report for December 2019
	Recorder's Office Monthly Report for December 2019
	Att1_December 2019
	Monthly Report for December 2019 from Globe Regional Justice Court
	Att1_Monthly Report for December 2019
	December 2019
	Att1_December 2091 report
	JP Dec 2019 Recap.pdf
	JP 0404 Dec 2019_Misdemeanor_Criminal_CivilTraffic_MannerofDispositionSummaryByCharge
	jp0404 dec 2019Civil_Caseload_MannerOfDispositionSummaryReport

	Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for December 2019
	Att1_December 2019
	Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for December 2019
	Att1_December 2019

